
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

Tuesday, September 3, 2024  
5:30 p.m. 

 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

918-338-4282 
 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Copeland. 

 
2. Roll call and establishment of a quorum. 

 
3. The Invocation will be provided by Pastor Tosha Hollopeter, Oak Park Methodist Church. 

 
4. Citizens to be heard. 

 
5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

• Presentation to Mike Bailey for CMAO 2024 Gerald Wilkins Award for City Manager of the Year. 
Presented by Steve Whitlock, CMAO Executive Director. 

• Recognition of the 100th Anniversary of Spirit Church by Councilman Roszel. 
• National Payroll Week Proclamation September 2-6, 2024 
• Constitution Week Proclamation September 16-22, 2024. 

 
6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Museum Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Water Resources Committee (Ward 4 Representative) 

 
7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of August 5, 2024. 
ii. The Special Meeting Minutes of August 19, 2024. 

 
b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Marianna Guerrero to a three-year term on the Community Center Trust 

Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
ii. Reappointment of Ms. Donna Copeland and Mr. John Fusselman to additional three-year 

terms on the White Rose Cemetery Board at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
iii. Reappointment of Mr. Adam Hibdon to an additional three-year term on the City Planning 

Commission at the recommendation of Councilman Schipper. 
iv. Reappointment of Ms. Kinder Shamhart to an additional three-year term on the Board of 

Adjustment at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
   
 c. Approval and/or Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Proposals, 

and Memorandums of Understanding. 
  i. Magazine and Subscription Service Proposal between Rivistas Subscription Service and the 

Bartlesville Public Library/City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 



 
 
 

  ii. Contract for License Plate Recognition (LPF) Camera Services between Flock Safety and 
the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Police Department. 

iii. Contract for survey services between Polco Confluence, Inc. (Polco) and the City of 
Bartlesville, a platform that works to gather critical information from community stakeholders, 
assess needs and monitor resident satisfaction and government performance. 

iv. Contract for digital tracking software services between Envisio Solutions, Inc. and the City of 
Bartlesville for tools to assist in improved data management and more effectively share 
information with the public, particularly as it relates to the Bartlesville NEXT Strategic Plan 
and voter-approved capital projects. 

v. Professional Service Contract with Brown Engineers for the high service pump variable 
frequency drive replacement at the water treatment plan. 

vi. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Family YMCA of Bartlesville, setting out the 
roles and responsibilities for implementing the 2021 CDBG-Coronavirus Relief Program 
grant modification for rehabilitation of facilities to improve indoor air quality.  

vii. Design contract with Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. for engineering design for rehabilitation 
of four different concrete streets included in the 2023 issuance of the 2020 General 
Obligation Bond. 

viii. Proposal to purchase and for installation of shade structures for Tower Center at Unity 
Square. 

ix. Encroachment Agreement and Release of Liability with Sterling Enterprises, Inc. for part of 
Dink’s parking lot that encroaches upon a portion of Frank Phillips Boulevard Right-of-Way. 

x. Discuss and take possible action to approve an agreement with the State of Oklahoma to 
receive and utilize annual funding received by the State as part of the Opioid Lawsuit 
Settlement Fund for additional opioid remediation purposes within the City of Bartlesville. 

   
d. Approval of Resolutions 

i. Amendment to Resolution 3714 amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, appropriating unanticipated grant revenue in the Restricted 
Revenues Fund of the Police Department for the FY 2024 Opioid Abatement Grant Award 
Agreement. 

ii. Amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
appropriating unanticipated revenue in the Opioid Settlement Fund of the Police 
Department for the use of opioid settlement funds. 

 
 e. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – August  2024. 
 
 f.  Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for 12 months ending June 30, 2024. 
 
 g. Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2024-2025-004 for Adams Golf Club Greens Renovation Project. 
  ii. Bid No. 2024-2025-005 for Bartlesville Police Evidence/Property Room Firearm Sale. 

iii. Bid No. 2024-2025-006 for Tuxedo Bridge over Caney River. 
iv. Bid No. 2024-2025-007 for LED Wall Package 

    
8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-004 for the Adams Golf Couse 

Greens Renovation Project. Presented by Councilman Dorsey. 
 

9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-005 for Bartlesville Police 
Evidence Room Firearm Sale. Presented by Councilman Roszel. 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No, 2024-2025-006 for Tuxedo Bridge over 

Caney River. Presented by Councilman Schipper. 
 



 
 
 

11. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-007 for LED Wall Package. 
Presented by Councilman Schipper. 

 
12. Public hearing and possible action on a request from Dan Keleher on behalf of Patriot Hyundai 

for a new Planned Unit Development (PUD) and Site Development Plan for 3.26 acres at the 
southeast corner of Southport Drive and Washington Boulevard/US HWY 75. Presented by 
Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development. 

 
13. Discuss and take possible action to authorize the City Manager and/or the City Attorney to 

send formal notice to Price Tower Arts Center (PTAC) to terminate the Memorandum of 
Understanding regarding the management, maintenance and operation of the Tower Green, 
also known as Unity Square, a city-owned facility located at 6th and Dewey; and to approve a 
Lease and Operating Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and the Bartlesville 
Community Center Trust Authority to provide the management, maintenance and operation of 
Tower Green, also known as Unity Square. Presented by Jess Kane, City Attorney. 
 

14. Discuss and take possible action to approve a resolution pertaining to public safety, lewd acts 
in public, protests, and constitutional rights of the public in public spaces. Presented by Mike 
Bailey, City Manager. 

 
15. New Business. 

  
16. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
17. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 
18. Adjournment. 

 
The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent public 
view at City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, August 29, 2024. 
 
Jason Muninger    /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO    by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Sparklight: Channel 56 
  

 Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official 
action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, 
strike, or continue any agenda item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City 
Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a 
specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City 
Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. If 
participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled 
meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation. 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


OOffffiiccee  ooff  tthhee  MMaayyoorr  
CCiittyy  ooff  BBaarrttlleessvviillllee  
  440011  SS..  JJoohhnnssttoonnee  

  BBaarrttlleessvviillllee,,  OOKK  7744000033  
991188..333388..44228822  

wwwwww..cciittyyooffbbaarrttlleessvviillllee..oorrgg    
 

 
 
September 3, 2024 
 
 
Pastor Jason Fullerton 
Spirit Church 
2121 South Madison Blvd. 
Bartlesville, OK 74006 
 
Dear Pastor Fullerton, 
 
On behalf of the City Council and the citizens of Bartlesville, we extend our congratulations on 
the celebration of the 100th Anniversary of Spirit Church. Established October 5, 1924 under the 
leadership of Reverend James Kerr, as the Assembly of God Church, later named Spirit Church. 
The congregation grew tremendously requiring the acquisition of an entire half block, completed 
during Pastor Paul Holdirdidge pastorship in 1965. In 2018, under the leadership of Dr. Darryl 
Wootton, a beautiful and expansive 25,000 square foot building was dedicated at the current 
location.  Spirit Church  and its congregation has provided a valuable presence and service to the 
Bartlesville community and beyond, generously contributing money to local and global outreach 
efforts, and more importantly, sharing love, joy and peace of Jesus Christ with the least, last and 
the lost. 
 
Thank you for your commitment to the Lord and to our community, Pastor Fullerton. We wish 
you and your church a happy celebration and continued blessings throughout the years to come. 
 
Together in His Service, 

 
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 
City of Bartlesville 
 
DWC/eb 
 

 

Agenda Item 5.b.



   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
 

National Payroll Week 
September 2-6, 2024 

  
WHEREAS, National Payroll Week (NPW) is celebrated annually during the first full 
week of September to recognize the significant contributions of payroll professionals in 
the economic health of businesses and the financial security of employees; and 

WHEREAS, payroll professionals in the City of Bartlesville play a crucial role in ensuring 
that employees are paid accurately and on time, thus contributing to the productivity and 
morale of the workforce; and 

WHEREAS, the payroll industry in Bartlesville is responsible for the timely collection, 
reporting, and remittance of payroll taxes, which support vital federal, state, and local 
services, including infrastructure, education, and public safety; and 

WHEREAS, the payroll profession requires a high level of expertise and dedication, 
encompassing compliance with complex tax regulations, implementing new 
technologies, and maintaining the confidentiality and security of employee information; 
and 

WHEREAS, National Payroll Week highlights the value of payroll professionals' 
contributions to businesses, government, and communities, and promotes the 
importance of payroll education and awareness among employers and employees; and 

WHEREAS, recognizing National Payroll Week in Bartlesville will encourage 
appreciation and understanding of the payroll industry's vital role in the city's economy 
and the financial well-being of its citizens; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Dale W. Copeland, Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, do hereby 
proclaim the week of September 2, 2024, as National Payroll Week in the City of 
Bartlesville and urge all citizens to recognize and honor the essential services provided 
by payroll professionals in our community. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands 
and caused the Official Seal of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma, to be affixed this 3rd day of September, in 
the year of our Lord two thousand and twenty-four. 
 
 
 
                                                                                       
                      Dale W. Copeland, Mayor  

 
 

Agenda Item 5.c.



   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
 

Constitution Week  
September 16-22, 2024 

 

Whereas, The Constitution of the United States of American, the guardian of our 

liberties, embodies the principles of limited government in a Republic dedicated to rule 
by law; and 

Whereas, September 17, 2022 marks the 237th anniversary of the framing of the 

Constitution of the United States of America by the Constitutional Convention; and  

Whereas, It is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent 

document and its memorable anniversary, and to the patriotic celebration which will 
commemorate the occasion; and  

Whereas, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by the 

President of the United States of America designating September 17 through 23 as 
Constitution Week. 

Now therefore, I, Dale Copeland, Mayor, City of Bartlesville, do hereby proclaim the 

week of September 16 through 22 as Constitution Week and ask our citizens to reaffirm 
the ideals of the Framers of the Constitution had in 1787 by vigilantly protecting the 
freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of our liberties, remembering that lost 
rights may never be regained.   

 In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set 

my hand and  caused  the  Seal  of  the  City of 
Bartlesville to be affixed this 3rd day of 
September in  the  year of our Lord, Two 
Thousand Twenty-Four. 

 
      

                                                                  
                                                                              

                                                   Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 
 
          

  

Agenda Item 5.d.



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, August 5, 2024  

5:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2023 and the Agenda was posted August 1, 2024 at 5:30 p.m.) 

 
 City Council present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., 

Councilmembers Trevor Dorsey, Loren Roszel and Quinn Schipper. 
 
  City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason 

Muninger, CFO/City Clerk; Laura Sanders, Assistant City Manager; Micah Siemers, 
Director of Engineering; Terry Lauritsen, Director of Water Utilities; Kelli Williams, Chief 
Communications Officer; Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; Alicia 
Shelton, Internal Financial Supervisor; Kiley Roberson, Director of the Library; Fire 
Chief H.C. Call; Steve Roper, Engineer; and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order at 5:30 

p.m. by Mayor Copeland. 
 

2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. The Invocation was provided by Pastor Aaron Kirkpatrick, Adams Boulevard Church 
of Christ. 

 
4. Citizens to be heard. 

 
Rebecca Carr provided comments regarding Adams Municipal Golf Course. 

 
5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

 
There were no announcements or proclamations. 
 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  
• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Museum Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Water Resources Committee (Ward 4 Representative) 

 
Mayor Copeland read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City 
Committees. Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the city 
Manager’s Office. 

 

Agenda Item 7.a.i.

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 

3 
 

7. Consent Docket 
a. Approval of Minutes 

i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of July 1, 2024. 
 

b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, 
Commissions, and Committees. 
i. Appointment of Mr. Tom Bucher to a three-year term to the Adams Golf Course 

Operating Committee at the recommendation of Councilmember Dorsey. 
ii. Appointment of Mr. Steve Munkirs to fill an unexpired term on the City Planning 

Commission at the recommendation of Councilmember Schipper. 
iii. Reappointment of Mr. Scott Hopson and Ms. Laura Wood to additional three-year 

terms each on the Bartlesville Library Trust Authority at the recommendation of 
Councilmember Roszel. 

 
 c. Approval of Resolutions 
  i. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-24 appropriating 

unanticipated revenue for the Health Insurance Fund to cover the rise in medical 
costs. 

  ii. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-24 appropriating 
unanticipated revenue for the Health Insurance Fund to cover unexpected specialty 
drug costs. 

  iii.  Amending the budget for the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 
appropriating unbudgeted fund balance in the Golf Course Memorial Fund. 

       
 d. Approval and/or Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, 

Change Orders, Addendums, Employment Agreements and Memorandums of 
Understanding. 

  i. Agreement for Professional Document Digitization Services with ARC Document 
Solutions for a digital conversion of Community Development Department files. 

  ii. Engagement Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Crawford & Associates, 
P.C. for audit consulting services.  

  iii.  Service Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Remington Cleaning, LLC 
for cleaning services for the Bartlesville Police Department.   

iv. Contract between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library and the 
Oklahoma Department of Libraries to receive E-Rate Category 2 funds for 
improvements to technological infrastructure previously approved by City Council on 
March 4, 2024. 

v. Contract between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library and the 
Oklahoma Department of Libraries to receive grant funds to pay for technology 
upgrades.  

vi. Task Order No. 3 to the Master Services Agreement between the City of Bartlesville 
and Parkhill, Smith and Cooper for Airport Consulting Services.  

vii. Equipment Lease between the City of Bartlesville and the Tri-State District of 
Wesleyan Church, c/o Wesleyan Christian School, for up to six (6) sets of surplus 
bleachers to be used at the Wesleyan Christian School football field.  

viii. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Teesnap, LLC. to provide point of 
sale software and reporting services at the Adams Municipal Golf Course. 

ix. Agreement between John C. Holden and the City of Bartlesville for Code 
Enforcement Hearing Examiner services.  

x. Mutual Aid Agreement between Phillips 66 Research Center-Emergency Response 
Team (PRCERT) and the Bartlesville Fire Department (BFD) to provide additional 



 
 
 

4 
 

resources through cooperation when needed for emergency incidents including 
those occurring on any Phillips 66 property. 

xi. Agreement between Cathy Wilson and William Thompson and the City of 
Bartlesville, for the voluntary demolition of a dilapidated structure on property 
addressed as 1311 NW Cudahy Street. 

xii. Agreement between Barbara F. Pace and the City of Bartlesville, for the voluntary 
demolition of dilapidated structures on property addressed as 141 NW Margarite 
Ave. 

xiii. Agreement between Chris Nave and Elizabeth Woods and the City of Bartlesville, for 
the voluntary demolition of a dilapidated structure on property addressed as 515 SE 
Seneca Ave. 

xiv.Agreement between Ethel Marie Alfrey and the City of Bartlesville, for the voluntary 
demolition of a dilapidated structure on property addressed as 1610 SW Oak Ave. 

xv. Short Form Contract with B-Town Construction to attempt to clear an obstruction in 
the Turkey Creek Watershed outfall pipe. 

 
 e. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – July 2024. 
 
 f.  Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2024-2025-003 Bond Park Improvements 

  
 Mayor Copeland read the consent docket in its entirety. Mr. Schipper removed Item 7.a.i. for 
further discussion. Mr. Roszel removed Item 7.d.iii. and 7.d.viii. for further discussion. 

 
 Mr. Roszel moved to approve the consent docket except for Items 7.a.i., 7.diii. and 7.d.viii., 

seconded by Mr. Schipper. 
 

Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 
Items pulled from the Consent Docket to be discussed. 
 

 7.a.  Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of July 1, 2024. 

 
  Mr. Schipper pointed out that Andrew Ward’s title was incorrect in the minutes. He is 

Deputy Chief Ward, not Captain Ward. 
 
 7.d.  Approval and/or ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change 

Orders, Addendums, Employment Agreements and Memorandums of Understanding. 
  iii. Service Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Remington Cleaning, LLC for 

cleaning services for the Bartlesville Police Department. 
 
   Mr. Roszel requested a correction in the amount of times cleaning will occur since 

there are conflicting numbers in the Agreement. The correction is cleaning will be 
conducted five (5) nights, not (3) nights.   

 
  viii. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Teesnap, LLC to provide point of 

sale software and reporting services at the Adams Municipal Golf Course. 
 



 
 
 

5 
 

   In response to Mr. Roszel’s inquiry regarding the length of the agreement since the 
golf course management is still being decided, Ms. Sanders stated that she and Mr. 
Muninger discussed whether a one-year or two-year agreement would be best. The 
agreement presented is Teesnap’s standard agreement, and Mr. Muninger feels the 
software will be used long-term no matter the management situation. A brief 
discussion covered management of the golf course in the future; how any changes 
could affect the agreement; options; and how after discussion, Mr. Roszel approved 
of the agreement as presented. 

 
 Mr. Roszel moved to approve Items 7.a.i. with correction noted, 7.d.iii. with correction noted, 

and 7.d.viii as presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 

Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

   
8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-003 for Bond Park 

Improvements. Presented by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd provided the bid information.  
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to award Bid No 2024-2025-003 to Brent Bell Construction, LLC in 
the amount of $1,285,681.50, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 

 
Vice Mayor Curd asked Mr. Siemers to provide additional information on the Douglass Park 
parking lot and how it would be funded. Discussion ensued covering how the Douglass Park 
parking area is more like a street project, therefore would be paid from the Street Fund; how 
the Douglass Park improvement will run concurrently, if possible, with the other park parking 
lot improvements; how in-house labor will be used for the Douglass Park parking lot; how 
Cass street will be improved along with the Douglas Park parking lot; that there were other 
non-named streets that the 2023 Bond funds could be allocated to instead of Douglass Park 
parking lot and Cass Street; how there is the option to use unallocated sales tax funds which 
is available; that savings of using in-house labor is substantial; how discretionary projects are 
built into the 2023 Bond funds which makes this project is eligible; and that the Douglass 
Park parking lot project funding did not go before the Street and Traffic Committee prior to 
this decision.   

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  Mr. Roszel 
Motion:  Passed 
 

9. Discuss and take possible action to approve the Collective Bargaining Agreement 
between the City of Bartlesville and International Association of Firefighters Local 200 
(the “IAFF”) for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. Presented by Jess Kane, City Attorney.  

 
Mr. Kane reported that after many meetings, numerous drafts and countless hours of staff 
time, an agreement was reached with the IAFF for FY 2024-2025. The agreement is 
unchanged from last year, except for payscale which is updated with a 6% COLA and 5% 
merit; an increase already approved for general employees and the police department. Mr. 
Kane pointed out that the IAFF does not accept multi-year contracts. He also pointed out that 
the IAFF refused an employee performance and recognition program for their employees 
who are recognized as top performers, as well as the annual recognition awards based on 



 
 
 

6 
 

extraordinary service. The Union was not interested, did not consider, and did not bother to 
counter the offer. He added that the IAFF is not interested in discussing ways to pay 
members more for doing a good job. Mr. Kane concluded that these recognition and 
performance policies are a direct outgrowth of the Council approved Strategic Plan which 
provides for employee retention, reward and incentive.  
 
Mr. Dorsey moved to approve the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of 
Bartlesville and International Association of Firefighters Local 200 for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, 
seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 
Mayor Copeland expressed his appreciation to the staff for successfully negotiating the 
agreement. 
 

10. Presentation and discussion of the Bartlesville Fire Department Apparatus Policy. 
Presented by H.C. Call, Fire Chief.  

 
Chief Call stated that one of his first assignments to review was the department’s apparatus 
replacement situation. Using a PowerPoint, he covered the Industry Standard Replacement 
Schedule which is attached to these minutes. Moving forward, he is recommending to 
replace Quint 3 with a used aerial apparatus which is in the current budget ($700,000 for FY 
2024-2025), replace Quint 4 with a new aerial apparatus in FY 2025-2026 and replace 
engine 11/tanker 1 with a new custom cab pumper tanker in FY 2025-2026. A meeting was 
held with the apparatus committee that includes 16 members of all shifts and all ranks. The 
committee and city garage personnel were all were in agreement with the recommendations. 
Mr. Bailey stated that since what was discussed during the budget process has changed to 
provide  these improved options, he wanted Chief Call to present the recommendations. He 
added that the intent is get the needs of the Fire Department on a predictable replacement 
schedule for improved fund management.  
 
A brief discussion covered STBA procedures for replacement and re-use; policy explanation 
on reserves; how three reserves would be ideal; how  most repairs can be made at the City 
garage and others are taken to Oklahoma City or other locations for repairs; how ordering 
equipment several years out could include a good discount on the purchase; and how part of 
the Strategic Plan includes planning for these types of large purchases.  
 
No action was taken. Council expressed their appreciation for the update and presentation. 
 

11. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance permitting the use of golf 
carts on City streets. Presented by Councilman Loren Roszel.  

 
Mr. Roszel reported that the proposed ordinance was brought forward by himself after a 
couple of constituents inquired about allowing golf carts on City streets. He added that once 
word was out about the possibility, he received comments both for and against. His goal with 
the ordinance is that there are already golf carts and other types of unlicensed vehicles on 
the streets so with the ordinance laws and regulation would govern them. He also stated that 
being able to utilize golf carts could increase community mobility, as long they have all of the 
required safety equipment. He stated that there could be restrictions such which streets they 
are allowed on and not allowed on, and could stay under 20 mph. He said he understands 



 
 
 

7 
 

some of the hesitation but he compared golf carts to bicycles and motorcycles that the public 
already allows for.  
 
Discussion covered Mr. Schipper’s and some of his constituent’s’ concerns such as using a 
golf cart in place of cars, and accidents. One citizen had the idea of  restricting travel by golf 
carts within the City’s entertainment district.  He stated that he would like to defer action on 
this until the 2025 Comprehensive Plan is complete since it addresses transportation needs. 
He also noted that City staff in the staff report did not recommending use of golf carts on City 
streets, but instead states that staff supports the proposed ordinance. Mr. Roszel commented 
that the proposed ordinance does address some of the restrictions noted by Mr. Schipper, 
and that City staff is not the recommending body, since he is the one who is bringing it 
forward adding that he appreciated City staff’s support in researching and preparing the 
ordinance. Mr. Roszel stated that has received more favorable responses than negative. Mr. 
Dorsey stated that also received for and against feedback from his constituents. Mayor 
Copeland stated that golf carts are engineered for golf courses, not streets, and after 
researching the idea with two different people in two different states, who passed an 
ordinance such as this, for the best reason, said they would not have done so in retrospect.  
Enforcement issues as well as safety concerns were part of their issues once allowed. Mayor 
Copeland continued that golf carts are not typically made with safety devices; getting from 
different points across town if not allowed on roadways over 20 mph; could impact Pathfinder 
Parkway, which would be of great concern. He concluded that his concerns about the 
implementation was not with the spirit of the ordinance but safety concerns, and information  
from those who regret allowing golf carts on the streets. Vice Mayor Curd stated that there 
are areas of concerns but they could be addressed with specific regulations including seat 
belts, reflectors, etc. Mr. Bailey stated that Section 8 in the proposed ordinance deals with 
safety issues.  
 
At a citizen’s request, Mayor Copeland allowed a public comment from Pastor Aaron 
Kirkpatrick who asked to speak. Pastor Kirkpatrick reported that he had owned and managed 
a fleet of golf carts in Destin, Florida, and that the concerns listed in this meeting were 
addressed and solved in his case. He added that in the years he managed the fleet there 
were no accidents, but there were very strict regulations to make them street legal, costing 
around $3000 per cart above the purchase price. In regard to not having speedometers, 
Pastor Kirkpatrick stated that golf carts do have governors which keeps the speed under 25 
mph. He stated that appreciated what Mr. Roszel says about providing mobility, but they are 
expensive and will not likely be purchased by those who currently use the scooters or 
motorized bicycles. He agrees with the Mayor that golf carts should stay off of Pathfinder 
Parkway. Rebecca Carr also stated that governors do keep the speed down, and there are 
actually kits to build carts to make them more affordable.  Mayor Copeland closed the public 
comment portion and stated his appreciation to everyone discussing and commenting on this 
item. He provided options to approve the ordinance as presented or to table for further 
research and re-define.  

 
Mr. Roszel moved to adopt the proposed Ordinance permitting the use of golf carts on City 
Streets as presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 

 
 Mr. Schipper appreciated the discussion, but stated cannot vote in favor of it due to concerns 

about unintended consequences and having to back track at a later date. He also mentioned 
the Comprehensive Plan again which may address transportation issues such as this. Mr. 
Roszel inquired of the timeline of when the Comprehensive Plan will be completed. Mr. 
Bailey reported that it will likely come before the Council in October 2024, with the 



 
 
 

8 
 

transportation portion likely to be completed in 2025. Mayor Copeland reiterated his concerns 
concluding with this is a safety issue, first and foremost; mobility is desirable, but safety first. 

 
Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel 
Voting Nay:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Motion:  Failed 

 
Mayor Copeland stated that this type of ordinance could be revisited after being re-defined. 
 

12. Discuss and take possible action to accept a conveyance of 12 properties from the 
Washington County Treasurer’s Office, such properties having not received a 
minimum reserve bid covering the amount of City liens on the properties, at the 
annual Washington County Tax Resale Auction held on June 10, 2024 and consider 
and take action to release the City’s liens on these properties: 1)102 SW Adeline Ave.; 
2) 134 NE Chickasaw Ave.; 3) 107 SE Comanche Ave.; 4) 523 SE Comanche Ave.; 5) 
1036 SW Hickory Ave.; 6) 141 NW Kaw Ave.; 7) 1040 SW Maple Ave.; 8) 1104 SW Maple 
Ave.; 9) 1111 SW Maple Ave.; 10) 1413 SW Oak Ave.; 11) 501 SW Penn Ave.; and 12) 
204 NW Theodore Ave. Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of Community 
Development. 

 
Mr. Curtis reported that pursuant to the passing of recent State legislation, HB 2361, effective 
November 1, 2023, municipalities now have an optional procedure to recover City code 
enforcement abatement liens on certain tax delinquent properties that go to the annual 
County tax resale auction. After the auction in June, 2024, 12 properties fell under that option 
that did not receive minimum bids. His staff had previously notified the County Treasurer’s 
office to ensure that should the County not receive minimum bids, that the City could take 
ownership of the properties. The City’s goal in doing so would be to recoup the City’s losses 
on the properties and also assist with housing needs if there are interested buyers.  
 
Discussion covered how the liens are due to mowing and demolition expenses due to neglect 
and/or abandonment; how the City is not trying to get into the real estate business, but to find 
a way to recoup losses and assist with housing needs; how buyers have not yet been 
identified since this is a new opportunity just approved by legislation; how there had been an 
informal agreement with the County in years past that was similar to the new legislation and 
resulted in a very successful auction of properties that fell into this category; how this 
opportunity allows the City to explore housing, possibly place the lots with a realtor for a 
larger project and explore several options. Further discussion covered how the County will 
write off the back taxes before deeding to the City with the vision of the City developing them 
in order to get them back on the tax rolls; how the City deals with affordable housing and 
economic development which the County does not necessarily pursue; and how Mr. Roszel 
feels that the City will not only the have costs associated to manage and sell the properties, 
but also that he feels the City is taking the properties out of the capital enterprise system. Mr. 
Bailey pointed out that in the past, the Council has passed incentives for affordable housing 
and also addressed buyers of properties with these liens asking to have them waived. This is 
a similar form of those two instances. Mr. Bailey added that in this situation, there is 
opportunity; with minimal burden since the City only needs to recover the City’s expenses. 
Further discussion ensued covering how the City’s lien remains in place on the properties; 
how the sale of the properties will come before the Council; and how this process simplifies 
the process. Mr. Roszel again states his concerns of oversight, management and selling of 
the properties. Mayor Copeland pointed out that the City is already providing the 
maintenance, and Vice Mayor Curd stated that with respect to Mr. Roszel’s concerns, this 
action aligns with the City dealing with housing issues. He added that stockpiling properties is 



 
 
 

9 
 

not the goal, but this action is a reasonable effort to see if the properties can be used in a 
good way. Mr. Curtis added that this type of transaction happens only once a year, so if it is 
not successful, then the City will not pursue it again. Mr. Dorsey stated that he feels that 
there are people in Bartlesville that will be interested in these lots, and having an inventory 
will help. Mr. Roszel stated that this seems speculative to him with Mr. Bailey responding that 
exposure is limited, and adding that many purchases are made by next door property 
owners. He concluded that although this type of transaction is unusual for the City, it is not 
unprecedented. Mr. Dorsey again agreed that this is a good idea, and in response to Mr. 
Schipper’s inquiry, Mr. Curtis stated that all 12 lots are empty lots.  
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to accept the conveyance of properties as listed and as presented, 
seconded by Mr. Schipper. 
 
Mayor Copeland stated that this action has potential and appreciated the discussion and 
comments.  
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
13. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance amendment to restructure the 

Keep Bartlesville Beautiful (KBB) committee, replacing the Community Development 
Director with an additional citizen member, while retaining the Community 
Development  Director as an ex officio member. Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of 
Community Development. 

 
Mr. Curtis reported that it is important to ensure the community driven nature and foster 
greater citizen engagement in committees. After a couple of meetings to continue that 
process along, he found that when you have a city official sit on a committee, can potentially 
inhibit committee members. He feels he should step back as a member and act as an advisor 
to the committee. Vice Mayor Curd stated that this is indicative of Mr. Curtis’ character, and 
another example of this is hiring Mr. Holden to be the hearing officer for code enforcement 
hearings. He stated his appreciation of Mr. Curtis for his direction in both cases. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to adopt the Ordinance Amendment to restructure the Keep Bartlesville 
Beautiful Committee as presented, seconded by Mr. Schipper. 

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
14. Discuss and take possible action to review and approve the City Council Meeting 

Rules of Procedure and Code of Ethics per Article 2, Section 9 and Article 2, Section 
13, respectively, of the Amended City Charter following the recent amendments to the 
Amended City Charter. Presented by Jess Kane, City Attorney. 

 
Mr. Kane reported that this item is basically a housekeeping item required after the recent 
Charter election. The Amended Charter was submitted, approved and signed by Governor 
Stitt on June 5, 2024. The Charter requires approval/adoption of the Meeting Rules of 
Procedure and Code of Ethics Resolutions following every City Council and Charter election 
within 60 days of such election.  The resolutions submitted have been in place for several 
years and are approved following every election.  



 
 
 

10 
 

 
Discussion covered how the Resolutions have worked well over the past several years; how 
Mr. Roszel would like to extend the public comment section to 60 minutes instead of 15 
minutes; how anytime during past meetings when additional time was needed, any number of 
citizens wishing to speak were allowed to speak and the time was extended; how the Mayor 
feels that the rules in place work well and any time frame can be arbitrary; how these 
Resolutions will come before the Council again following the November Council elections; 
and how a new Council could even abolish the public comment section should they chose to 
do so. Mr. Roszel stated he would like to make the change at this meeting and procedure 
was discussed, and noted that such action is allowed. Additionally, it was brought up that a 
change in Resolution 3661 Rules of Order could possibly affect other documents. Discussion 
ensued as to whether or not to vote to amend the resolution at this meeting or allow staff to 
research the proposed change and bring it back to a vote to amend at a later meeting.  
 
Mr. Roszel moved to amend Resolution 3661 Section 1.C.4. to extend the public comment 
from a total of 15 minutes to a total of 60 minutes. The Mayor inquired if this section is the 
only place in the document that the amendment affects. Mr. Roszel stated this Section is the 
only place this occurs. The Mayor again stated his concern that Mr. Roszel’s proposed 
amendments may affect other documents, but in his opinion, to do so was not 
insurmountable. Mr. Kane stated that this policy could possibly affect the Council Handbook 
which would require Council approval to amend it as well, at a later meeting. 
 
The Mayor called for a second to Mr. Roszel’s motion. Lacking a second, the motion failed.  
 
Mr. Dorsey, confirmed that the Mayor has the authority to expand the amount of time under 
the current resolution. 

 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve Resolutions 3226 and 3661 as presented and to direct 
staff to review potential updates in regard to time limits to the public comment section in 
Resolution 3661 as it applies throughout City documentation, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Mr. Roszel reminded Council that they have taken action before then followed with 
amendments when needed. His goal with the proposed amendment is to ensure the citizens 
have the ability to speak and allow them enough time to do so, and stated his frustration with 
not taking action at this time. Mr. Kane introduced Stephanie Clifton who recently joined Mr. 
Kane’s law firm. Ms. Clifton will research the potential affect the proposed amendment 
offered by Mr. Roszel may have on all City documents tomorrow. Mr. Roszel inquired why 
invite citizens to attend and speak only to limit them. Mayor Copeland reiterated again that he 
does not limit the number of speakers nor the time allowed, and that balance is important to 
conduct a business meeting. Vice Mayor Curd supported Mayor Copeland stating that 
citizens are allowed to speak and not be restricted, and have been for as long as he has sat 
on the Council.  

 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None   
Motion:  Passed 

 
15. Discuss and take possible action to approve Addendum #2 to the Disposition and 

Development Agreement between the City of Bartlesville, Buffalo Roam, and 
Bartlesville Redevelopment Trust Authority. Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager.  

 



 
 
 

11 
 

Mr. Bailey stated that Buffalo Roam’s bank, Blue Sky, has requested one final addendum 
prior to closing. Addendum #2 removed the dates from Section 3.2 that say “but not later 
than December 31, 2023” and “but not later than December 31, 2025” from the Disposition 
and Development Agreement. The City did not feel this needed to be done, but the bank 
insisted. The BRTA will meet this week to act on the Addendum #2.  
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve Addendum #2 to the Disposition and Development 
Agreement as presented, seconded by Mr. Schipper. 

 
 Vice Mayor Curd 

Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
16. New Business. 

 
There was no new business to address. 

  
17. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
Mr. Bailey explained the five year water rate plan that was adopted by the City Council four 
years ago. The rates went into effect on July 1 and due to the increase, there are two water 
block charges which shows the June rate on water usage and the rate increase beginning 
July 1. The capital charges are for a new wastewater plant and improvements to the water 
plant. The rate increases were spread out so that a one-time large increase was not 
necessary. The Mayor stated that he had received many questions even though the billing is 
transparent. Mr. Bailey reported that the new billing statement will continue to set out all 
costs but they will be printed on the second page of the bill. 
 
The shuttle service at the airport to Houston has been reinstated and is of significant benefit 
to the airport. It is larger than the shuttle that operated in the past and expansion is possible. 
 
City Staff has been working on the Strategic Plan and will present a refreshed version to the 
City Council in a workshop in the near future.  
 

18. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Mr. Schipper encouraged citizens to be aware that school starts soon and to be cautious at 
school crossings. He also encouraged travel routes that accommodate increased traffic in 
those areas.  
 
Mayor Copeland encouraged citizens to check on neighbors due the high heat warnings. 
 

19. There being no further business to address, Mayor Copeland adjourned the meeting at 
8:03 p.m.  

 
                                                                
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 

                                                       
 Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE  
SPECIAL MEETING  

OF THE  
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, August 19, 2024 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr. 
918-338-4282 

 

Council Chambers at City Hall 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting and Agenda was posted on August 15, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
City Council present were Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Councilmembers Trevor Dorsey, Loren Roszel, 
and Quinn Schipper. Mayor Dale Copeland was absent. 
 
City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Laura Sanders, 
Assistant City Manager; Kelli Williams, Chief Communications Officer; Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry;  
Fire Chief H.C. Call; Lisa Beeman, Grant Coordinator; Deputy Chief Andrew Ward; Kiley Roberson, 
Library Director and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Vice Mayor 

Curd at 5:30 p.m.  
 
2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 

 
3.  Mr. Dorsey provided the invocation. 

 
4. Citizens to be heard. 

 
There were no citizens to be heard. 
 

5. Consent Docket 
a. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Memorandums of Understanding, 

i. Contract between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library and the 
Oklahoma Department of Libraries for grant funding that will pay the majority of 
the salary for the part-time Library Assistant position. 

  
Vice Mayor Curd read the consent docket in its entirety. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to approve the consent docket, seconded by Mr. Schipper. 
 
Voting Aye: Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 

 
6. Discuss and take possible action to approve a Contract for Services with GRAND Mental 

Health to perform services related to the FY 2024 Opioid Abatement Project. Presented 
by Lisa Beeman, Grant Coordinator. 

Agenda Item 7.a.ii.



 
 
 
 

 Police Chief Ickleberry reported for Ms. Beeman stating that he will include Items 6., 7., and 8. 
In one presentation since all pertain to the same subject.  

 
Regarding Item 6., the agreement with GRAND Mental Health is to carry out the opioid 
abatement project as per the terms of the City’s FY 2024 Opioid Abatement Grant Award 
Agreement with the State of Oklahoma.  This agreement authorizes the payment of$120,000 to 
GRAND Mental Health over a two year period of time to provide two certified peer recovery 
support specialists to work with the Police Department’s existing Crisis Intervention Response 
Team (CIRT) and the Parks and Pathfinder Program. These two team members will assist with 
outreach services to create a pathway from homelessness to treatment to housing for Bartlesville 
individuals experiencing homelessness, opioid addiction, and at risk for unintentional overdose, 
particularly those who have set up encampments along Pathfinder Parkway.  Outreach services 
which can be provided by GRAND include immediate access to its Urgent Recovery Centers 
and Addiction Recovery Center for treatment, and housing navigation services and rental 
support when they discharge from residential inpatient treatment and step-down into outpatient 
and other recovery services.  GRAND has experience with using outreach teams in Tulsa and 
are currently having success in connecting with many homeless individuals who have agreed to 
coming to treatment. 
 
Regarding Item 7., the agreement is in response to a grant application submitted by the 
Bartlesville Police Department on April 16, 2024 which proposed a partnership with GRAND 
Mental Health to further the existing Crisis Intervention Response Team (CIRT) and the Parks 
and Pathfinder Program.  The grant will provide $120,000 to be spent over a two-year period 
which will expand the existing Police CIRT teams that provide increased patrolling along 
Pathfinder Parkway by including outreach team members from GRAND.  The program is 
intended to identify and engage with individuals experiencing homelessness and opioid 
addiction, or those at risk of opioid addiction, with the goal of getting them into treatment, 
recovery, and long-term housing solutions.  Two GRAND team members, who are Certified Peer 
Recovery Support Specialists will work with the Police CIRT team to build a rapport with these 
individuals that will result in getting them into services.  The program anticipates fifty (50) 
individuals across Bartlesville will benefit over the two-year grant term. 
 
Regarding Item 8., in order to accept the $120,000 in grant funding from the State of Oklahoma 
as per the FY 2024 Opioid Abatement Grant Award Agreement and then to disburse such 
funding to GRAND Mental Health as per the Contract for Services, a budget amendment must 
be approved by resolution. 

 
 Mr. Roszel inquired how this will be funded after 2024. Mr. Bailey stated that this is the first year 
of funding and there are more funds available. Chief Ickleberry added that funding would be 
sought in other areas if this particular funding ends. A brief discussion followed how the 
assistance works with those patrolling the pathfinder and the homeless and/or those addicted to 
opioids that are often found in that area. 
 

Mr. Schipper moved to approve the Contract for Services with Grant Mental Health as presented, 
seconded by Mr. Roszel. 
 
Voting Aye: Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Schipper, Vice Mayor Curd 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 
 



 
 
 

7. Discuss and take possible action to approve the FY 2024 Opioid Abatement Grant Award 
Agreement and Notice of Award with the State of Oklahoma to provide funding to abate 
the effects of the opioid epidemic within the City of Bartlesville. Presented by Lisa 
Beeman, Grant Coordinator. 
 
The report was provided under Item 6. by Chief Ickleberry. 
 
Mr. Dorsey moved to approve the FY 2024 Opioid Abatement Grant Award Agreement and 
Notice of Award with the State of Oklahoma as presented, seconded by Mr. Schipper. 
 

Voting Aye: Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Vice Mayor Curd 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 
 

8. Discuss and take possible action to approve a Resolution amending the Budget for the 
City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2024-2025, appropriating unanticipated 
grant revenue in the Restricted Revenues Fund of the Police Department for the FY 2024 
Opioid Abatement Grant Award Agreement. Presented by Lisa Beeman, Grant 
Coordinator. 
 
The report was provided under Item 6. by Chief Ickleberry. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to approve the Resolution as presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye: Mr. Schipper, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 
 

9. Discuss and take possible action to approve the Disaster Assistance Agreement for 
Emergency and Major Disasters between the State of Oklahoma and the City of 
Bartlesville related to the severe storms, straight line winds, tornados and flooding 
incident period of April 25, 2024 through May 9, 2024. Presented by Lisa Beeman, Grant 
Coordinator. 
 
Ms. Beeman reported that the Disaster Assistance Agreement provides assistance funds in the 
form of a reimbursement to the City of Bartlesville for labor, equipment, and other related cost 
that the City incurred for debris removal, emergency protective measures, and permanent work 
that was required in response to weather events during April 25, 2025 through May 9, 2024. The 
Police, Fire, and Public Works Departments are currently completing the damage inventories 
which will detail the actual costs of eligible expenditures incurred by the City. This agreement 
will provide a 75% reimbursement of those eligible expenditures. 
 
A brief discussion covered past events and disaster assistance. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to approve the Disaster Assistance Agreement as presented, seconded by 
Mr. Schipper. 
 
Voting Aye: Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mr. Schipper, Vice Mayor Curd 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 
 

10. City Manager and Staff Reports. 



 
 
 

 
Mr. Bailey stated his appreciation to the City Council for attending the special meeting. He 
reported on: 
 
Jerry Benedict’s last day as Golf Pro was Friday, August 16. The City took possession on the 
17th and is now running the golf course and pro shop. He thanked Ms. Sanders for her assistance 
during this time of transition. Vice Mayor Curd stated that he was looking forward to the 
consultant’s report. 
 
Tuxedo Bridge repairs can now move forward since the mussels have been moved to a new 
location.  
 
Temporary closures of Pathfinder have been necessary to make improvements. Mr. Bailey 
encouraged citizens to complete the Park and Recreation Survey that can be found on the City’s 
website. 
 
Mr. Bailey concluded by welcoming Lisa Beeman back as the City’s part-time grant coordinator. 
 

11. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd commended Ms. Beeman’s vision regarding the wayfinding and park signs that 
have been and continue to be installed. They are a great addition to our community. 
 
He also congratulated Mr. Baily on receiving the City Manager of the Year award. Mr. Bailey 
thanked him and stated what an honor it was to receive the award. He was additionally honored 
by the kind words local citizens have shared with him. Vice Mayor Curd stated he is a great 
leader, and he has a great team. Mr. Roszel also congratulated him. 
 

12. There being no further business to address, Vice Mayor Curd adjourned the meeting at 
6:08 p.m. 

 
 
                                                                            
        Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor 
 
 
 
                                                              
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

 



Agenda Item 7.b.i.







7.b.ii.





Agenda Item ___ 
September 3, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Snyder 
Community Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Reappoint Adam Hibdon to the City Planning Commission for his second three-year term. 
 
Attachments: None 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Adam Hibdon was appointed in September of 2021 to serve a three-year term on the City 
Planning Commission. Since then, Mr. Hibdon has demonstrated dedication and attentiveness in 
his service. As this term comes to an end, he has expressed a desire to continue contributing in 
this role. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Reappoint Adam Hibdon to the City Planning Commission for his second three-year term.  

7.b.iii.



Agenda Item ___ 
September 3, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Snyder 
Community Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Reappoint Kinder Shamhart to the Board of Adjustment for her second full three-year term. 
 
Attachments: None 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Kinder Shamhart was originally appointed in April of 2019 to fill the unexpired term of Zachary 
Merciez. That term expired October 2021. She was subsequently reappointed for her first full 
three-year term, which expires at the end of October 2024. Ms. Shamhart currently serves as 
Chair of the Board. She has been a committed and diligent member of the Board of Adjustment, 
and has indicated her interest in continuing to serve. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Reappoint Kinder Shamhart to the Board of Adjustment for her second three-year term.  

7.b.iv.



 7.c.i.









7.c.ii.















































































































flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  support@flocksafety.com

Infrastructure-Free and Discreet Design

Many of our devices run on solar power and LTE connectivity. They can be installed 
almost anywhere and blend in with your city’s aesthetic.

Safety-as-a-Service

We install and maintain the devices, so you can focus on running the city. That  
means we will support you from procurement, through permitting, and even  
preparing you to present this project to the City Council.

Vehicle Fingerprint® Technology

Flock Safety’s LPR system allows police officers to find vehicle evidence by vehicle 
type, make, color, and after-market features. It’s proven to increase case clearance 
and solve more crime.

Help your city reduce crime

with devices that capture 
objective evidence 24/7

Flock Safety provides an affordable, infrastructure-light public safety 
operating system for cities who want to reduce crime  within a principled 
framework. Our license plate recognition (LPR) cameras, audio detection 
sensors, situational awareness cameras, and FlockOS platform help 
everyone in a city — law enforcement, public officials, schools, 
businesses, and community members – work together in pursuit of  
a safer community.



flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  support@flocksafety.com

Join thousands of communities using Flock Safety

to eliminate crime and shape a safer future, together.

DETECT

Objective evidence


your police need

to solve crime.

DECODE 
footage with machine 
learning so your police


can investigate.

DELIVER

real-time to police


if a wanted or stolen 
vehicle drives by

Public Safety Technology Built with Principles

You own the footage
We can't share or sell it to private third parties.

Protect Privacy
All data automatically deletes by default every 30 days on a rolling basis and is encrypted.

Promote transparency and accountability
Flock provides a transparency portal to share data with your community about how the devices work on an ongoing basis.

Flock requires an investigative reason to search and logs searches in an audit report.

Clear pricing and infrastructure free
All the data is stored in the cloud at no additional fee and there are no hidden costs.

Protect the Whole Community
It takes all community members working together to eliminate crime, which is why we created a public private partnership that 
enables businesses, neighborhoods, schools, and others to partner with your city and police department to build your network.

“Flock Safety continues to enhance and help our police department 
capture  these vehicles and return the assets to their owners."
Josh mccurn
Council Member  |  Lexington, KY

Learn more



impact study

How Many Crimes Do 
Automated License 
Plate Readers (ALPRs) 
Solve, Anyway?



As Automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) technology 
has become more ubiquitous, discussion has shifted 
from the proven utility to understanding how they 
contribute to solving crimes. 

Recent studies highlight significant positive outcomes, 
such as increased follow-up arrests, identification of 
stolen vehicles, and improved case closure rates.



To better understand effective deployment and usage 
of ALPR cameras, Flock Safety, the leading provider of 
ALPR technology to 4,000+ communities across the 
United States, conducted a large-scale analysis of 
ALPR outcomes correlated with crime clearance and 
reduction data. 

HIGHLIGHTS

flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  media@flocksafety.com

Methodology
The study utilizes a comprehensive survey of Flock Safety ALPR customers, conducted from April to June 
2023. Individual agencies’ crime clearance data is analyzed in conjunction with FBI-reported crime data, 
employing multilinear regression to isolate the impact of ALPR-centric, agency-centric, and jurisdiction-
centric factors. The survey focuses on raw numbers of crimes solved, filtering out minor offenses. Data 
which did not meet rigorous criteria for inclusion are also filtered out, leading to 123 survey respondents, 
representing a diverse range of sizes and demographics, with sufficient granularity for analysis.



The study employs single and multilinear regression to identify factors most associated with ALPR-
assisted clearance rates. Notable findings include the importance of ALPR-centric factors, agency 
behavior, collaboration with other agencies, and surprising success in challenging environments.

10%

Flock Safety devices are 
now helping solve 10% of 
reported crime in the U.S.

200x

A typical agency that works with 
Flock will have access to more 
than 200 times the number of 

cameras that they own

9.1%

A typical agency that acquires 
an additional 1 Flock Device per 

Sworn Officer, may expect a 
9.1% increase in clearance rate



This research provides valuable insights into ALPR technology's impact on law 
enforcement outcomes. The identified factors can guide agencies in optimizing 
their use of ALPR technology for enhanced crime clearance rates.



Applying this framework to all of Flock’s customers and estimating the totals, 
over 700,000 crimes each year are solved using Flock Safety technology. This 
represents roughly 10% of reported crime nationwide. 



These findings warrant further research specifically examining the impact of 
ALPR usage on specific categories of crimes, especially in examining the before-
and-after impacts of those changes. Such a study is presently underway as part 
of a joint research project by Texas Christian University and the University of 
Texas at Tyler.



Read the full white paper, published on Researchgate.

Access to Evidence

Agencies with more Flock Devices per Sworn Officer and shared devices exhibit higher clearance rates, 
emphasizing the power of additional investigative evidence.

Agency Behavior

Broad access to ALPR technology within an agency correlates with higher success in solving crimes, 
highlighting the role of officers in the field and the importance of proper technology use. Agencies 
who provide Flock access and training to a broad spectrum of officers, from patrol to their 
investigative bureau and beyond, see more success with the technology. 

Collaboration with Other Agencies

Network effects, both locally and on a national scale, should agencies choose to engage in such, can play a 
significant role. In fact, the number of nearby Flock customers and shared devices per sworn officer may 
greatly impact clearance rates. As an example, the addition of 20 Flock customers near an agency can lead to 
a 1% increase in clearance rate.

Overcoming Challenging Environments

Agencies with fewer sworn officers and larger population areas achieve higher 
clearance rates when using ALPR, suggesting ALPR's effectiveness in addressing 
resource challenges. This is especially important when considering the current 
hiring and retention challenges that agencies across the country face. 

Key Findings

flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  media@flocksafety.com

https://www.researchgate.net/publication/377845222_Flock_Safety_Technologies_in_Law_Enforcement_An_Initial_Evaluation_of_Effectiveness_in_Aiding_Police_in_Real-World_Crime_Clearance


1
What is LPR?

Automatic License Plate Readers (LPR) have long helped law enforcement solve crimes. LPRs 
capture computer-readable images of license plates, allowing law enforcement agencies to 
compare plate numbers against those of stolen cars or cars driven by people suspected of being 
involved in criminal activities.



The information by LPR cameras can help determine whether a vehicle was at the crime scene and 
discover cars that may be associated with each other. Law enforcement agencies can choose to 
share their information with other agencies. The cameras can also integrate data from national or 
state crime databases to provide realtime alerts when a vehicle associated with a known suspect 
or a stolen vehicle passes the camera.



According to the National Conference of State Legislatures, when employed ethically and 
objectively, LPRs are an effective force-multiplying tool for law enforcement. A 2011 study by the 
Police Executive Research Forum concluded that LPRs used by Mesa, Ariz., Police resulted in 
“nearly three times as many ‘hits’ for stolen vehicles, and twice as many vehicle recoveries.”



Flock Safety communities have reported overall crime reductions of over 70 percent after a period 
of time utilizing the LPR system. In some areas, that included a 60 percent-plus reduction in non-
residential burglaries, an 80 percent reduction in residential burglary, and a 40 percent-plus 
reduction in robberies.

2
What is Flock Safety?

Flock Safety is a public safety operating system that helps cities, businesses, schools, and law 
enforcement in thousands of communities work together to stop crime, protect privacy, and 
mitigate bias. We build hardware and write software that captures the objective evidence police 
need to solve crimes. Thousands of communities across the country use our proprietary devices 
and cloud-based software to help law enforcement solve upwards of 5 percent of all reported 
crime in America.

1
What is LPR?

License Plate Readers (LPR) have long helped law enforcement solve crimes. LPRs capture 
computer-readable images of license plates, allowing law enforcement agencies to compare plate 
numbers against those of stolen cars or cars driven by people suspected of being involved in 
criminal activities.



The information by LPR cameras can help determine whether a vehicle was at the crime scene and 
discover cars that may be associated with each other. Law enforcement agencies can choose to 
share their information with other agencies. The cameras can also integrate data from national or 
state crime databases to provide realtime alerts when a vehicle associated with a known suspect 
or a stolen vehicle passes the camera.



According to the National Conference of State Legislatures, when employed ethically and 
objectively, LPRs are an effective force-multiplying tool for law enforcement. A 2011 study by the 
Police Executive Research Forum concluded that LPRs used by Mesa, Ariz., Police resulted in 
“nearly three times as many ‘hits’ for stolen vehicles, and twice as many vehicle recoveries.”



A comprehensive study conducted with oversight from independent criminology research experts 
found a clear correlation between Flock technology and increased case clearance rates.

2
What is Flock Safety?

Flock Safety is an all-in-one technology solution to eliminate crime and keep your community safe. 
Our intelligent platform combines the power of communities at scale – including cities, businesses, 
schools, and law enforcement agencies – to shape a safer future together.   

Our full-service, maintenance-free technology solution is trusted by more than 4,000 communities 
across the country to help solve and deter crime in the pursuit of safer communities for everyone. 
Visit www.flocksafety.com for more info. 

About Flock Safety
Frequently Asked Questions

flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  support@flocksafety.com



3
Who does Flock Safety serve?

Flock Safety serves HOAs, neighborhood associations, businesses, law enforcement agencies, 
schools, cities, counties, and states to provide them with the tools they need to increase the 
effectiveness of their public safety efforts, target crime efficiently and objectively, and help provide 
the information police need to stop crime.

4
Where is Flock Safety located?

There are thousands of Flock Safety communities across the U.S. We can service customers 
almost anywhere across the U.S. with our local teams strategically located in cities across the 
country.Flock Safety is headquartered in Atlanta and has over 700 employees across the U.S.

5
What is the Flock Safety Falcon®?

The Flock Safety Falcon® is a solar-powered, motion-activated, and infrastructure-free camera 
that leverages Flock’s proprietary Vehicle Fingerprint® technology to identify and take a snapshot 
of the critical details of a vehicle that passes by it. 



The Flock Safety Falcon® captures the make, vehicle type, color, license plate  
(full, partial, or missing), state of the license plate, and the vehicle's unique  
features, including damage and after-market alterations.   

They are connected to the cloud through LTE, like a mobile phone, and  
perform 24/7 in any weather.



Flock Safety LPR cameras leverage the FBI's National Crime Information Center  
(NCIC) federal and state hotlist, which are updated at least every 24 hours,  
to send real-time alerts to nearby law enforcement officers when a wanted  
or stolen vehicle is detected. Officers can then verify that information  
with their dispatch to safely make arrests and recover stolen property.   

They also integrate with the National Center for Missing and Exploited  
Children's AMBER Alert database to help locate missing individuals,  
and can be used in the event of a Silver Alert in the same capacity.

flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  support@flocksafety.com



flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  support@flocksafety.com

6
What makes Flock Safety LPR unique?

While traditional automated license plate reading (LPR) cameras are an effective crimefighting option, 
they are also extremely expensive. The $10,000-$40,000 price tag is unrealistic for many of Flock 
Safety's customers.



As a more affordable option, Flock Safety cameras employ best-in-class LPR and machine learning 
technology. Flock cameras have an intentionally short shutter speed, which allows the camera to 
start taking pictures in less than a tenth of a second following vehicle motion sensing and to capture 
multiple frames of a car traveling up to 75 MPH. 



The camera's infrared captures highly-accurate, clear images day or night. The machine learning 
allows the camera to capture vehicle information beyond the license plate — valuable evidence like 
vehicle make, type, color, and unusual characteristics. 



In side-by-side tests, Flock Safety technology consistently performs above competitors. In a study 
conducted by a neutral law enforcement agency, Flock Safety produced 30% more accurate reads 
than the competition.



Additionally, Flock Safety LPR is infrastructure-free, powered by solar and connected

through LTE. The flat annual fee covers installation, maintenance, data, security, and

customer service.



Lastly, Flock Safety is in the top echelon of the industry for privacy, transparency, and security. Flock 
Safety data will never be shared without permission, sold to third parties, or used for unpaid fines, 
unauthorized viewing outside of a legitimate crime-related event, or kept in a library. The footage is 
fully encrypted and stored in the cloud. All footage is deleted after 30 days on a rolling basis, unless 
a democratically-elected governing body or official legislates a different retention period.

7
How does Flock Safety's LPR help promote transparency  
and objectivity in policing?

Flock Safety technology is purpose-built to remove human bias from crime-solving. The LPR 
cameras and machine learning technology are engineered to capture vehicle characteristics, types, 
and license plates, which are then checked against state and federal records to ensure accuracy 
and minimize errors.



The LPR cameras take still images of cars passing through the lens (not video) and cannot follow or 
track vehicles once they leave the camera’s view.



Flock Safety DOES NOT record names, phone numbers, or addresses and doesn’t mark specific 
locations where people have been. There is no capability in the system to mark or annotate the 
locations of passersby.



Finally, Flock Safety is built to enable and encourage transparency, with several features that 
create robust audit capability. Both private and law enforcement customers must enter a reason for 
each search made through the Flock Safety system. That search history can be easily displayed for 
a community or law enforcement leadership to see what the Flock system has been used for.





flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  support@flocksafety.com

Flock Safety has also created the first free, optional LPR Transparency Portal to serve as a hub for 
a police agency’s LPR usage, data retention, and search policies. Any law enforcement customer 
can access the LPR Transparency Portal.



Flock Safety is committed to building technology, tools, and a team that treats all people equitably, 
regardless of race, ethnicity, class, background, and orientation. We believe that everyone has a 
right to public safety.

8
What is the Flock Safety Raven® audio sensor?

The Flock Safety Raven® is an audio detection device that pairs with the Flock Safety Falcon® LPR 
camera for law enforcement who want to decrease response times and increase case clearance.



Unlike single-point gunshot detection and traditional LPR, which segment evidence into silos, the 
Flock Safety Raven® recognizes the sound of gunshots, immediately calls 911, and consolidates 
actionable LPR and audio evidence into one streamlined system so first responders can save lives 
and collect crucial evidence that solves crime.

9
How does the Flock Safety Raven® work?

The Flock Safety Raven® provides law enforcement agencies an affordable, infrastructure-light 
option for gunshot detection. It wakes when it detects a gunshot and is connected to a Flock 
Safety Falcon® LPR camera, activating the camera when it detects a crime in progress to capture 
the vehicle(s) on scene, and helping police build a more robust case.



The Flock Safety Raven® is solar and LTE-powered and can be deployed to mirror the structure  
of your community.

10
Does the Flock Safety Raven® capture personal information?

No. The Flock Safety Raven® is intended to capture loud sounds indicative of a crime in progress,  
not human voices or conversations. The audio clip is only a few seconds long, not long enough for any 
meaningful portion of identifiable audio to be captured. Sounds and data collected by the Flock Safety 
Raven® are subject to the same privacy and security standards as that of Flock Safety LPR devices.



Our commitment to protecting the whole community

Flock Safety helps thousands of cities prevent and eliminate crime with technology that 
captures objective evidence and delivers it into the hands that serve and protect. In our 
pursuit of a safer society, we place our commitment to protecting individual privacy and 
mitigating bias at the core of every policy and product we develop.

We focus on protecting privacy and enabling accountability

 Flock devices only capture objective evidence, whether vehicular, 
audio, or video. Flock does not enable predictive policing

 Flock devices do not connect to databases to identify name, 
identifiers, addresses, or other information about people

 The system always requires a documented search reason or case 
number every time a user accesses Flock data, creating a 
permanent audit trail for every user.

 Customers own 100% of all data captured on our devices. We 
never share or sell data with third parties

 All images and metadata are encrypted in the cloud for maximum 
security compliance.

 Flock has created the first LPR Transparency Portal, provided to 
customers optionally for free, to document LPR usage, policies, 
and ROI for their community.

flocksafety.com
(866) 901-1781  |  support@flocksafety.com

Privacy Commitment
Let’s defeat crime together.



7.c.iii.











































7.c.iv.

































































1 
 

 

Agenda Item ___ 
                  August 27, 2024 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities 
 

 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of a professional service contract with Brown Engineers for the high 
service pump variable frequency drive replacement at the water treatment plant. 

Attachments: 
Proposal from Brown Engineers 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

One of the capital projects approved this fiscal year through the Water Plant Capital 
Reserve Fund is to replace the variable frequency drives for the high service pumps.  
The water plant has five high service pumps that move water from the treatment 
plant into the distribution system – each can pump up to 10 million gallons of water 
per day.  Two of these high service pumps have variable frequency drives (VFD) for 
the motor control, which allow the pumps to be regulated to vary the flow based on 
demand.  These existing VFD’s were installed in 2006 with the original plant 
construction and repair parts can no longer be secured for these models.   Due to 
Brown Engineers’ work on previous projects at the water plant – they designed the 
arcflash, hardening and uninterrupted power supply system for the plant’s electrical 
system in 2015, staff requested a proposal to design/specify the replacement VFD’s.  
The proposal, which is attached, will provide the requested design services for 
$24,000.   

 
III. BUDGET IMPACT 

Funding for the professional services will be through the Water Plant Capital Reserve 
Fund, which has $400,000 budgeted for this project.  The proposed design services 
($24,000) is within the available budget for the project. 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of the professional service contract with Brown Engineers 
for the high service pump variable frequency drive replacement at the water treatment 
plant. 

 7.c.v.



17200 Chenal Pkwy. Suite 300, PMB 324 
Little Rock, Arkansas 72223 

501-448-0100 
www.BrownEngineers.net 

 
 

 
  

August 13, 2024 
 
Mr. Terry Lauritsen, PE 
Director of Water Utilities 
401 South Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
Re: WTP High Service Pump VFD Replacement 
 Electrical Engineering Services 
  
Dear Terry: 
 
We are pleased to propose our services for the electrical design of the above referenced project.   
This letter will describe our proposed scope of services, performance schedule, and payment 
terms. 
 
Scope of Services 
The scope of our services will include electrical engineering design services to accomplish the 
following:  
 

Ø Site trip for field investigation 
Ø VFD replacement for (2) 400 HP 4160-volt high service pumps 
Ø Shop Drawing Review (hourly as requested) 
Ø Technical Specifications 

 
Items excluded 

 Construction Administration 
  

Items Furnished by Bartlesville 
 Project bidding services. 

 
Engineering work will begin upon receipt of signed Proposal and be completed on a mutually 
agreeable schedule.   For the engineering services listed above we propose to work for the fee 
below.  Invoices will be prepared monthly based on percent complete.  Invoices are due upon 
receipt.  
 

  Fee 
Electrical engineering design services $24,000 
Submittal Review (additional services) Hourly 

 
Any additional services beyond the scope of work specifically listed herein would be performed 
as requested based on current hourly rates plus reimbursable expenses such as printing and 
parking, at a direct rate or as a negotiated lump sum agreement.   
 



  

General Considerations 
The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services performed or furnished 
under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily used by members of the profession 
practicing under similar circumstances at the same time and in the same locality.  Engineer 
makes no warranties, express or implied, under this Agreement, in connection with Engineer’s  
services.  Engineer and its consultants may use or rely upon the design services of others, 
including but not limited to contractors, manufacturers, and suppliers.   
 
Engineer shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any contractor, subcontractor, or 
supplier or any of contractor’s agents or employees or any other persons (except Engineer’s own 
employees) at the Project site or otherwise furnishing or performing any construction work; or 
for any decision made on interpretations or clarifications of the construction contract given by 
Owner without consultation and advice of Engineer.   
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Owner and Engineer (1) waive against each other any and 
all claims for consequential damages arising out of or resulting from the Project, and (2) agree that 
the scope of the Engineer’s total liability under this Agreement shall be limited to the scope of 
Professional Design Services provided.   
Please indicate your acceptance of this proposal by signing below.  Your acceptance of this 
proposal indicates authority to proceed with the work.   

 
If you have any questions, please give us a call. 

 
Sincerely, 
 
BROWN ENGINEERS, LLC   
 

 
 
Bruce Brown, P.E.  
Principal 
 
 
 
Accepted for City of Bartlesville:  
 
 
_______________________             ________________ 
Name      Date 
 

 



Exhibit A - Hourly Rates 

Brown Engineers, LLC        A-1 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS AND HOURLY RATES 

January 2024 through December 2024 
BROWN ENGINEERS, LLC 

 
 
 

CLASSIFICATION    HOURLY RATE 
 

Senior Project Manager / Principal ............................... $253.00 
 
Project Manager ............................................................ $248.00 
 
Sr. Project Engineer ...................................................... $217.00 
 
Project Engineer ........................................................... $204.00 

 
Sr. Design Engineer ...................................................... $175.00 
 
Design Engineer ........................................................... $144.00 

 
Senior Designer ............................................................ $175.00 
 
Designer ........................................................................ $144.00 

 
Technician I .................................................................. $117.00 
 
Sr. Technician II ........................................................... $138.00 

 
Clerical / Administration .............................................. $104.00 

 
 

 
Automation Engineering & System Integration Services 
 
System Integrator* .......................................................  $145.00 
 
Sr. System Integrator* .................................................  $175.00 
 
Certified Automation Professional* ............................  $198.00 
 
 
*Ignition Certified 

 
 
 



Agenda Item _____ 
August 28, 2024 

Prepared by Greg Collins 
Special Projects Manager 

Community Development Department 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Family YMCA of Bartlesville, setting out the 
roles and responsibilities for implementing the 2021 CDBG-Coronavirus Relief Program 
Grant modification for rehabilitation of facilities to improve indoor air quality. 
 
Attachment:  Agreement 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
In April 2021, the City was awarded the 2021 Community Development Block Grant – 
Coronavirus Relief Program Grant. The Grant provides funding for activities that address the 
health and economic challenges that were brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic. The grant 
was originally for rent and utility bill assistance and mental health assistance to low to 
moderate income residents affected by the pandemic.   
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and Oklahoma Department of 
Commerce later broadened the scope of the grant program to include rehabilitation of 
commercial or public facilities, to improve indoor air quality and ventilation to prevent the 
spread of Coronavirus and other airborne illness or disease.  The City’s grant was modified to 
provide funds for this purpose. 
 
The local non-profit, YMCA, plans to utilize grant funds to improve air quality at its facility 
at 101 N. Osage Avenue, through installation and replacement of their HVAC system and 
windows.  The grant has strict rules on eligibility for assistance and the documentation that 
must be collected. To assure that the City and YMCA both understand their roles and 
responsibilities in implementing the grant, staff has prepared an Agreement.  The Agreement 
sets forth the procedures that will be followed by both parties to assure that the process will 
flow smoothly. It has been reviewed and approved by the YMCA Staff and Board. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

City staff recommends approval of the attached Agreement. 

7.c.vi.



Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Family YMCA of Bartlesville -- Page 1 of 2 
 

Agreement 
between 

The City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
and 

Family YMCA of Bartlesville 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (hereinafter referred to 
as “CITY”) and Family YMCA of Bartlesville (hereinafter referred to as “YMCA”) collectively referred to as 
the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, CITY has been awarded a grant in the amount of $936,189.33 from the FY 2021 Community 
Development Block Grant – Coronavirus Relief (hereinafter referred to as “CDBG-CV”) Program (Contract 
#18111 CDBG CR 20); and 
 
WHEREAS, the CDBG-CV grant project funding period is from April 1, 2021 through December 31, 2024; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, part of the CDBG-CV grant is to be used for rehabilitation of public facilities and the 
improvement of air quality in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and  
 
WHEREAS, YMCA plans to use grant funds to replace and install heating, ventilation and air conditioning 
units and systems and windows at its facility located at 101 N. Osage Avenue, Bartlesville, Oklahoma; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITY and YMCA want to formalize their relationship by agreeing upon mutual expectations;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and commitments herein, the Parties 
agree as follows:  
 
1. CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

a. CITY, as Grant Subrecipient, shall assist YMCA in obtaining disbursement of the CDBG-CV 
funds from the Oklahoma Department of Commerce (ODOC), and inform YMCA of applicable 
laws, regulations, policies, and procedures of the CDBG-CV grant program, described in the 
CDBG-CV Coronavirus Program Policies and Procedures Manual, Updated February 2023, and 
the Community Development Block Grant Project Management Guide Policies and Procedures, 
Updated November 2023, and any applicable updates. 

 
2. YMCA RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
a. YMCA shall use grant funds only for the purposes authorized under the CDBG-CV grant program 

and as set forth in the grant award. 
 

b. YMCA shall keep records and provide CITY with any documentation and information needed for 
a request to ODOC for payment or reimbursement of CDBG-CV funds, or for a possible audit, or 
for other purposes required under the CDBG-CV program. 
 

c. Within 14 days of the end of the grant project funding period, YMCA shall repay CITY any CITY 
or CDBG-CV funds that have not been expended, if any. 

 
d. YMCA shall comply with the regulations, policies, and procedures of the CDBG-CV grant 

program and will be financially responsible for any necessary repayment to the CITY, ODOC, or 



Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Family YMCA of Bartlesville -- Page 2 of 2 
 

the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) resulting from YMCA’s non-
compliance. 

 
3. This agreement terminates at the end of the required maintenance of records time period required by 

ODOC, under its CDBG-CV Coronavirus Program Policies and Procedures Manual, Updated February 
2023, currently stated as three (3) years after ODOC closes the CDBG-CV program with HUD, said time 
period subject to ODOC revision of its policies and procedures or change in applicable law or regulation. 

 
 

SIGNATURES 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Bartlesville and the authorized representative of Family YMCA of 
Bartlesville have executed this Agreement on this _____ day of __________, 2024, the effective date of this 
Agreement.  
 
 
FAMILY YMCA OF BARTLESVILLE 
 
By   ___________________________________ 
       (Signature) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
      (Printed Name) 
 
       ___________________________________ 
      (Title) 
 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
 
 
By   __________________________________ 
 
 
        Dale Copeland, Mayor 
 
 
 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this  
 
_________ day of __________________________, 
2024. 
   
 ____________________________________ 
   NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
My Commission Expires:  ___________________ 
Commission Number:        ___________________ 
 
(SEAL/STAMP) 
 
 
 

       ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
 
       City Clerk 
 
       (City Seal) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Agenda Item ___ 
August 28, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approval of a design contract with Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. for engineering design for 
rehabilitation of four different concrete streets included in the 2023 issuance of the 2020 General 
Obligation Bond. 
 
Attachments: 

Kimley-Horn contract with scope of work and fees 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The 2023 issuance of the 2020 General Obligation Bond (GO Bond) included concrete street 
rehabilitation projects on four different streets.  The streets included are Highland from Sunset 
to Aledo, Wilshire and Waverly from Frank Phillips to State, and Oakdale from Brookside 
Parkway to Woodland.  Staff has chosen to design, bid and construct these projects as one larger 
concrete street rehabilitation package.  All projects were identified as priority projects except for 
Highland which is a discretionary project.  Each project consists of replacing 80% to 90% of the 
concrete panels within the project limits. Minor amounts of curb and gutter will be replaced as 
needed. 
 
Staff has negotiated a contract with Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. (Kimley-Horn) for 
engineering design services on this project.  The scope of work includes production of 
construction documents and bidding services.  While we have not worked with Kimley-Horn on 
a street rehabilitation project, the City contracted with them for design services on the Frontier 
and Sooner Pool renovation projects.  
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The approved budgets for the projects are as follows: 
 
 Highland (Sunset to Aledo)    $575,000 
 Wilshire/Waverly (Frank Phillips to State)  $550,000 
 Oakdale (Brookside Parkway to Woodland)  $275,000 
  
The total budget for the project is $1,400,000.  Design services were factored into the budgets to 
use if necessary.  Historically, this type of design work has been completed with Engineering 
Department staff, but with the current workload and staffing, the intent is to expedite projects by 
contracting out design.  Kimley-Horn’s proposal of $30,500.00 is just over 2.1% of the total 
budget for the project which is excellent.  The relatively low fee can be attributed to a fairly 
simple design package needed for a rehabilitation project like this as opposed to some projects 

7.c.vii.



that require more detailed design. The only impact to the budget will be utilizing funding set 
aside specifically for these projects as part of the 2023 issuance of the 2020 G.O. Bond. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends awarding the design contract for the 2023 GO Bond Concrete Street 
Rehabilitation projects to Kimley-Horn & Associates, Inc. in the amount of $30,500.00. 



 

kimley-horn.com 1437 S. Boulder Ave., Suite 930, Tulsa, OK 74119 (918) 209-3191 

 

August 28, 2024 
 
 
Micah Siemers, P.E., CFM 
Director of Engineering 
City of Bartlesville 
401 S Johnstone Ave 
Bartlesville, OK  74003 
 
Re: Letter Agreement for Professional Services for 
 Residential Streets Concrete Panel Replacement (Proj. No. 2024057) 
 Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 
Dear Mr. Micah Siemers: 
 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. (“Kimley-Horn” or “Consultant”) submits this Letter Agreement 
(“Agreement”) to the City of Bartlesville (“Client” or “OWNER”) for providing construction documents for 
repairs to various residential streets within the City of Bartlesville (“Project”).   
 
Project Understanding 
 
The CONSULTANT understands that the OWNER has retained the Consultant in order to prepare 
Construction Documents for repairs to various residential streets within the City of Bartlesville. Work 
shall consist of the following: preparation of AutoCAD base map/drawing from aerial imagery 
(NearMap) and GIS data provided by the OWNER; identification of potential improvements (i.e. 
concrete pavement panels, curb, curb and gutter, sidewalk, curb ramps, inlets, and adjusting manholes 
and valves boxes to grade) for replacement and/or rehabilitation; and preparation of construction 
documents.  
 
Scope of Services 
 
Kimley-Horn will provide the services specifically set forth below. 
 
The project consists of repairs to the following residential streets: Highland Drive – Brentwood Road to 
Aledo Drive, Wilshire Ave – Frank Phillips Blvd to State Street, Waverly Ave – Frank Phillips Blvd to 
State Street and Oakdale Drive – Brookside Parkway to Woodland Road referencing current City of 
Bartlesville specifications, ODOT specifications and MUTCD requirements. 
 
The CONSULTANT shall provide a base map drawing, in AutoCAD (version 2020 or newer), consisting 
of the following: 
 

• Prepare an AutoCAD base map/drawing from aerial imagery (using NearMap) for use in plan 
preparation.  

 
• Utilize GIS data provided by the OWNER to show edge of pavement lines, right-of-way and lot 

lines, and street addresses. 
 

• Show sidewalk and ramps from aerial imagery and review/verify edge of pavement linework 
and concrete panel joints provided by the OWNER by comparing it with NearMap aerial 



Page 2 

kimley-horn.com 1437 S. Boulder Ave., Suite 930, Tulsa, OK 74119 (918) 209-3191 

 

imagery. 
 
The CONSULTANT shall provide construction documents, consisting of the following: 
 

• Identification and quantification of elements (concrete pavement panels, curb, curb and gutter, 
sidewalk, curb ramps, inlets, and adjusting manholes and valves boxes to grade) requiring 
replacement and/or rehabilitation.  Sidewalk replacement shall be determined by visual 
inspection. Curb ramps shall be added in locations where sidewalks exist. 

 
• Preparation of construction plans and development of an opinion of probable construction cost 

for bidding purposes along with an Excel spreadsheet for the OWNER to utilize in preparation 
of the Bidding Documents. One construction plan set shall be prepared. 

 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE/MANAGERIAL DUTIES: CONSULTANT shall be responsible to perform the 
following tasks throughout the course of the PROJECT: 
 

• Document meetings, conferences, coordination, phone conversations, etc. and send 
documentation to OWNER within three (3) calendar days, as requested, for up to three (3) 
meetings. This project includes up to one (1) plan review meeting to be conducted. 

 
• Meet with the OWNER in a Pre-Design Conference in order to determine design criteria, 

requirements and codes and other critical design features of the Project such as project 
schedule and milestone dates.     

 
• Meet with the OWNER to discuss review comments for the Preliminary phase of the project 

and incorporate appropriate comments into the following phase. 
 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE (TASK 1): Upon receiving the written Notice to Proceed, the 
CONSULTANT shall perform the following tasks: 
 

• PRELIMINARY PLANS: 
 

• Incorporate GIS data provided by the OWNER into AutoCAD base map. Review 
edge of pavement lines and concrete panel joints by comparing it with NearMap 
aerial imagery. 

 
• Incorporate miscellaneous details (used in previous City of Bartlesville concrete 

panel replacement projects) provided by the OWNER into the plan sets. 
 

• Perform virtual office investigation followed by a field investigation to verify, 
identify, delineate and quantify elements (i.e. concrete pavement panels, curb, 
curb and gutter, sidewalk, curb ramps, inlets, and adjusting manholes and valves 
boxes to grade) perceived by the CONSULTANT to require replacement and/or 
rehabilitation. 

 
• Prepare preliminary drawings for both proposed construction plan sets. 

 Title Sheet 
 Typical Section(s) 



Page 3 

kimley-horn.com 1437 S. Boulder Ave., Suite 930, Tulsa, OK 74119 (918) 209-3191 

 

 Pay Items and Notes Sheet 
 Sheet Key Map 
 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan Detail 
 Paving Repair Plan Sheets (delineating and quantifying proposed elements for 

replacement and/or rehabilitation) 
 Miscellaneous Details 

 
• Submit a half-size (11” x 17”) PDF of both sets of preliminary plans for review by 

the OWNER. 
 

• Submit an opinion of probable construction cost in PDF format for both sets of 
plans. 

 
• Attend one (1) review meeting responding to one (1) round of joint comments. 

 

• FINAL PLANS: 
 

• Incorporate preliminary plan review comments and finalize the construction 
documents for the final design phase of the project. 

 
• Prepare bid document quantities, in Excel format, in units compatible with OWNER 

requirements. 
 

• For both plan sets, submit one (1) signed/sealed unbound set of half-size (11” x 
17”) drawings on bond paper, a PDF copy of the plans, and one (1) set of final 
drawings on electronic media (AutoCAD 2020 or newer), one (1) set of special 
construction specifications, if needed, in PDF format, and the final opinion of 
probable construction cost in PDF format.  

 
BIDDING PHASE ASSISTANCE (TASK 2): Upon receiving the written Notice to Proceed, the 
CONSULTANT shall perform the following tasks: 
 

• Assist OWNER in answering technical questions, preparing addenda and addenda plan 
sheets, as required. This task assumes up to 12 hours, additional hours will be billed as an 
additional service. 

 
 
 
Additional Services 
 
Any services not specifically provided for in the above scope will be billed as additional services and 
performed at Kimley-Horn’s then-current hourly rates.  Additional services Kimley-Horn can provide 
include, but are not limited to, the following:  
 
CONSTRUCTION ASSISTANCE PHASE: This phase is considered an additional service not included 
in the Scope of Services and will be negotiated with the CONSULTANT upon the request of the 
OWNER.   
 
Information Provided By Client 



Page 4 

kimley-horn.com 1437 S. Boulder Ave., Suite 930, Tulsa, OK 74119 (918) 209-3191 

 

 
Kimley-Horn shall be entitled to rely on the completeness and accuracy of all information provided by 
the Client or the Client’s consultants or representatives.  The Client shall provide all information 
requested by Kimley-Horn during the project, including but not limited to the following:   
 

• GIS data to show edge of pavement lines, right-of-way and lot lines, and street addresses. 
 
Schedule 
 
Kimley-Horn will perform the services as expeditiously as practicable with the goal of meeting a mutually 
agreed upon schedule.  
 
Fee and Expenses 
 
Kimley-Horn will perform the services in Tasks 1-2 for the total lump sum fee below. Individual task 
amounts are informational only.  All permitting, application, and similar project fees will be paid directly 
by the Client. 
 

Task Number & Name  Fee Type 

1 Construction Documents Phase $25,500.00 Lump Sum 

2 Assistance During Bidding Phase $5,000.00 Lump Sum 

Total $30,500.00 

 
 
Lump sum fees will be invoiced monthly based upon the overall percentage of services performed.  
Payment will be due within 25 days of your receipt of the invoice and should include the invoice number 
and Kimley-Horn project number. 
 
Closure 
 
In addition to the matters set forth herein, our Agreement shall include and be subject to, and only to, 
the attached Standard Provisions, which are incorporated by reference.  As used in the Standard 
Provisions, "Kimley-Horn" shall refer to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., and "Client" shall refer to 
The City of Bartlesville.   
 
Kimley-Horn, in an effort to expedite invoices and reduce paper waste, submits invoices via email in a 
PDF.  We can also provide a paper copy via regular mail if requested.  Please include the invoice 
number and Kimley-Horn project number with all payments.  Please provide the following information: 
 

____  Please email all invoices to ___________________________ 
 
____  Please copy _______________________________________ 
 

 
To ensure proper set up of your projects so that we can get started, please complete and return with 
the signed copy of this Agreement the attached Request for Information.  Failure to supply this 
information could result in delay in starting work on this project. 



Page 5 

kimley-horn.com 1437 S. Boulder Ave., Suite 930, Tulsa, OK 74119 (918) 209-3191 

 

 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide these services.  Please contact me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
 
 
Printed Name:  Rusty Akerman P.E.   Printed Name:  Luke Schmidt, P.E., PTOE 
 
Title:  Project Manager     Title:  Contract Specialist 
 
 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE     

 

SIGNED:                                                             

 

PRINTED NAME: _______________________  

 

TITLE:_________________________________ 

 

DATE: _______________________________ 

 
 
Client’s Federal Tax ID: _______________________ 
Client’s Business License No.: __________________ 
Client’s Street Address: 401 S Johnstone Ave, Bartlesville, OK  74003 
Attachment – Request for Information 
Attachment – Standard Provisions 
  



Page 6 

kimley-horn.com 1437 S. Boulder Ave., Suite 930, Tulsa, OK 74119 (918) 209-3191 

 

Request for Information 
Please return this information with your signed contract; failure to provide this information could result 

in delay in starting your project 
 
Client Identification 

Full, Legal Name of Client  
 

Mailing Address for Invoices  
 

Contact for Billing Inquiries  
Contact’s Phone and e-mail  
Client is (check one) Owner  Agent for Owner  Unrelated to 

Owner 
 

 
 
Property Identification 

 Parcel 1 Parcel 2 Parcel 3 Parcel 4 
Street Address 
 
 

    

County in which 
Property is Located 

    

Tax Assessor’s 
Number(s) 

    

 
 
Property Owner Identification 

 Owner 1 Owner 2 Owner 3 Owner 4 
Owner(s) Name 
 

    

Owner(s) Mailing 
Address 
 

    

Owner’s Phone No.     
Owner of Which 
Parcel #? 

    

 
Project Funding Identification – List Funding Sources for the Project 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Attach additional sheets if there are more than 4 parcels or more than 4 owners 

 
 
 
  



 

Rev 07/2024 

1 

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

STANDARD PROVISIONS 

 

1) Kimley-Horn's Scope of Services and Additional Services.  Kimley-Horn will perform only the services 
specifically described in this Agreement (“Services”).  Any services that are not set forth in the scope of 
Services described herein will constitute additional services (“Additional Services”).  If requested by the Client 
and agreed to by Kimley-Horn, Kimley-Horn will perform Additional Services, which shall be governed by 
these provisions.  Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the Client shall pay Kimley-Horn for any Additional 
Services an amount based upon Kimley-Horn’s then-current hourly rates plus an amount to cover certain 
direct expenses including telecommunications, in-house reproduction, postage, supplies, project related 
computer time, and local mileage.  Other direct expenses will be billed at 1.15 times cost.     

 
2) Client's Responsibilities.  In addition to other responsibilities herein or imposed by law, the Client shall: 

a. Designate in writing a person to act as its representative, such person having complete authority to transmit 
instructions, receive information, and make or interpret the Client's decisions. 

b. Provide all information and criteria as to the Client's requirements, objectives, and expectations for the project 
and all standards of development, design, or construction. 

c. Provide Kimley-Horn all available studies, plans, or other documents pertaining to the project, such as 
surveys, engineering data, environmental information, etc., all of which Kimley-Horn may rely upon. 

d. Arrange for access to the site and other property as required for Kimley-Horn to provide its services. 
e. Review all documents or reports presented by Kimley-Horn and communicate decisions pertaining thereto 

within a reasonable time so as not to delay Kimley-Horn. 
f. Furnish approvals and permits from governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the project and 

approvals and consents from other parties as may be necessary. 
g. Obtain any independent accounting, legal, insurance, cost estimating, and feasibility services required by 

Client. 
h. Give prompt written notice to Kimley-Horn whenever the Client becomes aware of any development that 

affects Kimley-Horn's services or any defect or noncompliance in any aspect of the project. 
 
3) Period of Services.  Unless otherwise stated herein, Kimley-Horn will begin work after receipt of a properly 

executed copy of this Agreement.  This Agreement assumes conditions permitting continuous and orderly 
progress through completion of the services.  Times for performance shall be extended as necessary for 
delays or suspensions due to circumstances that Kimley-Horn does not control. If such delay or suspension 
extends for more than six months, Kimley-Horn’s compensation shall be renegotiated. 

 
4) Method of Payment.  Client shall pay Kimley-Horn as follows:  

a. Invoices will be submitted periodically for services performed and expenses incurred.  Payment of each 
invoice will be due within 25 days of receipt.  The Client shall also pay any applicable sales tax.  All retainers 
will be held by Kimley-Horn and applied against the final invoice.  Interest will be added to accounts not paid 
within 25 days at the maximum rate allowed by law.  If the Client fails to make any payment due under this 
or any other agreement within 30 days after Kimley-Horn's transmittal of its invoice, Kimley-Horn may, after 
giving notice to the Client, suspend services and withhold deliverables until all amounts due are paid.  

b. The Client will remit all payments electronically to: 
Account Name:  KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 
Bank Name and Address:  WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A., SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94104 
Account Number:  2073089159554 
ABA#:  121000248 

c. The Client will send the project number, invoice number and other remittance information by e-mail to 
payments@kimley-horn.com at the time of payment.  

d. If the Client relies on payment or proceeds from a third party to pay Kimley-Horn and Client does not pay 
Kimley-Horn’s invoice within 60 days of receipt, Kimley-Horn may communicate directly with such third party 
to secure payment. 

e. If the Client objects to an invoice, it must advise Kimley-Horn in writing giving its reasons within 14 days of 
receipt of the invoice or the Client’s objections will be waived, and the invoice shall conclusively be deemed 
due and owing.  If the Client objects to only a portion of the invoice, payment for all other portions remains 
due. 

f. If Kimley-Horn initiates legal proceedings to collect payment, it shall recover, in addition to all amounts due, 
its reasonable attorneys' fees, reasonable experts' fees, and other expenses related to the proceedings.  



 

Rev 07/2024 

2 

Such expenses shall include the cost, at Kimley-Horn's normal hourly billing rates, of the time devoted to 
such proceedings by its employees. 

g. The Client agrees that the payment to Kimley-Horn is not subject to any contingency or condition.  Kimley-
Horn may negotiate payment of any check tendered by the Client, even if the words “in full satisfaction” or 
words intended to have similar effect appear on the check without such negotiation being an accord and 
satisfaction of any disputed debt and without prejudicing any right of Kimley-Horn to collect additional 
amounts from the Client. 

 
5) Use of Deliverables.  All documents, data, and other deliverables prepared by Kimley-Horn are related 

exclusively to the services described in this Agreement and may be used only if the Client has satisfied all 
of its obligations under this Agreement.  They are not intended or represented to be suitable for use or reuse 
by the Client or others on extensions of this project or on any other project.  Any modifications by the Client 
to any of Kimley-Horn’s deliverables, or any reuse of the deliverables without written authorization by Kimley-
Horn will be at the Client's sole risk and without liability to Kimley-Horn, and the Client shall indemnify, defend 
and hold Kimley-Horn harmless from all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to 
attorneys' fees, resulting therefrom.  Kimley-Horn’s electronic files and source code remain the property of 
Kimley-Horn and shall be provided to the Client only if expressly provided for in this Agreement.  Any 
electronic files not containing an electronic seal are provided only for the convenience of the Client and use 
of them is at the Client’s sole risk.  In the case of any defects in the electronic files or any discrepancies 
between them and the hardcopy of the deliverables prepared by Kimley-Horn, the hardcopy shall govern.   

 
6) Intellectual Property.  Kimley-Horn may use or develop its proprietary software, patents, copyrights, 

trademarks, trade secrets, and other intellectual property owned by Kimley-Horn or its affiliates (“Intellectual 

Property”) in the performance of this Agreement.  Intellectual Property, for purposes of this section, does not 

include deliverables specifically created for Client pursuant to the Agreement and use of such deliverables 

is governed by section 5 of this Agreement.  Unless explicitly agreed to in writing by both parties to the 

contrary, Kimley-Horn maintains all interest in and ownership of its Intellectual Property and conveys no 

interest, ownership, license to use, or any other rights in the Intellectual Property to Client.  Any 

enhancements of Intellectual Property made during the performance of this Agreement are solely owned by 

Kimley-Horn and its affiliates. If Kimley-Horn’s services include providing Client with access to or a license 

for Kimley-Horn’s (or its affiliates’) proprietary software or technology, Client agrees to the terms of the 

Software License Agreement set forth at https://www.kimley-horn.com/khts-software-license-agreement 

(“the License Agreement”) which terms are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
7) Opinions of Cost.  Because Kimley-Horn does not control the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services 

furnished by others, methods of determining prices, or competitive bidding or market conditions, any opinions 
rendered as to costs, including but not limited to the costs of construction and materials, are made solely 
based on its judgment as a professional familiar with the industry.  Kimley-Horn cannot and does not 
guarantee that proposals, bids or actual costs will not vary from its opinions of cost.  If the Client wishes 
greater assurance as to the amount of any cost, it shall employ an independent cost estimator. Kimley-Horn's 
services required to bring costs within any limitation established by the Client will be paid for as Additional 
Services. 

 

8) Termination.  The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated by either 
party upon seven days' written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in 
accordance with the terms hereof, or upon thirty days’ written notice for the convenience of the terminating 
party.  Kimley-Horn shall be paid for all services rendered and expenses incurred to the effective date of 
termination, and other reasonable expenses incurred by Kimley-Horn as a result of such termination.  

 

9) Standard of Care.  The standard of care applicable to Kimley-Horn’s services will be the degree of care and 
skill ordinarily exercised by consultants performing the same or similar services in the same locality at the 
time the services are provided.  No warranty, express or implied, is made or intended by Kimley-Horn's 
performance of services, and it is agreed that Kimley-Horn is not a fiduciary with respect to the Client.   

 
10) LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to the Client and 

Kimley-Horn, the risks are allocated such that, to the fullest extent allowed by law, and notwithstanding any 
other provisions of this Agreement or the existence of applicable insurance coverage, that the total liability, 
in the aggregate, of Kimley-Horn and Kimley-Horn's officers, directors, employees, agents, and 
subconsultants to the Client or to anyone claiming by, through or under the Client, for any and all claims, 



 

Rev 07/2024 

3 

losses, costs, attorneys’ fees, or damages whatsoever arising out of or in any way related to the services 
under this Agreement from any causes, including but not limited to, the negligence, professional errors or 
omissions, strict liability or breach of contract or any warranty, express or implied, of Kimley-Horn or Kimley-
Horn's officers, directors, employees, agents, and subconsultants, shall not exceed twice the total 
compensation received by Kimley-Horn under this Agreement or $50,000, whichever is greater.  Higher limits 
of liability may be negotiated for additional fee.  This Section is intended solely to limit the remedies available 
to the Client or those claiming by or through the Client, and nothing in this Section shall require the Client to 
indemnify Kimley-Horn. 

 
11) Mutual Waiver of Consequential Damages.  In no event shall either party be liable to the other for any 

consequential, incidental, punitive, or indirect damages including but not limited to loss of income or loss of 
profits. 

 

12) Construction Costs.  Under no circumstances shall Kimley-Horn be liable for extra costs or other 
consequences due to changed or unknown conditions or related to the failure of contractors to perform work 
in accordance with the plans and specifications.  Kimley-Horn shall have no liability whatsoever for any costs 
arising out of the Client’s decision to obtain bids or proceed with construction before Kimley-Horn has issued 
final, fully approved plans and specifications.  The Client acknowledges that all preliminary plans are subject 
to substantial revision until plans are fully approved and all permits obtained.      

 

13) Certifications.  All requests for Kimley-Horn to execute certificates, lender consents, or other third-party 
reliance letters must be submitted to Kimley-Horn at least 14 days prior to the requested date of execution.  
Kimley-Horn shall not be required to execute certificates, consents, or third-party reliance letters that are 
inaccurate, that relate to facts of which Kimley-Horn does not have actual knowledge, or that would cause 
Kimley-Horn to violate applicable rules of professional responsibility. 
 

14) Dispute Resolution.  All claims arising out of this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to 
mediation in accordance with the American Arbitration Association as a condition precedent to litigation.  Any 
mediation or civil action by Client must be commenced within one year of the accrual of the cause of action 
asserted but in no event later than allowed by applicable statutes. 

 

15) Hazardous Substances and Conditions.   Kimley-Horn shall not be a custodian, transporter, handler, 
arranger, contractor, or remediator with respect to hazardous substances and conditions.  Kimley-Horn's 
services will be limited to analysis, recommendations, and reporting, including, when agreed to, plans and 
specifications for isolation, removal, or remediation.  Kimley-Horn will notify the Client of unanticipated 
hazardous substances or conditions of which Kimley-Horn actually becomes aware.  Kimley-Horn may stop 
affected portions of its services until the hazardous substance or condition is eliminated.   

 

16) Construction Phase Services.   
a. If Kimley-Horn prepares construction documents and Kimley-Horn is not retained to make periodic site visits, 

the Client assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the documents and for construction observation, 
and the Client waives any claims against Kimley-Horn in any way connected thereto.   

b. Kimley-Horn shall have no responsibility for any contractor's means, methods, techniques, equipment choice 
and usage, equipment maintenance and inspection, sequence, schedule, safety programs, or safety 
practices, nor shall Kimley-Horn have any authority or responsibility to stop or direct the work of any 
contractor. Kimley-Horn's visits will be for the purpose of observing construction and reporting to the Client 
whether the contractors’ work generally conforms to the construction documents prepared by Kimley-Horn.  
Kimley-Horn neither guarantees the performance of contractors, nor assumes responsibility for any 
contractor’s failure to perform its work in accordance with the contract documents. 

c. Kimley-Horn is not responsible for any duties assigned to it in the construction contract that are not expressly 
provided for in this Agreement.  The Client agrees that each contract with any contractor shall state that the 
contractor shall be solely responsible for job site safety and its means and methods; that the contractor shall 
indemnify the Client and Kimley-Horn for all claims and liability arising out of job site accidents; and that the 
Client and Kimley-Horn shall be made additional insureds under the contractor’s general liability insurance 
policy. 
 

17) No Third-Party Beneficiaries; Assignment and Subcontracting.  This Agreement gives no rights or 
benefits to anyone other than the Client and Kimley-Horn, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken 
pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole benefit of the Client and Kimley-Horn.  The Client shall not 
assign or transfer any rights under or interest in this Agreement, or any claim arising out of the performance 



 

Rev 07/2024 

4 

of services by Kimley-Horn, without the written consent of Kimley-Horn.  Kimley-Horn reserves the right to 
augment its staff with subconsultants as it deems appropriate due to project logistics, schedules, or market 
conditions.  If Kimley-Horn exercises this right, Kimley-Horn will maintain the agreed-upon billing rates for 
services identified in the contract, regardless of whether the services are provided by in-house employees, 
contract employees, or independent subconsultants. 
 

18) Confidentiality.  The Client consents to the use and dissemination by Kimley-Horn of photographs of the 
project and to the use by Kimley-Horn of facts, data and information obtained by Kimley-Horn in the 
performance of its services.  If, however, any facts, data or information are specifically identified in writing by 
the Client as confidential, Kimley-Horn shall use reasonable care to maintain the confidentiality of that 
material. 

 

19) Miscellaneous Provisions.  This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the State where the Project is 
located. This Agreement contains the entire and fully integrated agreement between the parties and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous negotiations, representations, agreements, or understandings, 
whether written or oral.  Except as provided in Section 1, this Agreement can be supplemented or amended 
only by a written document executed by both parties.  Any conflicting or additional terms on any purchase 
order issued by the Client shall be void and are hereby expressly rejected by Kimley-Horn.  If Client requires 
Kimley-Horn to register with or use an online vendor portal for payment or any other purpose, any terms 
included in the registration or use of the online vendor portal that are inconsistent or in addition to these 
terms shall be void and shall have no effect on Kimley-Horn or this Agreement.  Any provision in this 
Agreement that is unenforceable shall be ineffective to the extent of such unenforceability without invalidating 
the remaining provisions. The non-enforcement of any provision by either party shall not constitute a waiver 
of that provision nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement. 

 



Agenda Item ___ 
August 28, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take action to approve purchase of shade structures for the Tower Center at Unity 
Square. 
 
Attachments: 

Proposal from Val Callaghan and Jay Webster 
USA Shade quote 
Adventure Playground Systems quote 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
Last summer, Val Callaghan, Managing Director of The Center, reached out to the City of 
Bartlesville Community Development department and Engineering Department to provide some 
direction on how to move forward with hiring a vendor to supply and install shade structures at 
The Tower Center at Unity Square (TCUS).  Since the large oak tree that used to be in the main 
green space had died and was removed, the TCUS was in need of some shade.  Val has worked 
with Ambler Architects to come up with some options that are aesthetically pleasing.  The 
products have been vetted through the appropriate boards and committees and they have secured 
private funding to cover the cost of the equipment and installation.  Val has provided a proposal 
for this project that addresses the need, how they have secured pricing, and also a breakdown of 
the funding.  Val’s proposal is included with this cover letter. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Private funds have been secured for this project.  There is no budget impact to any City trust 
authority.  There will be future maintenance required to replace canopies as they age, though it 
is assumed that private funding would be secured to cover these costs in the future.  No yearly 
maintenance would be required. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approving purchase and installation of shade structures at Tower Center at 
Unity Square according to the proposal provided by Val Callaghan. 

7.c.viii.



 

 
Sunshade Proposal 

Submitted to: 
Bartlesville City Council 

Tuesday, September 3, 2024 at 5:30pm 
 
Since the removal of the large, diseased, oak tree there has been a need for shade in the middle of 
Tower Center at Unity Square.  The BCC TA  and BCC TA TC@US management committee gave 
approval for The Center staff to source suitable shade structures and secure private funding for the 
materials and labor to install the sunshade and purchase heavy duty picnic tables to replace 
dilapidated ones.   
 
Total Donations to purchase and install sunshades and picnic tables: $100,030.44  
Arvest Foundation - $5,000   
ConocoPhillips - $25,000  
Leadership Bartlesville Class XXXII - $20,231.89   
Phillips 66 - $24,798,55   
Jeanlee + Charles Parsons Foundation - $25,000  
 
Picnic Tables purchased in 2023: $5,186.13 
 
Remaining project budget: $95,231.89 
 
Bids were requested of USA Shade; Adventure Playground System; and WillyGoat Playgrounds.  
Estimates were received from USA Shade for $78,291.51 and Adventure Playground System for 
$34,047.74, to create a fundraising goal.   Proposals  attached.  
 
Following discussion with City of Bartlesville engineer and Ambler Architects, the management 
committee recommends selecting USA Shade’s estimate of $78,291.51 as aesthetically it 
compliments the urban park design, and is better rated for high winds in the proposed area.   
 
Larry Curtis has presented the bid and drawings to the Bartlesville Parks Board and gained their 
approval.     
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jay Webster, BCC TA TC@US Chairman                         Val Callaghan, BCC Managing Director 



www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

PROPOSAL

Today’s Date: 8/27/2024 

Project Informa�on: Sales Informa�on: 

Purchaser: The Center Contact: Val Callaghan Sales Rep: Arce, Selina 

Project Name: Unity Square - City of 
Bartlesville Phone: Phone: 214-306-7103

Quote No: OK0324SA12179-R0 Email: Email: Selina.Arce@USA-
Shade.com 

Billing Address Informa�on: Shipping Address Informa�on: Jobsite Informa�on: 

Name: The Center Name: Name: 

Address: Address: Address: 

City: City: City: 

State: State: State: OK 

Zip Code: Zip Code: Zip Code: 

Contact: Val Callaghan Contact: Contact: 

Email: vcallaghan@bartlesvillecenter.com Email: Email: 

Phone: Phone: Phone: 

 

 

 

 

 
 

NOTE: This message is intended only for the use of the individual to whom it is addressed, and contains informa�on that is 
privileged, confiden�al, and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, or the 
employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby no�fied that any 
unauthorized disclosure, distribu�on, or copying of this communica�on is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communica�on in error, please no�fy us immediately by phone and return the original message to the applicable address 
above. 

CORPORATE ADDRESS: 

2580 Esters Blvd., Suite 100 DFW 
Airport, TX 75261

MAILING ADDRESS:  

P.O. Box 3467 Coppell, TX 75019 

REMITTANCE ADDRESS:  

P.O. Box 734158 Dallas, TX 75373-4158 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA: 

1085 N. Main Street, Suite C 
Orange, CA 92867 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA: 

927 Enterprise Way, Suite A 
Napa, CA 94558 

ARIZONA: 

2415 S. 18th Place 
Phoenix, AZ 85024 

LAS VEGAS: 

3111 So. Valley View Blvd. Suite B-117 
Las Vegas, NV  89102 



www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

PRODUCTS 
QTY ITEM DETAILS UNIT PRICE TOTAL 

1 

Joined 3-point sail (each 
30'x30'x30' ) with 10'/15' 
Entry Heights - CON-MAY-
077-23 – 1000

Fabric Type Fabric Color Electrical Provisions 

INCLUDED INCLUDED 

Shadesure Excluded 

Steel Finish Steel Color Cable/HDW Finish 

Powder Coated Galvanized 

Foo�ng Type Moun�ng Type Anchor Bolts 

Drilled Pier Recessed Base Plate Included 

UNIT TOTAL: INCLUDED 

PRICING TOTALS: PAYMENT TERMS 

Unit Total INCLUDED Payment terms subject to credit evaluation and approval 

Shipping/Handling 
*Subject to market fluctua�on INCLUDED ENGINEERING REQUIREMENTS 

SUBTOTAL INCLUDED Building Code Wind Loads Snow Loads 

Sales Tax INCLUDED IBC 2018 115 5 

Engineering INCLUDED NOTES 

Installa�on INCLUDED 

TOTAL PRICE $78,291.51 

INCLUSIONS / EXCLUSIONS 

INCLUDED / EXCLUDED ENGINEERING REQUIREMENTS INCLUDED / EXCLUDED INSTALLATION - MISCELLANEOUS 

Included Sealed Drawings & Calcula�ons Excluded Prevailing Wage / Cer�fied Payroll 

Excluded Permit Submital Excluded Union Wages 

Excluded Permit Fee Excluded Fencing 

Excluded DSA Submital & Fees Excluded Water and Electrical 

Included Design and Engineering of 
Structure Excluded Landscape Repair 

Included Design and Engineering of 
Founda�on Excluded Demoli�on (Exis�ng Structures) 

Excluded 
Reac�ons and Loads for 

atachment to Walls, Roo�ops, or 
Other 

Excluded Payment and Performance Bonds 

Excluded Founda�on Loca�on and Eleva�on 
Survey Excluded Special Inspec�on Fees 

50% Deposit Required



 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

 

Construc�on Assump�ons 

1) The designated area for our structures will be accessible by drive-up for unloading of our trucks and 
equipment, including personnel man-li�s, forkli�s, etc. Should a crane be required and direct access 
not available, addi�onal costs for such will be submited by a Change Order. 
 

2) Our pricing is based on the ability to perform all of our work with clear, sequen�al, and con�nuous 
access without interrup�on during normal day�me working hours. We have assumed one 
mobiliza�on for the installa�on of founda�ons, steel and fabric; if addi�onal mobiliza�ons are 
required, there will be an addi�onal charge. We will require exclusive access to the area for our 
work during the construc�on process. 
 

3) Our pricing does not include daily site delays accessing the work areas. USA SHADE will submit a 
Change Order for any delays caused by other trades which interfere or cause us to stop working. 
 

4) We will require site sanitary facili�es and refuse containers by others within 200 feet of our work. 
 

5) USA SHADE will leave its work and materials in a clean condi�on at the conclusion of our work. 
 

6) Barricades and public security requirements are not included. 
 

7) Unless specifically included in this proposal, this agreement does not include, and Company will not 
provide, services, labor, or materials for any of the following work: (a) removal and disposal of any 
materials containing asbestos or any hazardous materials as defined by the EPA; (b) moving Owner’s 
property around the installa�on site; (c) repair or replacement of any Purchaser or Owner-supplied 
materials; or (d) repair of damage to exis�ng surfaces that may occur when construc�on equipment 
and vehicles are being used in the normal course of construc�on. 
 

8) Pricing for founda�on design is based on drilled pier foo�ngs. In the event the geotechnical report 
requires an alternate configura�on, any addi�onal costs incurred will be submited to the client by a 
Change Order. 
 

9) Digging of our founda�ons will not be constrained by any exis�ng concrete or u�li�es. USA SHADE 
will not be responsible for moving or repairing any underground u�lity lines such as electrical, 
telephone, gas, water, or sprinkler lines that may be encountered during installa�on. 
 

10) Any addi�onal costs incurred as a result of hard rock condi�ons requiring extra equipment, u�lity 
removal or repair, resul�ng in delay, will result in addi�onal charges unless they are detailed on as-
built site drawings provided to USA SHADE or marked on the ground and communicated to USA 
SHADE in wri�ng prior to installa�on. 

 

 

 



 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

 

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS AND WARRANTY 

 

1) Proposal: The above proposal is valid for 15 days from the date first set forth above. A�er 15 days, 
we reserve the right to increase prices due to the rise in cost of raw materials, fuel, or other cost 
increases. When applicable, USA SHADE & Fabric Structures reserves the right to implement a 
surcharge for significant increases in raw materials, including, but not limited to; fuel, steel, and 
concrete. Due to the dura�on of �me between proposals, contracts, and final installa�on, USA 
SHADE & Fabric Structures reserves the right to implement this surcharge, when applicable. 

 
2) Purchase: By execu�ng this proposal, or submi�ng a purchase order pursuant to this proposal 

(which shall incorporate the terms of this agreement specifically by reference) which is accepted by 
USA SHADE & Fabric Structures (the “Company”), the purchaser iden�fied above (“you” or the 
“Purchaser”) agrees to purchase Shade Structures brand shade structures (“Structures”) and the 
services to be provided by the Company, as detailed in the “Structure Pricing” and “General Scope 
of Work” sec�ons of this agreement, above, or in the relevant purchase order accepted by the 
Company, for use by Purchaser or for installa�on by Company or Purchaser on behalf of a third-
party who will be the ul�mate owner of the Structures (the ul�mate owner of a Structure, whether 
Purchaser or a third-party, being the “Owner”). 
 

3) Short Ship Claims: Purchaser has 15 days from receipt of the structures to file a short ship report in 
wri�ng to its sales representa�ve. Company will not honor claims made a�er this �me. 
 

4) Short Ship Claims: Purchaser has 15 days from receipt of the structures to file a short ship report in 
wri�ng to its sales representa�ve. Company will not honor claims made a�er this �me. 
 

5) Bonding Guidelines: If Purchaser will use or provide the Structures and Services for an Owner other 
than Purchaser (including, without limita�on, as a subcontractor of Purchaser), Purchaser will 
include the following statement in Purchaser’s contract with Owner:  
 

“The manufacturer’s warranty for the Shade Structures brand shade structures is a 
separate document between USA SHADE & Fabric Structures and the ul�mate owner of the 
Shade Structures brand shade structures, which will be provided to the ul�mate owner at 
the �me of comple�on of the installa�on and other services to be provided by USA SHADE 
& Fabric Structures. Due to surety requirements, any performance and/or payment bond 
will cover only the first year of the USA SHADE & Fabric Structures warranty.” 
 

6) Insurance Requirements: Company is not required to provide any insurance coverage in excess of 
Company’s standard insurance. A copy of theCompany’s standard insurance is available for your 
review prior to acceptance of the Company’s proposal. 
 

7) Payment: Terms of payment are defined in the “Pricing Details” sec�on and are specific to this 
contract. For purposes of this agreement, “Comple�on” is defined as being the point at which the 
Structure is suitable for its intended use, the issue of occupancy consent, or a final building 
department approval is issued, whichever occurs first. Progress billing and payment will be 
required. All payments must be made to Shade Structures, Inc., P.O. Box 734158, Dallas, TX 75373-
4158. Company may use all remedies available to it under current laws including, but not limited 



 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

to, filing of liens against the property and using a collec�on agency or the courts to secure the 
collec�on of the outstanding debt. 
 

8) Lien Releases: Upon request by Owner, Company will issue appropriate par�al lien releases as 
corresponding payments are received from Purchaser, but prior to receiving final payment from 
Purchaser or Owner. Company will provide a full release of liens upon receipt of final payment. In 
accordance with state laws, Company reserves the right to place a lien on the property if final 
payment has not been received 10 days prior to the filing deadline for liens. 
 

9) Site Plan Approval, Permit/s, Permit Fees, Plans, Engineering Drawings, and Surveying: Site plan 
approval, permits, permit fees, plans, engineering drawings, and surveying are specifically excluded 
from this agreement and the Services unless specified under the “General Scope of Work”. The 
Company does not in any way warrant or represent that a permit or site plan approval for 
construc�on will be obtained. Sealed engineered drawings that are required but not included in the 
“General Scope of Work” will result in an addi�onal cost to Purchaser. 
 

10) Manufacturing & Delivery: Manufacturing lead-�me from Company’s receipt of the “No�ce To 
Proceed” is approximately 6 to 8 weeks for standard structures, and 8 to 12 weeks for custom 
structures. Delivery is approximately 1 week therea�er. Delivery of structures may be prior to or at 
start of assembly. Please note that these �melines do not include approval or permi�ng 
�meframes. 
 

11) Return Policy for USA Shade: At USA Shade, we strive to provide high-quality shade structures that 
are built to order and tailored to meet the unique needs of our customers. Due to the nature of our 
business and the customiza�on involved, we have implemented the following return policy: 
 

1. No Cancella�ons or Changes: Once an order has been released for produc�on, we 
cannot accept any cancella�ons or changes to the order. It is crucial for customers 
to review their order details carefully before finalizing the purchase. 

2. No Returns: Due to the customized nature of our shade structures, we do not 
accept returns. Once the order has been delivered and installed, it is considered a 
final sale. We encourage customers to thoroughly assess their requirements and 
specifica�ons before ordering. 

3. Product Quality Assurance: We take pride in delivering high-quality shade 
structures that meet industry standards. Our products undergo rigorous quality 
control measures to ensure they meet or exceed customer expecta�ons. In the 
unlikely event that there is a manufacturing defect or an issue with the product, 
please get in touch with our customer service department immediately for 
assistance. 

4. Warranty Coverage: Our shade structures are backed by a warranty against 
manufacturing defects or material faults. If you encounter any issues the warranty 
covers, please take a look at our warranty policy for more instruc�ons on how to 
proceed. 

5. Customer Support: We are commited to providing excellent customer service 
throughout your purchasing journey. If you have any ques�ons or concerns or need 
help with your order, our dedicated customer support team is here to help. Don’t 
hesitate to contact us via phone, email, or our website's contact form, and we will 
gladly assist you. 



 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

It is essen�al for customers to understand and acknowledge these terms and condi�ons before placing 
an order with USA Shade. Customers agree to abide by this return policy by proceeding with a 
purchase. 

 
12) Concealed Condi�ons: ”Concealed condi�ons” include, without limita�on, water, gas, sprinkler, 

electrical and sewage lines, post tension cables, and steel rebar. This agreement is based solely on 
observa�ons the Company was able to make either by visual inspec�on or by drawings and/or plans 
submited by Owner at the �me this agreement was bid. If addi�onal Concealed Condi�ons are 
discovered once work has commenced, which were not visible at the �me this proposal was bid, 
Company will stop work and indicate these unforeseen Concealed Condi�ons to Purchaser or 
Owner so that Purchaser and Company can execute a Change Order for any addi�onal work. In any 
event, any damage caused by or to unforeseen Concealed Condi�ons is the sole responsibility of 
the Purchaser and Company shall not be held liable for any such damage. Soil condi�ons are 
assumed to be soil that does not contain any water, hard rock (such as limestone, caliche, etc.), 
rocks larger than 4 inches in diameter, or any other condi�on that will require addi�onal labor, 
equipment and/or materials not specified by the Purchaser or Owner in the bidding process. Any 
condi�on requiring addi�onal labor, equipment, and/or materials to complete the drilling or 
concrete opera�ons will require a Change Order before Company will complete the process. Price 
quotes are based on a drilled pier foo�ng. Any varia�on will incur addi�onal charges (i.e. spread 
foo�ngs, concrete mat, sand, water, landfill, etc.). Costs for foo�ng and installa�on do not include 
any allowance for extending below frost lines (the addi�onal costs for which vary by geographical 
region) 
 

13) Changes in the Work: During the course of this project, Purchaser may order changes in the work 
(both addi�ons and dele�ons). Addi�onally, an approving agency may require changes in the work 
from the original design or engineering quoted and provided by the Company (both addi�ons and 
dele�ons.) The cost of these changes will be determined by the Company, and a Change Order form 
must be completed and signed by both the Purchaser and the Company, which will detail the 
“General Scope of the Change Order”. Should any Change Order be essen�al to the comple�on of 
the project, and the Purchaser refuses to authorize such Change Order, then Company will be 
deemed to have performed its part of the project, and the project and services will be terminated. 
Upon such termina�on, Company will submit a final billing to Purchaser for payment, less a labor 
allowance for work not performed but including addi�onal charges incurred due to the stoppage. 
No credit will be allowed for materials sold and supplied, which will remain the property of the 
Purchaser. 
 

14) Indemnifica�on: To the fullest extent permited by law, Purchaser shall indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the Company and its consultants, agents, and employees or any of them from and against 
claims, damages, losses and expenses, including, but not limited to, atorneys’ fees related to the 
installa�on of the Structure or performance of the services, provided that such claim, damage, loss, 
or expense is atributable to bodily injury to, sickness, disease, or death of a person, or to injury to 
or destruc�on of tangible property, but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions 
of the Purchaser or its agents, employees, or subcontractors, or anyone directly or indirectly 
employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such 
claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obliga�on 
shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obliga�ons of indemnity that 
would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in Sec�on 15. 
 

15) Statement of Limited Warranty: 



 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

 
• The structural integrity of all supplied steel is warranted for ten years. 
• If assembly is provided by the Company, workmanship of the structure is covered for one 

year, including labor for the removal of any failed part, disassembly (if necessary), cost of 
shipping, and reassembly. 

• All steel surface finishes are warranted for one year. 
• Shadesure™, Colourshade® FR, eXtreme 32™, Commercial 95™, SaFRshade™, and Monotec 

370™ fabrics all carry a ten year limited manufacturer’s warranty against failure from 
significant fading, deteriora�on, breakdown, outdoor heat, cold, or discolora�on. Should 
the fabric need to be replaced under the warranty, the Company will manufacture and ship 
a new replacement fabric at no charge for the first six years, therea�er pro-rated at 20% per 
year over the remaining four years. The following are excep�ons to the preceding warranty 
terms: 

o Shadesure™ fabrics in Red, Yellow, Atomic Orange, Electric Purple, Zesty 
Lime, Cinnamon, Olive, and Mulberry carry a five year pro-rated 

o Fabric tops atached to Coolbrella™ structures carry a three year warranty; 
o Individual fabric tops measuring greater than 40’ in length are covered by a 

non-prorated five year warranty; 
o Precontraint 502™ waterproof membrane is subject to an eight year pro-

rated warranty. 
 

• Sewing thread is warranted for ten years. 
 

• These limited warran�es are effec�ve from the date of sale, or, if assembly is provided by 
the Company, upon receipt by Company from Purchaser of a completed and signed 
“Customer Checklist and Sign-off” form. 

 
• In its sole discre�on, the Company will repair and or/replace defec�ve structures, products 

or workmanship, or refund that por�on of the price related to the defec�ve product, labor, 
or service rendered. 

 
• The Company reserves the right, in cases where certain fabric colors have been 

discon�nued, to offer the Purchaser or Owner a choice of available alterna�ve colors to 
replace the warranted fabric. The Company does not guarantee that any par�cular color 
will be available for any period of �me, and reserves the right to discon�nue any color for 
any reason, without recourse by the Purchaser or Owner of the discon�nued fabric color. 

 
• Should the Purchaser or Owner sell the structures to another party, the warranty cannot be 

transferred to the new owner without a complete and thorough on-site inspec�on 
performed by a Company representa�ve. Please contact the Company at warranty@usa-
shade.com for more details. 

 
• All warranty claims covering Company supplied structures, products, and services must be 

submited by Purchaser or Owner in wri�ng to the Company within thirty days from the 
date of discovery of the alleged defect and must include a detailed descrip�on and 
applicable photographs of the alleged defect or problem. Warranty claims should be 
submited by email to warranty@usa-shade.com. 

 

mailto:warranty@usa-shade.com


 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

• Purchaser or Owner agrees that venue for any court ac�on to enforce these limited 
warran�es shall be in the City or County of Dallas in the State of Texas, USA. 

 
• These limited warran�es are void if: 

 
o the supplied structures, products, services and/or labor are not paid for in 

full; 
o the structures are not assembled in strict compliance with USA SHADE 

specifica�ons; 
o any changes, modifica�ons, addi�ons, or atachments are made to the 

structures in any way, without prior writen approval from the Company. 
Specifically, no signs, objects, fans, light fixtures, etc. may be hung from the 
structures, unless specifically engineered by the Company. 
 

• These limited warran�es do not cover defects and/or damages caused by: 
o normal wear and tear; 
o misuse, willful or inten�onal damage, vandalism, contact with chemicals, 

cuts and Acts of God (i.e. tornado, hurricane, micro/macros burst, 
earthquake, wildfires, etc.); 

o ice, snow or wind loads in excess of the designed load parameters 
engineered for the supplied structures; 

o use, maintenance, neglect, repair, and/or service inconsistent with the 
Company’s writen care and maintenance instruc�ons, provided with the 
order. 

 
• The limited warran�es explicitly exclude: 

o workmanship related to assembly not provided by the Company or its 
agents; 

o fabric curtains, valances, and flat ver�cal panels; 
o fabric tops installed on structures that were not engineered and originally 

supplied by the Company. 
 

• THE COMPANY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL, 
LIQUIDATED, EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, OR ANY LOSS OF REVENUE, PROFIT, USE 
OR GOODWILL, WHETHER BASED UPON CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), OR 
ANY OTHER LEGAL THEORY, ARISING OUT OF A BREACH OF THIS WARRANTY OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE SALE, INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, USE, OPERATION OR REPAIR 
OF ANY PRODUCT OR SERVICE. IN NO EVENT WILL THE COMPANY BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
AMOUNT GREATER THAN THE PURCHASE PRICE FOR ANY PRODUCT OR SERVICE PROVIDED 
BY THE COMPANY. 
 

• THE FOREGOING LIMITED WARRANTY IS THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY FOR THE 
COMPANY’S PRODUCTS AND SERVICES, AND IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, 
EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, IN LAW OR IN FACT. SELLER SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ALL IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE, 
AND ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES ARISING OUT OF COURSE OF DEALING OR PERFORMANCE 
OR TRADE USAGE. PURCHASER, BY ACCEPTANCE AND USE OF THIS LIMITED WARRANTY, 



 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

WAIVES ANY RIGHTS IT WOULD OTHERWISE HAVE TO CLAIM OR ASSERT THAT THIS LIMITED 
WARRANTY FAILS OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. 

 

Colourshade ® and eXtreme 32™ are registered trademarks of Mul�knit Pty. Ltd. 
Commercial 95™ and SaFRshade™ are registered trademarks of Gale Pacific USA Inc 
Monotec 370™ is a registered trademark of PRO-KNIT Industries Pty. Ltd.  
Precontraint 502™ is a registered trademark of Serge Ferrari North America, Inc. 
 

16) Assembly/Installa�on: 
 

• Company will no�fy Purchaser of the scheduled assembly date. Owner agrees to have an owner 
representa�ve meet the assembly crew at the job site on the scheduled assembly date to verify 
the exact loca�on where the structure(s) is to be placed. 

• Labor for the removal, assembly, and/or freight charges will only be covered by Company in 
instances where the structures supplied and installed by Company are determined by the 
Company to be defec�ve. In all cases where structures are not installed by Company, all labor 
for the removal, assembly, and/or freight of the structures will be the Purchaser’s responsibility. 

• Installa�on prices are based on a single mobiliza�on charge. If addi�onal mobiliza�ons are 
required, there will be addi�onal charges. 

• If the requested services require Company access to Owner’s premises, Company will be 
provided access to the Owner’s premises free and clear of debris, automobiles, or other 
interference Monday ~ Friday during the hours of 8:00am to 6:00pm, and Company will have 
access to water and electrical facili�es during installa�on. Addi�onal charges will apply if 
u�li�es are not easily accessible. Where applicable, all vehicles will be moved prior to 
Company’s crew beginning any installa�on. 

• Company will not be responsible for moving or repairing any underground u�lity lines such as 
electrical, telephone, gas, water, or sprinkler lines that may be encountered during installa�on. 

• Any addi�onal costs incurred as a result of hard rock condi�ons requiring extra equipment, 
u�lity removal or repair resul�ng in delay will result in addi�onal charges unless they are 
detailed on as-built site drawings provided to Company or marked on the ground and 
communicated to Company in wri�ng prior to fabrica�on and installa�on. 
 

17) Installa�on/Assembly on-site: Where installa�on/assembly is part of the services, Purchaser must 
provide the Company with a detailed drawing prepared by or for the Owner showing exactly where 
the structures are to be assembled as well as detailing any obstacles or other impediments that 
may cause the assembly process to be more difficult. Any fixture(s), e.g., playground, pools, etc., 
that the structures are to be assembled over must also be detailed, along with their peak heights (if 
applicable). 
 

18) Site/Use Review by Purchaser: Company relies on the Purchaser to determine that the structures 
ordered are appropriate and safe for the Owner’s installa�on site and/or intended use. Company is 
not responsible for damages or injuries resul�ng from collisions by moving objects or persons with 
the structure post(s). Company can recommend, or supply at addi�onal cost, padding for posts from 
a third party manufacturer. 
 

19) Preparatory Work: Where installa�on/assembly is part of the services and in the event that the 
founda�on or job site is not suitable or ready for assembly to begin on the scheduled day, a Delay of 
Order no�fica�on must be sent to Company at least 4 working days prior, in order to allow 
Company to reschedule the project. In the event that Company is not no�fied and incurs an 



 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

expense in atemp�ng to execute the assembly, a re-mobiliza�on charge may be charged to 
Purchaser before Company will reschedule the assembly. 
 

20) Delega�on: Subcontractors: The services and the manufacturing and assembly of the structures 
may be performed by subcontractors under appropriate agreements with the Company. 
 

21) Force Majeure: Imprac�cability: The Company shall not be charged with any loss or damage for 
failure or delay in delivering or assembling of the structures when such failure or delay is due to any 
cause beyond the control of the Company, due to compliance with governmental regula�ons or 
orders, or due to any Acts of God, strikes, lockouts, slowdowns, wars, or shortages in 
transporta�on, materials or labor. 
 

22) Dispute Resolu�on: Any controversy or claim arising out of or related to this agreement must be 
setled by binding arbitra�on administered in Dallas, TX by a single arbitrator selected by the par�es 
or by the American Arbitra�on Associa�on, and conducted in accordance with the construc�on 
industry arbitra�on rules. Judgment upon the award may be entered in any court having jurisdic�on 
thereof. 
 

23) En�re Agreement; No Reliance: This agreement represents and contains the en�re agreement 
between the par�es. Prior discussion or verbal representa�ons by the par�es that are not 
contained in this agreement are not part of this agreement. Purchaser hereby acknowledges that it 
has not received or relied upon any statements or representa�ons by Company or its agents which 
are not expressly s�pulated herein, including without limita�on any statements as to the structures, 
warran�es, or services provided hereunder. 
 

24) No Third-Party Beneficiaries: This agreement creates no third-party rights or obliga�ons between 
Company and any other person, including any Owner who is not also a Purchaser. It is understood 
and agreed that the par�es do not intend that any third party should be a beneficiary of this 
agreement. 
 

25) Governing Law: The agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas. 
 

26) Assignment: Purchaser may not assign this agreement, by opera�on of law or otherwise, without 
the prior writen consent of Company. The agreement shall be binding upon and insure to the 
benefit of the Company and the Purchaser, and their successors and permited assigns. 
 

27) Electronic Signatures. Each party agrees that the electronic signatures of the par�es to this 
Agreement, whether digital or encrypted, including but not limited to the use of a typed name, are 
intended to authen�cate this wri�ng and to have the same force and effect as manual signatures. 
Electronic signature means any electronic sound, symbol, or process atached to or logically 
associated with a record and executed and adopted by a party with the intent to sign such record, 
including but not limited to typed or email electronic signatures.  



 
 

www.usa-shade.com 800-966-5005 
AZ: 289388 CA: 989458 LA: 61718 NV: 78724 NV:78724 NM: 383826 TN: 68712 DIR: 1000003533 

 

PURCHASER: SELLER: 

       Shade Structures, Inc. DBA USA Shade 

NOTE: All purchase orders and contracts should be drafted in the name of 

Shade Structures, Inc. 

Signature: 

By: 

Title: 

Date: 

Signature: 

By: 

Title: 

Date: 



1

Date : 08/20/2024

Price Valid Until : 09/19/2024

Reference : Supply Only

Sales Person : Lesly Gonzalez

Deposit : $18,727.00

Quote Number: Q-018738

Bill To 
The Center | Unity Square
300 SE Adams Blvd
Bartlesville,  OK  74006
Valarie Callaghan
Phone: 9183372787  
vcallaghan@bartlesvillecenter.com

 Ship To
Valarie Callaghan
(918) 337-2787
300 SE Adams Blvd
Bartlesville,  OK  74006

SKU Item & Description Qty Regular 
Price

Discount Tax Amount

1 Triangle Sail Shade Structure - 
CUSTOM
SKU : STS-CUSTOM
30' x 78' @10' & 15' E.H. Triangle Sail Shade 
6 Posts, 3 Sail Shade Nets 
Frame-color: TBD
Shade-fabric-color: TBD
Surfacing: Natural Sod
Inground Mount

1.00 27,953.00 5.00% 2,190.82 26,555.35

2 Rebar Large Flat Packed
Flat Packed / Un-welded Large Rebar Cage 
for Shade Structure Footer
3' x 6'

6.00
Each

185.00 0.00 91.57 1,110.00

3 Engineered Drawings *Out of State
Engineered Drawings prepared by 
Adventure Playground Systems per shade 
structure will need to be stamped by the 
customer's respective state licensed 
engineer.

*If required by customer's city/county for 
permitting

1.00
Each

650.00 0.00 - 650.00

4 Wind Load Disclaimer
Please note that APS Shade Structures 
above are designed for Wind Loads up to 
95 mph with 3-second gusts up to 110 
mph.  
Additional charges may incur if the design 
must be revised to withstand higher wind 
loads for your respective area.

0.00
Each

0.00 0.00 - 0.00



2

Sub Total 31,765.35

State Tax (8.25%) 2,282.39

Total $34,047.74

SKU Item & Description Qty
Regular 

Price
Discount Tax Amount

*Shade structures are not intended for 
snow or ice loads.  The shade fabric must 
be removed prior to snow/ice conditions 
and only re-installed after frost/snow and 
ice conditions have passed.  

5 Elevation/Grade Drop
This estimate does not include additional 
costs for any elevation/grade drop.  

Please specify if you have an elevation drop 
within the area in which the above-
mentioned shade structure will be installed.

0.00
Each

0.00 0.00 - 0.00

6 Freight
Valarie Callaghan
(918) 337-2787
300 SE Adams Blvd
Bartlesville, OK, 74006

The freight quotation is for the standard 
delivery only.  

The customer will require a forklift to 
offload this shipment 

Before Driver Departs:
• Check shipping sticker to ensure that you 
have received the correct order!
• Inspect for damage: broken crate, dents, 
scrapes, scratches, torn package etc.
• Photograph the crate from all angles, 
photograph any damage.
• ANY DAMAGE MUST BE NOTED ON 
DELIVERY RECEIPT WITH DRIVER!

1.00
Each

3,450.00 0.00 - 3,450.00

7 Terms & Conditions
• 55% deposit due with order
• Balance due prior to shipping
• Does not include assembly and 
installation or offloading

0.00 0.00 0.00 - 0.00

Payment Notes:
• Orders not subject to cancellation
• 55% deposit due with order
• Balance due prior to shipping
• Does not include assembly and installation or offloading 

Allow up to 8 weeks for preparation of plans, drawings, and permit submittals, if required,  after acceptance of the proposal. The shipping date for 
manufactured products will be approximately 10-12 weeks after approval of submitted documentation, provided that the following conditions have 



3

been completed and approved by the customer:

1. Project product submittals reviewed, approved, and returned.
2. Color selection sheet (signed and dated)
3. Physical project address obtained
4. All contact names and phone numbers for the project
5. Exemption certificate (if applicable)
6. Deposit received per agreed payment terms 

Allow adequate time for processing and procuring construction permits if required.
Allow approximately 6 to 8 weeks for installation of project completion from the date of deposit, plus additional time for permitting if required.

We strongly recommend that the required fall surfacing be installed under all play and fitness equipment.  Choose a safety surface that meets the 
U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission recommendations for surfacing under playgrounds.

TERMS & CONDITIONS: 

1. Any alteration or deviation from the above specifications involving extra costs will be executed only upon written orders and will become an 
extra charge over and above the contract.

2. Changes to the design, color selection, or overall equipment order are not permitted once the order has been placed, unless previously 
authorized in writing by Adventure Playground Systems, Inc.  No returns of merchandise will be accepted unless previously authorized in writing by 
Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. All returns are subject to a restocking fee of 25% plus freight charges incurred for return to original shipment 
origination.

3. Ownership Title for all equipment is reserved by Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. until payment in full is received. The right to enter the 
property and repossess said equipment is hereby granted to Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. if payment is not rendered in accordance with 
the terms above. All payments made prior to repossession under this contract shall be forfeited to Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. as the cost 
incurred to procure, provide and recover the equipment. Repossession of product does not waive any damages or costs due as awarded by the 
courts.

4. All collections or litigation concerning this contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas, with the venue in Harris County.

5. Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. warrants the merchandise on this proposal to the manufacturer's published standards as to material and 
workmanship. See catalog and/or attached drawings for specific layouts, warranty terms, and specifications.

6. Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. reserves the right to review the contract for final acceptance by management.

7. A service charge of 1.5% per month will be assessed on the outstanding past due balance over 45 days from the completion date.

8. Payments made to Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. by credit card will incur a processing fee of 2.5% percent of the transaction amount paid. 
Other forms of payment options are available without a processing fee by check, cash, cashier’s check, money order, or bank wire transfer.

9. Installation services include all labor and equipment required to complete the job. Installation charges are quoted based on a worksite that is 
accessible by truck, with no fencing, tree, landscaping, or utility obstacles and level ground surface area (+/- 1-2% max slope). Any site work not 
expressly detailed in this proposal is excluded. Additional installation charges will incur for unlevel groundwork sites, removal of utilities, 
landscaping, existing equipment and/or abnormal substrates, (ie. rock, asphalt, landfill, etc.) 

10. Price quoted includes Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. standard insurance coverages. Any charges by Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. 
insurance carrier or agents for adding General Contractor or Owner as additional insured, waivers of subrogation, or changes to standard coverage 
shall be added to contract invoice charges. No performance bond or payment bond shall be provided by Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. 
unless specified and quoted as a separate line item in the proposal.

11. Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. is not liable for damages to underground utilities and/or irrigation systems during installation. It is the 
customer's responsibility to locate all underground utilities unless it is specified and quoted as a separate line item in the proposal.

12. Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. is not liable for damage done by normal construction operations to any existing landscape or natural grass 
unless it is specified and quoted as a separate line item in this proposal.

13. Building permits required by local or state authorities and municipalities are not included and are the responsibility of the owner of the 
property unless specified and quoted as a separate line item in the proposal. If Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. is to handle required 
permitting, please provide our office with necessary drawings and site documentation as requested per the project details (ie. legal site plans, 
survey plats, deed restrictions, etc).

14. This proposal may be withdrawn by Adventure Playground Systems, Inc. if not accepted within fourteen (14) days of issuance.  Pricing is subject 
to change. 

The pricing, specifications, terms, and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. 
Payment will be made as outlined above. If the contract is placed with an attorney for suit or collection through probate, bankruptcy, or other legal 
proceedings, the customer agrees to pay all expenses and reasonable attorney fees incurred. Any verbal instructions, agreements, or promises are 
not valid unless written and made part of this contract. I have read, understand and agree to all of the terms and conditions set forth in this 
proposal.



4

Authorized Signature:  _________________________________________________________     
           
Date Signed: ______________________________________________________



CUSTOMER SIGNATURE & DATE:

SALES REP:

DATE: DRAWN BY:2D LAYOUT B 4/18/2024 MC

TOWER CENTER AT
UNIVERSITY SQUARE

300 SE ADAMS BLVD
BARTLESVILLE, OK LESLY

SHADE STRUCTURE
6 POST 3 NET TRIANGLE SAIL

30' X 78' @ 10' & 15' E.H.

10

10

15 10 15

10

1015

10

30'

30' 30'

30'

30'

30'

30'

30'

52'26'
78'



Agenda Item  
 

 
 
 
 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

September 3, 2024 
Prepared by Micah Snyder 
Community Development

 

Approval of an Encroachment Agreement and Release of Liability with Sterling Enterprises 
Inc. for part of Dink’s parking lot that encroaches upon a portion of Frank Phillips Boulevard 
Right-of- Way. 

 
Attachments: 

Encroachment Agreement 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 

The City of Bartlesville Community Development Department was contacted by Sterling 
Enterprises Inc. to get a building permit to construct a storage building on the Dink's Pit Bar-B-
Que property located at 2929 E Frank Phillips Blvd. Staff identified that a portion of the 
existing parking area for this property was likely encroaching into the public right of way. To 
address the encroachment, Staff has worked with Sterling Enterprises Inc and the City Attorney 
to draft an Encroachment Agreement and Release of Liability. Sterling Enterprises Inc had the 
property surveyed to identify and define the limits of the encroachment, which consists of a 50-
ft by 115-ft portion of the parking lot. The agreement acknowledges that the property owner has 
constructed or permitted construction of the parking lot upon the public right-of-way without 
known permission, that the City is released of any liability that may arise from the 
encroachment, and the City reserves the right to require removal of the encroachments at any 
time if the encroached upon public right-of-way is required for public purposes. 

 
III. BUDGET IMPACT 

 
There is no budget impact for this item. 

 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Staff recommends approval of the Encroachment Agreement and Release of Liability for the 
right-of-way encroachment at 2929 E Frank Phillips Blvd. 

7.c.ix.











Agenda Item ___ 

Date August 28, 2024 

Prepared by Lisa Beeman 

     Grant Coordinator 

 

 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 

Agenda language: Discuss and take possible action to approve an agreement with the State of 

Oklahoma to receive and utilize annual funding received by the State as part of the Opioid 

Lawsuit Settlement Fund for additional Opioid Remediation purposes within the City of 

Bartlesville. 

 

Attachments:  Agreement with Non-Litigating Political Subdivision between the State of 

Oklahoma and the City of Bartlesville  

 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 

In working with the State of Oklahoma on the award of the FY 24 Opioid Abatement Grant 

Award, we learned that the City of Bartlesville was eligible to receive funding from the State of 

Oklahoma as part of the Opioid Lawsuit Settlement, an agreement made between the State of 

Oklahoma and three private corporations (the Settling Distributors) to resolve opioid-related 

claims.  Under this agreement, the Settling Distributors are obligated to make annual payment to 

the State for Opioid Remediation Purposes.  A portion of these funds are to be distributed to 

political subdivisions that were not part of the litigation that resulted in this agreement.  The City 

of Bartlesville is one of such thirty-nine political subdivisions eligible to receive such funds over 

an eighteen year payout schedule. 

 

The attached agreement authorizes the State of Oklahoma to begin the disbursement of such 

funds to the City of Bartlesville, more specifically $52,287.48 for eighteen years.  This first 

distribution is front-loaded for Years 1, 2, 3, 4, and one-half of Year 7, or $244,814.02, which 

will be received by the City after receipt of the attached agreement.  These funds shall be used 

by the City for identified core strategies and approved uses as identified by Appendix A and B 

of this agreement.   

 

The likely use of these annual funds would be to continue the partnership between the Police 

Department and GRAND Mental Health which is being established with the FY24 Opioid 

Abatement Grant ($120,000) to expand outreach efforts to identify and engage with individuals 

experiencing homelessness and opioid addiction with the goal of getting them into treatment, 

recovery, and long-term housing solutions.  The goal of this grant-funded program, approved by 

the Council at its August 19 Special Meeting, is that fifty (50) individuals across Bartlesville will 

benefit over the two-year grant term.  If that program proves successful, the funding can be used 

to continue it into future years.  Alternatively, the City could opt to work with GRAND Mental 

Health or other qualified agencies to implement other opioid remediation uses that target 

treatment and recovery as identified in the Agreement.  

 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 

7.c.xi.



 

There is no impact to the City’s current budget.  The funding will be provided to the City annually 

which will then be used to provide opioid abatement services within the City of Bartlesville.   

Additionally, as this funding was not anticipated at the time the FY 2025 budget was approved, 

a budget amendment is required to receive the funding from the State and then to utilize the funds 

as set forth in the Agreement.  A separate item is also on the agenda for this required budget 

amendment. 

 

 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 

City staff recommends approval of the Agreement with the State of Oklahoma for the receipt and 

use of Opioid Settlement Funds at its September 3 Council Meeting. 



 

Agreement with Non-Litigating Political Subdivision 
 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered this ___ day of 2024 by City of 

Bartlesville (“Recipient”) and the State of Oklahoma, by and through the Office of Attorney 

General (“OAG”) and the Oklahoma Opioid Abatement Board (collectively the “State”). 

 WHEREAS, the State entered into a settlement agreement dated June 24, 2022, with 

McKesson Corporation, Cardinal Health, Inc., and Cencora, Inc. (f/k/a AmerisourceBergen 

Corporation) (the “Settling Distributors”) to resolve opioid-related claims against the Settling 

Distributors. The settlement agreement is hereinafter defined as the “Distributors Settlement 

Agreement” and is hereby fully incorporated into this Agreement. See Appendix A. 

 WHEREAS, under the Distributors Settlement Agreement, the Settling Distributors 

have paid and will continue to make annual payments to the State for Opioid Remediation 

purposes as defined in Exhibit E of the Distributor Global Settlement Agreement.  See Appendix 

B. 

 WHEREAS Annual Payments under the Distributors Settlement Agreement were 

transferred to the Opioid Lawsuit Settlement Fund and were appropriated by the Legislature. Of 

that amount, $5,869,727.23 is owed to political subdivisions that were not part of the litigation 

that resulted in the Distributors Settlement Agreement ("Non-Litigating Political Subdivisions” 

or “NLPS”) for annual payments in years 1, 2, 3, 4 and a partial payment for year 7 due to a 

prepayment made by Cardinal and Cencora. The amount to be paid under this Agreement is 

reflected in Appendix C. 

WHEREAS, Recipient executed a release of claims and agreed to participate in the 

Distributors Settlement Agreement.  

 WHEREAS, the State possesses the necessary and adequate funds to satisfy the 



payment under this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Recipient’s receipt of Funds, Recipient 

agrees as follows: 

1. The Recipient has been provided with, is aware of and has reviewed the 

Distributors Settlement Agreement and the Act. 

2. The Recipient acknowledges, understands, and is bound by all terms in this 

Agreement, the Settlement Agreement, and the Act. If there is a conflict between the terms of 

the Agreement, the Settlement Agreement, and the Act, the Settlement Agreement controls.  

3. Funds awarded pursuant to the Settlement must be expended for “Opioid 

Remediation” as defined in the Global Distributor Settlement Agreement and in accordance 

with “List of Remediation Uses” in Exhibit E of the Global Distributor Settlement Agreement. 

4. Recipient also agrees to expend any settlement funds received from the State 

consistent with the approved purposes defined in the Political Subdivisions Opioid Abatement 

Grants Act, 74 O.S. §§ 30.3–30.8. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, through their fully authorized 

representatives, have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth below. 

X____________________________________________________ 
[Recipient]   Dale Copeland, Mayor, City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma

X____________________________________________________ 
First Assistant Attorney General, Oklahoma Office of Attorney General 



Appendix A



Appendix A



Appendix A



Appendix A



Appendix A



Appendix A



Appendix A



Appendix A



Appendix A



Appendix A



E-1

EXHIBIT E 

List of Opioid Remediation Uses 

Schedule A 
Core Strategies 

States and Qualifying Block Grantees shall choose from among the abatement strategies listed in 
Schedule B.  However, priority shall be given to the following core abatement strategies (“Core 
Strategies”).14  

A. NALOXONE OR OTHER FDA-APPROVED DRUG TO
REVERSE OPIOID OVERDOSES

1. Expand training for first responders, schools, community
support groups and families; and

2. Increase distribution to individuals who are uninsured or
whose insurance does not cover the needed service.

B. MEDICATION-ASSISTED TREATMENT (“MAT”)
DISTRIBUTION AND OTHER OPIOID-RELATED
TREATMENT

1. Increase distribution of MAT to individuals who are
uninsured or whose insurance does not cover the needed
service;

2. Provide education to school-based and youth-focused
programs that discourage or prevent misuse;

3. Provide MAT education and awareness training to
healthcare providers, EMTs, law enforcement, and other
first responders; and

4. Provide treatment and recovery support services such as
residential and inpatient treatment, intensive outpatient
treatment, outpatient therapy or counseling, and recovery
housing that allow or integrate medication and with other
support services.

14 As used in this Schedule A, words like “expand,” “fund,” “provide” or the like shall not indicate a preference for 
new or existing programs. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-2 

C. PREGNANT & POSTPARTUM WOMEN  

1. Expand Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to 
Treatment (“SBIRT”) services to non-Medicaid eligible or 
uninsured pregnant women;  

2. Expand comprehensive evidence-based treatment and 
recovery services, including MAT, for women with co-
occurring Opioid Use Disorder (“OUD”) and other 
Substance Use Disorder (“SUD”)/Mental Health disorders 
for uninsured individuals for up to 12 months postpartum; 
and  

3. Provide comprehensive wrap-around services to individuals 
with OUD, including housing, transportation, job 
placement/training, and childcare. 

D. EXPANDING TREATMENT FOR NEONATAL 
ABSTINENCE SYNDROME (“NAS”) 

1. Expand comprehensive evidence-based and recovery 
support for NAS babies;  

2. Expand services for better continuum of care with infant-
need dyad; and  

3. Expand long-term treatment and services for medical 
monitoring of NAS babies and their families. 

E. EXPANSION OF WARM HAND-OFF PROGRAMS AND 
RECOVERY SERVICES  

1. Expand services such as navigators and on-call teams to 
begin MAT in hospital emergency departments;  

2. Expand warm hand-off services to transition to recovery 
services;  

3. Broaden scope of recovery services to include co-occurring 
SUD or mental health conditions;  

4. Provide comprehensive wrap-around services to individuals 
in recovery, including housing, transportation, job 
placement/training, and childcare; and  

5. Hire additional social workers or other behavioral health 
workers to facilitate expansions above. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-3 

F. TREATMENT FOR INCARCERATED POPULATION  

1. Provide evidence-based treatment and recovery support, 
including MAT for persons with OUD and co-occurring 
SUD/MH disorders within and transitioning out of the 
criminal justice system; and  

2. Increase funding for jails to provide treatment to inmates 
with OUD. 

G. PREVENTION PROGRAMS  

1. Funding for media campaigns to prevent opioid use (similar 
to the FDA’s “Real Cost” campaign to prevent youth from 
misusing tobacco);  

2. Funding for evidence-based prevention programs in 
schools;  

3. Funding for medical provider education and outreach 
regarding best prescribing practices for opioids consistent 
with the 2016 CDC guidelines, including providers at 
hospitals (academic detailing);  

4. Funding for community drug disposal programs; and 

5. Funding and training for first responders to participate in 
pre-arrest diversion programs, post-overdose response 
teams, or similar strategies that connect at-risk individuals 
to behavioral health services and supports. 

H. EXPANDING SYRINGE SERVICE PROGRAMS 

1. Provide comprehensive syringe services programs with 
more wrap-around services, including linkage to OUD 
treatment, access to sterile syringes and linkage to care and 
treatment of infectious diseases. 

I. EVIDENCE-BASED DATA COLLECTION AND 
RESEARCH ANALYZING THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE 
ABATEMENT STRATEGIES WITHIN THE STATE 

  

Appendix B



 
 

E-4 

Schedule B 
Approved Uses 

Support treatment of Opioid Use Disorder (OUD) and any co-occurring Substance Use Disorder 
or Mental Health (SUD/MH) conditions through evidence-based or evidence-informed programs 
or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following:  

PART ONE:  TREATMENT 
 

A. TREAT OPIOID USE DISORDER (OUD) 

Support treatment of Opioid Use Disorder (“OUD”) and any co-occurring Substance Use 
Disorder or Mental Health (“SUD/MH”) conditions through evidence-based or evidence-
informed programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, those that:15  

1. Expand availability of treatment for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, including all forms of Medication-Assisted Treatment (“MAT”) 
approved by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration. 

2. Support and reimburse evidence-based services that adhere to the American 
Society of Addiction Medicine (“ASAM”) continuum of care for OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

3. Expand telehealth to increase access to treatment for OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, including MAT, as well as counseling, psychiatric support, 
and other treatment and recovery support services. 

4. Improve oversight of Opioid Treatment Programs (“OTPs”) to assure evidence-
based or evidence-informed practices such as adequate methadone dosing and low 
threshold approaches to treatment. 

5. Support mobile intervention, treatment, and recovery services, offered by 
qualified professionals and service providers, such as peer recovery coaches, for 
persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions and for persons 
who have experienced an opioid overdose. 

6. Provide treatment of trauma for individuals with OUD (e.g., violence, sexual 
assault, human trafficking, or adverse childhood experiences) and family 
members (e.g., surviving family members after an overdose or overdose fatality), 
and training of health care personnel to identify and address such trauma. 

7. Support evidence-based withdrawal management services for people with OUD 
and any co-occurring mental health conditions. 

                                                 
15 As used in this Schedule B, words like “expand,” “fund,” “provide” or the like shall not indicate a preference for 
new or existing programs. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-5 

8. Provide training on MAT for health care providers, first responders, students, or 
other supporting professionals, such as peer recovery coaches or recovery 
outreach specialists, including telementoring to assist community-based providers 
in rural or underserved areas. 

9. Support workforce development for addiction professionals who work with 
persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

10. Offer fellowships for addiction medicine specialists for direct patient care, 
instructors, and clinical research for treatments. 

11. Offer scholarships and supports for behavioral health practitioners or workers 
involved in addressing OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH or mental health 
conditions, including, but not limited to, training, scholarships, fellowships, loan 
repayment programs, or other incentives for providers to work in rural or 
underserved areas. 

12. Provide funding and training for clinicians to obtain a waiver under the federal 
Drug Addiction Treatment Act of 2000 (“DATA 2000”) to prescribe MAT for 
OUD, and provide technical assistance and professional support to clinicians who 
have obtained a DATA 2000 waiver. 

13. Disseminate of web-based training curricula, such as the American Academy of 
Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service–Opioids web-based 
training curriculum and motivational interviewing. 

14. Develop and disseminate new curricula, such as the American Academy of 
Addiction Psychiatry’s Provider Clinical Support Service for Medication–
Assisted Treatment. 

B. SUPPORT PEOPLE IN TREATMENT AND RECOVERY 

Support people in recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions 
through evidence-based or evidence-informed programs or strategies that may include, 
but are not limited to, the programs or strategies that:  

1. Provide comprehensive wrap-around services to individuals with OUD and any 
co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, including housing, transportation, education, 
job placement, job training, or childcare. 

2. Provide the full continuum of care of treatment and recovery services for OUD 
and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, including supportive housing, peer 
support services and counseling, community navigators, case management, and 
connections to community-based services. 

3. Provide counseling, peer-support, recovery case management and residential 
treatment with access to medications for those who need it to persons with OUD 
and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-6 

4. Provide access to housing for people with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions, including supportive housing, recovery housing, housing assistance 
programs, training for housing providers, or recovery housing programs that allow 
or integrate FDA-approved mediation with other support services. 

5. Provide community support services, including social and legal services, to assist 
in deinstitutionalizing persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions. 

6. Support or expand peer-recovery centers, which may include support groups, 
social events, computer access, or other services for persons with OUD and any 
co-occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

7. Provide or support transportation to treatment or recovery programs or services 
for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

8. Provide employment training or educational services for persons in treatment for 
or recovery from OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

9. Identify successful recovery programs such as physician, pilot, and college 
recovery programs, and provide support and technical assistance to increase the 
number and capacity of high-quality programs to help those in recovery. 

10. Engage non-profits, faith-based communities, and community coalitions to 
support people in treatment and recovery and to support family members in their 
efforts to support the person with OUD in the family. 

11. Provide training and development of procedures for government staff to 
appropriately interact and provide social and other services to individuals with or 
in recovery from OUD, including reducing stigma. 

12. Support stigma reduction efforts regarding treatment and support for persons with 
OUD, including reducing the stigma on effective treatment. 

13. Create or support culturally appropriate services and programs for persons with 
OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, including new Americans. 

14. Create and/or support recovery high schools. 

15. Hire or train behavioral health workers to provide or expand any of the services or 
supports listed above. 

C. CONNECT PEOPLE WHO NEED HELP TO THE HELP THEY NEED 
(CONNECTIONS TO CARE)  

Provide connections to care for people who have—or are at risk of developing—OUD 
and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions through evidence-based or evidence-informed 
programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, those that:  

Appendix B



 
 

E-7 

1. Ensure that health care providers are screening for OUD and other risk factors and 
know how to appropriately counsel and treat (or refer if necessary) a patient for 
OUD treatment. 

2. Fund SBIRT programs to reduce the transition from use to disorders, including 
SBIRT services to pregnant women who are uninsured or not eligible for 
Medicaid. 

3. Provide training and long-term implementation of SBIRT in key systems (health, 
schools, colleges, criminal justice, and probation), with a focus on youth and 
young adults when transition from misuse to opioid disorder is common. 

4. Purchase automated versions of SBIRT and support ongoing costs of the 
technology. 

5. Expand services such as navigators and on-call teams to begin MAT in hospital 
emergency departments. 

6. Provide training for emergency room personnel treating opioid overdose patients 
on post-discharge planning, including community referrals for MAT, recovery 
case management or support services. 

7. Support hospital programs that transition persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, or persons who have experienced an opioid overdose, into 
clinically appropriate follow-up care through a bridge clinic or similar approach. 

8. Support crisis stabilization centers that serve as an alternative to hospital 
emergency departments for persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions or persons that have experienced an opioid overdose. 

9. Support the work of Emergency Medical Systems, including peer support 
specialists, to connect individuals to treatment or other appropriate services 
following an opioid overdose or other opioid-related adverse event. 

10. Provide funding for peer support specialists or recovery coaches in emergency 
departments, detox facilities, recovery centers, recovery housing, or similar 
settings; offer services, supports, or connections to care to persons with OUD and 
any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions or to persons who have experienced an 
opioid overdose. 

11. Expand warm hand-off services to transition to recovery services. 

12. Create or support school-based contacts that parents can engage with to seek 
immediate treatment services for their child; and support prevention, intervention, 
treatment, and recovery programs focused on young people. 

13. Develop and support best practices on addressing OUD in the workplace. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-8 

14. Support assistance programs for health care providers with OUD. 

15. Engage non-profits and the faith community as a system to support outreach for 
treatment. 

16. Support centralized call centers that provide information and connections to 
appropriate services and supports for persons with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions. 

D. ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE-INVOLVED PERSONS  

Address the needs of persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions who 
are involved in, are at risk of becoming involved in, or are transitioning out of the 
criminal justice system through evidence-based or evidence-informed programs or 
strategies that may include, but are not limited to, those that:  

1. Support pre-arrest or pre-arraignment diversion and deflection strategies for 
persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, including 
established strategies such as:  

1. Self-referral strategies such as the Angel Programs or the Police Assisted 
Addiction Recovery Initiative (“PAARI”);  

2. Active outreach strategies such as the Drug Abuse Response Team 
(“DART”) model;  

3. “Naloxone Plus” strategies, which work to ensure that individuals who 
have received naloxone to reverse the effects of an overdose are then 
linked to treatment programs or other appropriate services;  

4. Officer prevention strategies, such as the Law Enforcement Assisted 
Diversion (“LEAD”) model;  

5. Officer intervention strategies such as the Leon County, Florida Adult 
Civil Citation Network or the Chicago Westside Narcotics Diversion to 
Treatment Initiative; or 

6. Co-responder and/or alternative responder models to address OUD-related 
911 calls with greater SUD expertise. 

2. Support pre-trial services that connect individuals with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions to evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, 
and related services. 

3. Support treatment and recovery courts that provide evidence-based options for 
persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-9 

4. Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, harm 
reduction, or other appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions who are incarcerated in jail or prison. 

5. Provide evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, recovery support, harm 
reduction, or other appropriate services to individuals with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions who are leaving jail or prison or have recently left 
jail or prison, are on probation or parole, are under community corrections 
supervision, or are in re-entry programs or facilities. 

6. Support critical time interventions (“CTI”), particularly for individuals living with 
dual-diagnosis OUD/serious mental illness, and services for individuals who face 
immediate risks and service needs and risks upon release from correctional 
settings. 

7. Provide training on best practices for addressing the needs of criminal justice-
involved persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions to law 
enforcement, correctional, or judicial personnel or to providers of treatment, 
recovery, harm reduction, case management, or other services offered in 
connection with any of the strategies described in this section. 

E. ADDRESS THE NEEDS OF PREGNANT OR PARENTING WOMEN AND 
THEIR FAMILIES, INCLUDING BABIES WITH NEONATAL ABSTINENCE 
SYNDROME  

Address the needs of pregnant or parenting women with OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, and the needs of their families, including babies with neonatal 
abstinence syndrome (“NAS”), through evidence-based or evidence-informed programs 
or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, those that:  

1. Support evidence-based or evidence-informed treatment, including MAT, 
recovery services and supports, and prevention services for pregnant women—or 
women who could become pregnant—who have OUD and any co-occurring 
SUD/MH conditions, and other measures to educate and provide support to 
families affected by Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome. 

2. Expand comprehensive evidence-based treatment and recovery services, including 
MAT, for uninsured women with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions for up to 12 months postpartum. 

3. Provide training for obstetricians or other healthcare personnel who work with 
pregnant women and their families regarding treatment of OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

4. Expand comprehensive evidence-based treatment and recovery support for NAS 
babies; expand services for better continuum of care with infant-need dyad; and 
expand long-term treatment and services for medical monitoring of NAS babies 
and their families. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-10 

5. Provide training to health care providers who work with pregnant or parenting 
women on best practices for compliance with federal requirements that children 
born with NAS get referred to appropriate services and receive a plan of safe care. 

6. Provide child and family supports for parenting women with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

7. Provide enhanced family support and child care services for parents with OUD 
and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

8. Provide enhanced support for children and family members suffering trauma as a 
result of addiction in the family; and offer trauma-informed behavioral health 
treatment for adverse childhood events. 

9. Offer home-based wrap-around services to persons with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions, including, but not limited to, parent skills 
training. 

10. Provide support for Children’s Services—Fund additional positions and services, 
including supportive housing and other residential services, relating to children 
being removed from the home and/or placed in foster care due to custodial opioid 
use. 

PART TWO:  PREVENTION  

F. PREVENT OVER-PRESCRIBING AND ENSURE APPROPRIATE 
PRESCRIBING AND DISPENSING OF OPIOIDS  

Support efforts to prevent over-prescribing and ensure appropriate prescribing and 
dispensing of opioids through evidence-based or evidence-informed programs or 
strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following:  

1. Funding medical provider education and outreach regarding best prescribing 
practices for opioids consistent with the Guidelines for Prescribing Opioids for 
Chronic Pain from the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, including 
providers at hospitals (academic detailing). 

2. Training for health care providers regarding safe and responsible opioid 
prescribing, dosing, and tapering patients off opioids. 

3. Continuing Medical Education (CME) on appropriate prescribing of opioids. 

4. Providing Support for non-opioid pain treatment alternatives, including training 
providers to offer or refer to multi-modal, evidence-informed treatment of pain. 

5. Supporting enhancements or improvements to Prescription Drug Monitoring 
Programs (“PDMPs”), including, but not limited to, improvements that:  

Appendix B



 
 

E-11 

1. Increase the number of prescribers using PDMPs; 

2. Improve point-of-care decision-making by increasing the quantity, quality, 
or format of data available to prescribers using PDMPs, by improving the 
interface that prescribers use to access PDMP data, or both; or  

3. Enable states to use PDMP data in support of surveillance or intervention 
strategies, including MAT referrals and follow-up for individuals 
identified within PDMP data as likely to experience OUD in a manner that 
complies with all relevant privacy and security laws and rules. 

6. Ensuring PDMPs incorporate available overdose/naloxone deployment data, 
including the United States Department of Transportation’s Emergency Medical 
Technician overdose database in a manner that complies with all relevant privacy 
and security laws and rules. 

7. Increasing electronic prescribing to prevent diversion or forgery. 

8. Educating dispensers on appropriate opioid dispensing. 

G. PREVENT MISUSE OF OPIOIDS  

Support efforts to discourage or prevent misuse of opioids through evidence-based or 
evidence-informed programs or strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the 
following:  

1. Funding media campaigns to prevent opioid misuse. 

2. Corrective advertising or affirmative public education campaigns based on 
evidence. 

3. Public education relating to drug disposal. 

4. Drug take-back disposal or destruction programs. 

5. Funding community anti-drug coalitions that engage in drug prevention efforts. 

6. Supporting community coalitions in implementing evidence-informed prevention, 
such as reduced social access and physical access, stigma reduction—including 
staffing, educational campaigns, support for people in treatment or recovery, or 
training of coalitions in evidence-informed implementation, including the 
Strategic Prevention Framework developed by the U.S. Substance Abuse and 
Mental Health Services Administration (“SAMHSA”). 

7. Engaging non-profits and faith-based communities as systems to support 
prevention. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-12 

8. Funding evidence-based prevention programs in schools or evidence-informed 
school and community education programs and campaigns for students, families, 
school employees, school athletic programs, parent-teacher and student 
associations, and others. 

9. School-based or youth-focused programs or strategies that have demonstrated 
effectiveness in preventing drug misuse and seem likely to be effective in 
preventing the uptake and use of opioids. 

10. Create or support community-based education or intervention services for 
families, youth, and adolescents at risk for OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH 
conditions. 

11. Support evidence-informed programs or curricula to address mental health needs 
of young people who may be at risk of misusing opioids or other drugs, including 
emotional modulation and resilience skills. 

12. Support greater access to mental health services and supports for young people, 
including services and supports provided by school nurses, behavioral health 
workers or other school staff, to address mental health needs in young people that 
(when not properly addressed) increase the risk of opioid or another drug misuse. 

H. PREVENT OVERDOSE DEATHS AND OTHER HARMS (HARM REDUCTION)  

Support efforts to prevent or reduce overdose deaths or other opioid-related harms 
through evidence-based or evidence-informed programs or strategies that may include, 
but are not limited to, the following:  

1. Increased availability and distribution of naloxone and other drugs that treat 
overdoses for first responders, overdose patients, individuals with OUD and their 
friends and family members, schools, community navigators and outreach 
workers, persons being released from jail or prison, or other members of the 
general public. 

2. Public health entities providing free naloxone to anyone in the community. 

3. Training and education regarding naloxone and other drugs that treat overdoses 
for first responders, overdose patients, patients taking opioids, families, schools, 
community support groups, and other members of the general public. 

4. Enabling school nurses and other school staff to respond to opioid overdoses, and 
provide them with naloxone, training, and support. 

5. Expanding, improving, or developing data tracking software and applications for 
overdoses/naloxone revivals. 

6. Public education relating to emergency responses to overdoses. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-13 

7. Public education relating to immunity and Good Samaritan laws. 

8. Educating first responders regarding the existence and operation of immunity and 
Good Samaritan laws. 

9. Syringe service programs and other evidence-informed programs to reduce harms 
associated with intravenous drug use, including supplies, staffing, space, peer 
support services, referrals to treatment, fentanyl checking, connections to care, 
and the full range of harm reduction and treatment services provided by these 
programs. 

10. Expanding access to testing and treatment for infectious diseases such as HIV and 
Hepatitis C resulting from intravenous opioid use. 

11. Supporting mobile units that offer or provide referrals to harm reduction services, 
treatment, recovery supports, health care, or other appropriate services to persons 
that use opioids or persons with OUD and any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

12. Providing training in harm reduction strategies to health care providers, students, 
peer recovery coaches, recovery outreach specialists, or other professionals that 
provide care to persons who use opioids or persons with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions. 

13. Supporting screening for fentanyl in routine clinical toxicology testing. 

PART THREE:  OTHER STRATEGIES  
 

I. FIRST RESPONDERS  

In addition to items in section C, D and H relating to first responders, support the 
following:  

1. Education of law enforcement or other first responders regarding appropriate 
practices and precautions when dealing with fentanyl or other drugs. 

2. Provision of wellness and support services for first responders and others who 
experience secondary trauma associated with opioid-related emergency events. 

J. LEADERSHIP, PLANNING AND COORDINATION  

Support efforts to provide leadership, planning, coordination, facilitations, training and 
technical assistance to abate the opioid epidemic through activities, programs, or 
strategies that may include, but are not limited to, the following:  

1. Statewide, regional, local or community regional planning to identify root causes 
of addiction and overdose, goals for reducing harms related to the opioid 
epidemic, and areas and populations with the greatest needs for treatment 

Appendix B



 
 

E-14 

intervention services, and to support training and technical assistance and other 
strategies to abate the opioid epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy 
list. 

2. A dashboard to (a) share reports, recommendations, or plans to spend opioid 
settlement funds; (b) to show how opioid settlement funds have been spent; (c) to 
report program or strategy outcomes; or (d) to track, share or visualize key opioid- 
or health-related indicators and supports as identified through collaborative 
statewide, regional, local or community processes. 

3. Invest in infrastructure or staffing at government or not-for-profit agencies to 
support collaborative, cross-system coordination with the purpose of preventing 
overprescribing, opioid misuse, or opioid overdoses, treating those with OUD and 
any co-occurring SUD/MH conditions, supporting them in treatment or recovery, 
connecting them to care, or implementing other strategies to abate the opioid 
epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

4. Provide resources to staff government oversight and management of opioid 
abatement programs. 

K. TRAINING  

In addition to the training referred to throughout this document, support training to abate 
the opioid epidemic through activities, programs, or strategies that may include, but are 
not limited to, those that:  

1. Provide funding for staff training or networking programs and services to improve 
the capability of government, community, and not-for-profit entities to abate the 
opioid crisis. 

2. Support infrastructure and staffing for collaborative cross-system coordination to 
prevent opioid misuse, prevent overdoses, and treat those with OUD and any co-
occurring SUD/MH conditions, or implement other strategies to abate the opioid 
epidemic described in this opioid abatement strategy list (e.g., health care, 
primary care, pharmacies, PDMPs, etc.). 

L. RESEARCH  

Support opioid abatement research that may include, but is not limited to, the following:  

1. Monitoring, surveillance, data collection and evaluation of programs and 
strategies described in this opioid abatement strategy list. 

2. Research non-opioid treatment of chronic pain. 

3. Research on improved service delivery for modalities such as SBIRT that 
demonstrate promising but mixed results in populations vulnerable to 
opioid use disorders. 

Appendix B



 
 

E-15 

4. Research on novel harm reduction and prevention efforts such as the 
provision of fentanyl test strips. 

5. Research on innovative supply-side enforcement efforts such as improved 
detection of mail-based delivery of synthetic opioids. 

6. Expanded research on swift/certain/fair models to reduce and deter opioid 
misuse within criminal justice populations that build upon promising 
approaches used to address other substances (e.g., Hawaii HOPE and 
Dakota 24/7). 

7. Epidemiological surveillance of OUD-related behaviors in critical 
populations, including individuals entering the criminal justice system, 
including, but not limited to approaches modeled on the Arrestee Drug 
Abuse Monitoring (“ADAM”) system. 

8. Qualitative and quantitative research regarding public health risks and 
harm reduction opportunities within illicit drug markets, including surveys 
of market participants who sell or distribute illicit opioids. 

9. Geospatial analysis of access barriers to MAT and their association with 
treatment engagement and treatment outcomes. 

Appendix B



Appendix C 
 
Award Amount 
 
Years 1 & 2: $104,574.98 
Year 3:  $52,287.48 
Year 4:  $52,287.48 
Year 7:  $35,664.08 
Total:  $244,814.02 

 



7.d.i.





Agenda Item ___ 

August 28, 2024 

Prepared by Lisa Beeman 

Grant Coordinator 

 

 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 

Discuss and take possible action to approve a Resolution amending the Budget for the 

City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 appropriating unanticipated 

revenue in the Opioid Settlement Fund of the Police Department for the use of Opioid 

Settlement Funds.  

 

Attachments:  Resolution 
  

 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 

In order to accept $244,814.02 in funding from the State of Oklahoma as per the 

agreement with the State of Oklahoma to receive and utilize funding from the Opioid 

Lawsuit Settlement, a budget amendment must be approved.  The attached resolution 

authorizes a budget amendment to the Opioid Settlement Fund (263) of the Police 

Department (170). 

 

  

III. BUDGET IMPACT 

 

There is no impact to the current budget. 

 

 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 

Staff recommends approval of the budget resolution as presented.  

 

 

7.d.ii.



RESOLUTION ___________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025, 

APPROPRIATING UNANTICIPATED REVENUE IN THE OPIOID 

ABATEMENT FUND OF THE POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR THE USE OF 

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUNDS. 

 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville has received unbudgeted funding in the amount of 

$244,814.02; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville needs to appropriate $244,814.02 of these revenues 

prior to their expenditure; 

 

NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA that: 

 

 The Opioid Settlement Fund (263) of the Police Department (270) shall be 

increased as follows: 
 

 Other Services (52510) $ 244,814.02 
 

 

APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 3rd DAY OF September, 2024. 

 

 

 

   

  Dale Copeland, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

 

  

 City Clerk 



1 Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and within schools. HR 10/23 100%

2
Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate potential vacation 
buyback program.

HR 10/23 100%

3 Implement a job swap program for employees. HR 10/23 100%
4 Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly. HR 07/24 100%

5
Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home program for 
applicable employees.

HR 04/24 100%

1 Develop a committee to research best practices and accreditation programs. Admin 10/23 100% Committee has met and is gathering data.

2
Develop and implement a performance and reward-based evaluation process for 
general employees by July 1, 2023 with intent to negotiate this process for 
uniformed groups in the future.

HR 07/23 100%

3
Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to determine how we 
can integrate these systems into our operating departments.

IT 04/24 90%
Selected alternative solutions due to usability 
issues with 311 and EAM.

4
Revise and update our website using newest technologies and integrations to 
improve citizen satisfaction and e-gov capabilities.

CCO 10/24 65%

1
Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and departmental 
achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of report to be circulated in utility bill. 

Admin 09/24 90%
Changed the date to match up with our fiscal 
year.  Original completion date was 4/24.

2
Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen feedback and requests for all 
City departments. Individual departments may also be surveyed individually as part 
of a larger survey plan.

Admin 04/24 75% Software on council agenda for approval.

3
Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their department and the City as 
an overall employer by July 1, 2023.

HR 07/23 100%

4
Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City services as 
appropriate.

Admin 10/23 100%

5
Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow subscription base by 
10%.

CCO 04/24 100%

1 Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to:
a Formal debt policy based on GFOA authoritative guidance. A&F 10/23 100%

BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - AUGUST 2024

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety programs to improve workplace culture and morale.

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational excellence, developing a performance and reward-based evaluation process, 

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, community survey, and employee survey.

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a comprehensive Council handbook.

1 of 4

Agenda Item 7.e.i.



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - AUGUST 2024

b
Formal policy requiring that utility rate studies be conducted at least every 5 years 
and requiring Council to utilize periodic rate studies to adopt multiyear rate plans. 

A&F 10/23 100%

c
Formal capital planning policy requiring that a 5-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
be prepared by Staff and adopted by the City Council concurrently with the budget 
every year. 

A&F 10/23 100%

2
Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue and expenditures for 
major operating funds to assist the Council and Staff in better planning for the 
future. 

A&F 07/25 35%
Will contact Crawford & Assoc.  If they are 
unable to provide service, then implementation 
may be delayed.

3
City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help to guide current and 
future City Councils. City Manager will work with Mayor to schedule a Council 
workshop to discuss this item within one year of adoption of Strategic Plan. 

Admin 04/24 100%

1

The intent of the asset management program is to compile age, material, condition, 
and service life of the City’s infrastructure (facilities, airport, streets, storm drain, 
wastewater, water, signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS software to aid in planning 
improvement priority and capital needs.

Eng

a
Staff will determine what items need to be tracked, what data exists, and what data 
needs to be collected

Eng 10/23 100% Software selected and implementation began.

b Select consultant to collect and populate data into ESRI. Eng

i Facilities, streets, storm drains, wastewater and water Eng 10/24 75%
Most data collected but storm drain may require 
comprehensive study.

ii Signs and signals Eng 10/25 75% Data collected but needs to be integrated.

1 Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). Eng
a Complete PCI update currently under contract. Eng 04/23 100%

b
Once complete, develop several PCI score scenarios (maintain existing, desired PCI in 
5 years and desired PCI in 10 years) with capital investment requirements – 6 
months.

Eng 06/23 100%

1
Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range plans utilizing accepted 
best practices (i.e. transportation, storm drainage, utilities, etc.). 

Comm Dev

a Staff will develop an RFP to select a consultant. Comm Dev 06/23 100%

EFFECTIVE INFRASTRUCTURE NETWORK
Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure.

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI).

ECONOMIC VITALITY
Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes align with best practices and reflect the character of our community.

2 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - AUGUST 2024

b Present recommendations to the Council Comm Dev 10/24 5%
Start date of project was delayed, so end date 
has been adjusted accordingly.

2
Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes which regulate private 
development and land use following the updated comprehensive land use plan. 

Comm Dev 06/25 0%

1
Identify economic development partners and assign City employee to act as 
economic development liaison. Liaison shall act as conduit between economic 
development partners, developer, and City departments. 

Admin 06/23 100%

2
Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to determine how best 
to support their efforts and to define the expectations for all parties.

Admin 12/23 100%

3 Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic development partners. Admin 100%

1 Identify community partners who employ and recruit young professionals. Admin 09/23 100%

2
Engage with community partners to learn how the City can attract young 
professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 75% Meetings have started.

3
Examine ways to make the community more enticing for businesses and restaurants 
that attract young professionals and families 

Admin 01/24 0%

4
Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their efforts and 
accomplishments 

Admin 01/24 100%

1 Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse cultures in our community. Library 01/24 100%

a Use this group to support/identify cultural needs that are unmet.
b Partner/support this group for an annual event.

2 Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities, properties, venues, etc.) Library 01/25 0%

1
As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other plans identified in 
Economic Vitality, update the Parks Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle options and 
parks and recreation systems are meeting the needs of the public.

Comm Dev 10/24 25% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

2
Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing assets and plans such as 
bicycle plan.

CD/S&T 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

a Review, evaluate, and update the Bicycle Plan CD/S&T 10/24 0% Tied to the comprehensive plan.

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development.

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to Bartlesville.

COMMUNITY CHARACTER
Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community.

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and transportation systems.

3 of 4



BARTLESVILLE NEXT PROGRESS REPORT - AUGUST 2024

1
Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community spaces, including 
destruction or defacement of public restrooms, violations of park curfews, etc.

PW/PD

a
Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks combined with 
motion and smoke detectors

Pub Works 04/24 95% 9 of 10 bathrooms installed

b Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems PD 04/24 100%

i
Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism, arson, 
trespassing, etc.

PD 04/24 100%

2
Coordinate citizen volunteer efforts to supplement our maintenance efforts and to 
improve the appearance of our City. These could include periodic clean up days, 
adopt a mile programs, adopt a path programs, etc. 

CD/PW 07/23 100% KBB established.

a Staff to list and prioritize possible programs. CD/PW 01/24 75%
b Adopt formal policy for selected program(s). CD/PW 04/24 50%
c Advertise, promote, operate, and publicly report on the success of this program. CD/PW 10/24 50%

3 Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program PD 10/23 100%
4 Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City App Comm Dev 04/24 100%
5 Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks and rights-of-way. Pub Works 07/23 100%

1 Child Care: Admin

a Collaborate with local groups to help find solutions to the local child care shortage. Admin 04/24 100%
New task force established and meeting 
regularly.

b
Help advocate for reform of child care regulations that act as barriers to new 
facilities.

Admin 90%
Draft review of local regulations complete and 
prepared to be presented to CPC.

2 Housing: Comm Dev

a
Evaluate local housing supply and demand to determine gaps in local housing stock 
by price level.

Comm Dev 04/24 100%

3 Homelessness: PD

a
Collaborate with local groups seeking to reduce homelessness including “United 
Way” and “B the Light”.

Admin/CD 04/24 100%
Collaboration with "B the Light" will continue.  
Their construction currently delayed by ODEQ.

b
Review existing laws and enforcement policies and retrain police officers to better 
handle crimes committed by the homeless.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

c
Utilize the mental health team data from PD to better understand our homeless 
population, how many homeless are in Bartlesville, and why they are here.

Admin/PD 04/24 100%

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential solution that address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others 

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces.

EMERGING ISSUES

4 of 4



Agenda Item ___ 
August 15, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the twelve months ending June 30, 2024.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for June 30, 2024 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for June 2024; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for June 30, 2024. 

7.f.i.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Quinn Schipper
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2024

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

95.0%

100.0%

105.0%

110.0%

115.0%

120.0%

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

96.0%

98.0%

100.0%

102.0%

104.0%

106.0%

108.0%

110.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

105.0%

110.0%

115.0%

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

94.0%

96.0%

98.0%

100.0%

102.0%

104.0%

106.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 17,643,955$  17,643,955$  18,078,667$  -$                   18,078,667$  102.5% 18,114,705$  100.0%
Use Tax 2,500,000       2,500,000       4,818,896       -                     4,818,896       192.8% 1,550,537       100.0%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,582,000       1,582,000       1,535,953       -                     1,535,953       97.1% 1,626,755       100.0%
Licenses and Permits 256,700          256,700          259,979          -                     259,979          101.3% 257,340          100.0%
Intergovernmental 700,400          700,400          728,686          -                     728,686          104.0% 712,602          100.0%
Charges for Services 478,800          478,800          575,290          -                     575,290          120.2% 598,178          100.0%
Court Costs 160,000          160,000          184,996          -                     184,996          115.6% 190,255          100.0%
Police/Traffic Fines 460,000          460,000          339,198          -                     339,198          73.7% 405,378          100.0%
Parking Fines 68,200            68,200            51,400            -                     51,400            75.4% 47,915            100.0%
Other Fines 80,400            80,400            63,129            -                     63,129            78.5% 70,251            100.0%
Investment Income 150,000          150,000          2,115,465       -                     2,115,465       1410.3% 958,765          100.0%
Miscellaneous Income 910,700          910,700          1,139,598       -                     1,139,598       125.1% 753,387          100.0%
Transfers In 6,561,228       6,561,228       6,561,228       -                     6,561,228       100.0% 9,170,941       100.0%

Total 31,552,383$  31,552,383$  36,452,487$  -$                   36,452,487$  115.5% 34,457,009$  100.0%

Expenditures:
General Government 9,101,305$     9,101,305$     8,277,049$     720,203$      8,997,252$     98.9% 8,203,793$     100.0%
Public Safety 17,055,651     17,055,651     16,994,212     61,197          17,055,409     100.0% 15,448,474     100.0%
Street 2,063,511       2,063,511       1,850,046       84,240          1,934,286       93.7% 1,798,480       100.0%
Culture and Recreation 3,750,180       3,750,180       3,526,876       50,346          3,577,222       95.4% 3,258,157       100.0%
Transfers Out 4,189,369       4,189,369       4,189,369       -                     4,189,369       100.0% 4,011,107       100.0%
Reserves 1,194,800       1,194,800       -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 37,354,816$  37,354,816$  34,837,552$  915,986$      35,753,538$  95.7% 32,720,011$  100.0%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 5,555,372$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 1,614,935       

Ending Fund Balance 7,170,307$    

100% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,007,344$     6,007,344$     6,100,858$  -$                   6,100,858$     101.6% 5,857,374$     117.5%
Investment Income -                        -                        141,131        -                      141,131          N.A. 61,147             ######
Debt Proceeds -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             30,000             136,076        -                      136,076          453.6% 176,333          866.2%

Total 6,037,344$    6,037,344$    6,378,065$  -$                   6,378,065$    105.6% 6,094,854$    121.8%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,965,385$     2,965,385$     2,952,509$  2,120$          2,954,629$     99.6% 2,694,156$     101.0%
Wastewater Maint 861,009          861,009          818,652        12,561          831,213          96.5% 713,208          109.1%
BMA Expenses 27,735             27,735             27,730          -                      27,730             100.0% 27,870             N.A.
Transfers Out 1,646,975       1,646,975       1,646,975     -                      1,646,975       100.0% 1,642,574       114.1%
Reserves 88,790             88,790             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 5,589,894$    5,589,894$    5,445,867$  14,681$        5,460,548$    97.7% 5,077,808$    106.6%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,925,118$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 932,198        

Ending Fund Balance 3,857,316$  

100% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  11,091,140$  10,523,917$  -$                    10,523,917$  94.9% 11,528,445$  109.7%
Investment Income -                       -                       148,923          -                       148,923          N.A. 81,323            1456.9%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       749,416          -                       749,416          N.A. 7,343               727.0%

Total 11,091,140$  11,091,140$  11,422,256$  -$                    11,422,256$  103.0% 11,617,111$  110.4%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 3,920,908$     3,920,908$     3,540,244$     145,670$       3,685,913$     94.0% 3,482,943$     125.3%
Water Administration 413,611          413,611          398,081          14,359            412,440          99.7% 387,976          114.9%
Water Distribution 2,251,525       2,251,525       1,892,659       31,786            1,924,445       85.5% 1,761,413       130.5%
BMA Expenses 4,893,763       4,893,763       3,413,106       635,099         4,048,205       82.7% 6,678,096       223.9%
Transfers Out 2,585,280       2,585,280       2,585,280       -                       2,585,280       100.0% 2,569,382       114.8%
Reserves 294,520          294,520          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 14,359,607$  14,359,607$  11,829,369$  826,913$       12,656,283$  88.1% 14,879,810$  153.6%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,688,787$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (407,113)         

Ending Fund Balance 7,281,674$    

100% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,055,185$     6,055,185$     6,189,256$       -$                   6,189,256$     102.2% 5,781,146$     100.0%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 173,239          45,669            138,296             -                     138,296          79.8% 166,394          100.0%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,228,424$    6,100,854$    6,327,552$       -$                   6,327,552$    101.6% 5,947,540$    100.0%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,564,131$     3,564,131$     3,445,723$       86,220$        3,531,944$     99.1% 3,265,009$     100.0%
Transfers Out 2,649,730       2,649,730       2,649,730         -                     2,649,730       100.0% 2,647,446       100.0%
Reserves 134,997          134,997          -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,348,858$    6,348,858$    6,095,453$       86,220$        6,181,674$    97.4% 5,912,455$    100.0%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 261,319$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 232,098             

Ending Fund Balance 493,417$          

100% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,902,083     2,166,698    114%
E-911 Fund 1,095,403     1,202,295    110%
Special Library Fund 123,970        211,596       171%
Special Museum Fund -                     57,105          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund 1,187,818     135,892       11%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     -                    N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 55,000          87,808          160%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 72,750          81,806          112%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                    N/A
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     7,185            N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     4,195            N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,600            3,205            123%

Debt Service Fund 4,818,069     4,624,495    96%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,603,280     4,195,018    116%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     53,587          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     50,261          N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          59,908          125%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     9,740            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     219,087       N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     6,900,000    100%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 663,654        724,387       109%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 72,245          74,887          104%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,205          97,011          103%
Municipal Airport Operating 585,975        752,709       128%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 93,460          119,693       128%
Health Insurance Fund 4,992,786     5,736,363    115%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          86,483          115%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,291,774     1,291,774    100%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 6,998,023     7,914,892    113%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     568               N/A

100% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,416,131     1,872,793    35%
E-911 Fund 1,226,020     1,132,771    92%
Special Library Fund 230,970        207,038        90%
Special Museum Fund 51,500           32,031          62%
Municipal Airport Fund 1,268,714     268,323        21%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 382,568        18,248          5%
Restricted Revenue Fund 352,568        116,426        33%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 116,790        81,814          70%
CDBG-COVID 485,378        485,378        100%
ARPA 1,000,000     1,000,000    100%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 29,599           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 12,303           200               2%

Debt Service Fund 4,820,069     4,748,269    99%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,894,477     2,123,053    31%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 104,701        74,999          72%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 797,351        266,017        33%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 170,362        5,200            3%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,577           7,447            13%
Community Development Block Grant Fund 7,700             7,180            93%
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 28,659           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 326,564        -                     0%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 385,860        44,400          12%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 521,244        -                     0%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 6,768,884     3,867,917    57%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     500,849        7%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 677,817        676,601        100%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 79,562           59,377          75%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 97,787           68,075          70%
Municipal Airport Operating 675,536        637,914        94%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        152,639        35%
Health Insurance Fund 5,756,531     5,753,530    100%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 490,206        99,846          20%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 13,396,373   5,767,152    43%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 7,791             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

100% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,688,119                 293,905        3,982,024     
E-911 Fund 143,165                    69,524          212,689        
Special Library Fund 328,430                    10,021          338,451        
Special Museum Fund 138,706                    25,074          163,780        
Municipal Airport Fund 78,128                       (78,128)         -                     
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 453,736                    (18,114)         435,622        
Restricted Revenue Fund 287,186                    (27,521)         259,665        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 46,262                       3,652            49,914           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 2,732,952                 (1,000,000)   1,732,952     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619                         7,185            14,804           
Neighborhood Park Fund 60,148                       4,195            64,343           
Cemetery Care Fund 10,033                       3,005            13,038           

Debt Service Fund 3,734,419                 (123,774)      3,610,645     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,790,513                 2,569,842    6,360,355     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 162,204                    (21,412)         140,792        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 573,569                    (175,893)      397,676        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 125,411                    54,708          180,119        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 56,884                       2,293            59,177           
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                                 211,387        211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885                         -                     3,885             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386                       -                     31,386           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    -                     327,431        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 385,860                    (35,219)         350,641        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    -                     526,494        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 6,765,084                 (3,652,881)   3,112,203     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 6,564,913    6,564,913     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 49,733                       86,889          136,622        
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 21,779                       18,388          40,167           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 23,489                       31,114          54,603           
Municipal Airport Operating 313,459                    117,795        431,254        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 350,435                    (29,226)         321,209        
Health Insurance Fund 20,168                       (17,167)         3,001             
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 509,865                    (13,363)         496,502        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651               1,291,774    13,225,425   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 17,447,897               3,901,458    21,349,355   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,141                         568               8,709             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

100% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item 7.g.i.



Agenda Item 7.g.ii.



INV-1 
 
G:\PROJECTS\2022061_Tuxedo Blvd over Caney River and Overflow - Guy\Tuxedo Bridges\SPECS\3_Invitation for 
Bids.docx       

  
(Published in Bartlesville, OK Examiner-Enterprise 7/27/2024, 7/31/2024, & 8/3/2024) 

 
INVITATION FOR BIDS  

City of Bartlesville 
Tuxedo Bridge over Caney River 

Bid No. 2024-2025-006 
 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Bartlesville will receive sealed bids at the office of the City Clerk 
until 2:00 p.m. on the 20th day of August, 2024 at such time bids will be opened and publicly read. 
 
The project consists of furnishing all materials, labor, and expenses necessary to construct the project as 
called for in the plans and specifications on file in the Engineering Department, 3rd Floor, City Hall, 401 S. 
Johnstone, Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003, (918) 338-4251.  Plans, specifications, and contract documents 
may be examined in this office and are available at a nonrefundable charge of $25.00 or they can be 
requested and received via email at no charge (kdtoulou@cityofbartlesville.org). 
 
No documents will be mailed until payment is received in full. 
 
A mandatory pre-bid conference will be held on August 6th, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. in the City Hall, 3rd 
Floor Conference Room, 401 S. Johnstone, Bartlesville, Oklahoma. 
 
The major work on the project shall consist of the following: 
BASE BID 

854 CY 414(G) PC Concrete for Pavement 
854 SY 414(E) Full Depth P.C.C. Patch (Placement) 
248 CY 509(A) Class AA Concrete 
190 CY 509(B) Class A Concrete 

64,060 LB 511(B) Epoxy Coated Reinforcing Steel 
 
Proposals shall be submitted in sealed envelopes and marked, “City Clerk, City Hall, 401 S. Johnstone, 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003, Tuxedo Bridge over Caney River, Bid No. 2024-2025-006”. Proposals shall 
be accompanied by a five percent (5%) bid guarantee. 
 
Each Bidder must deposit with his Bid, security in the amount, form, and subject to the conditions provided in 
the Information for Bidders. All Bids must be made on the required Bid form and Bidder shall be a record plan 
holder with the City. 
 
The Owner reserves the right to waive any informality or to reject any or all Bids and select the lowest and 
best bid. 
  
Bids received more than ninety-six (96) hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays) before the time 
set for receiving bids as well as bids received after the time set for receipt of bids will not be considered, and 
will be returned unopened. No Bidder may withdraw his Bid within 30 days after the actual date of the opening 
thereof. 
DATED this 23th day of July, 2024. 
                                __________________________ 
                                                                                                                                            City Clerk 

                                           
By: 
__________________________ 

                                                                                                                                            Deputy Clerk 
  

Agenda Item 7.g.iii.

Jason Muninger

Kim Toulouse



Agenda Item 7.g.iv.



Agenda Item #___ 
8/27/2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
      Engineering Department 

 
 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-004 for the Adams Golf Course Greens 
Renovation project. 
 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 
Heckenkemper Bid Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 

 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

This project has been identified in multiple General Obligation Bond (GO Bond) elections.  The 
project was initially approved as a discretionary project in the 2020 GO Bond election.  The 
intent of that project was to reconstruct half of the greens at Adams Golf Course.  Additional 
funding was approved as part of the 2023 GO Bond election to fund replacement of all greens, 
including the chipping, putting, and nursery greens.  The bids were set up to include the base bid 
consisting of replacing all 18 course greens along with the nursery, chipping, and putting greens.  
The base bid included all necessary components to upgrade the drainage and irrigation loops for 
each green.  The bid also included six (6) Add Alternates and three (3) Deduct Alternates.  The 
intent of the Deduct Alternates A-7 thru A-9 combined with Add Alternate A1 was to provide an 
option of only replacing the top four (4) inches of the newest greens rather than full 
reconstruction of those greens in case the bids came in too high to reconstruct all greens.  Add 
Alternate A2 included rebuilding some of the greens collars with salvaged greens material.  Add 
Alternate A3 included imported topsoil material to reconstruct the greens collars identified in A2. 
Add Alternate A4 included construction of 1,050 SF of cart trail.  Add Alternate A5 included 
construction of 130 LF of cart trail curb.  Add Alternate A6 included an upgrade to Tahoma 31 
Bermuda Sod on the reconstructed collars. 

 
B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and Southwest 
Construction News, six (6) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and attended the 
mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Four (4) contractors submitted a bid.  The base bids were as 
follows: 

 

 

8.



    Jonesplan, LLC (Tulsa, OK)      $1,965,916.50 

Mid-America Golf & Landscape (Lee’s Summit, MO)  $2,029,547.47 

United Golf, LLC (Tulsa, OK)     $2,095,815.47 

Viridity, LLC (Village of Loch Lloyd, MO)    $2,634,507.50 

       

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  Each bid 
had all of the necessary components.  Two of the bids had mathematical errors that altered the 
bid price, but this did not change the order of the bids.  

 

C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

$700,000.00 was originally budgeted for half of the greens in the 2023 issuance of the 2020 GO 
Bond.  $1,200,000 was budgeted to cover cost increase for half of the greens plus the remaining 
greens in the 2024 issuance of the 2023 GO Bond.  The $1,200,000 included in the 2023 GO 
Bond was determined based upon updated estimates in planning for that GO Bond election and 
with the understanding that the Lyon Foundation had committed an additional $500,000 to 
supplement the public funds.  Therefore, the total budget for the project is $2,400,000.  
$245,000 has been spent or encumbered to date for the Heckenkemper design contract and 
master plan contract, leaving $2,155,000 available for construction. The lowest base bid by 
Jonesplan, LLC of $1,965,916.50 is $189,083.50 under the available budget.  Adding Alternates 
A2, A3, A4, A5, and A6 increases the bid to $2,041,297.50 which is still $113,705.50 below the 
available budget. 

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Jonesplan, LLC is a qualified bidder with the necessary golf course construction experience.  
They specialize in golf course and landscaping projects of a similar nature.  The City of 
Bartlesville has contracted with Jonesplan previously on the Tower Center at Unity Square 
project. They have provided information confirming they have the bonding capacity and 
technical expertise to complete this project. 

Our design consultant, Heckenkemper Golf Course Design, has provided a recommendation 
letter and staff recommends awarding the Base Bid and Alternates A2, A3, A4, A5, and A6 to 
Jonesplan, LLC in the amount of $2,041,297.50.   

 
 
 
              
                        Council Member      Date 
 

/s/ Trevor Dorsey August 28, 2024



Adams Golf Club Greens Renovation Project Bid Tabulation
City of Bartlesville

Base Bid

Item No. Line Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost Unit Cost Extended Cost

1 Mobilization & General Conditions 1                    LS 175,000.00$      175,000.00$          213,038.16$      213,038.16$          500,000.00$      500,000.00$          301,025.64$      301,025.64$          85,000.00$        85,000.00$            

2 Staking & Surveying - CIP 1                    LS 20,000.00$        20,000.00$            3,646.81$          3,646.81$              15,000.00$        15,000.00$            11,630.77$        11,630.77$            12,000.00$        12,000.00$            

3 Erosion Control & SWPPP Requirements - CIP 1                    LS 20,000.00$        20,000.00$            11,378.76$        11,378.76$            20,000.00$        20,000.00$            21,766.67$        21,766.67$            8,000.00$          8,000.00$              

4 Golf Course Demolition - CIP 1                    LS 75,000.00$        75,000.00$            140,978.81$      140,978.81$          100,000.00$      100,000.00$          61,538.46$        61,538.46$            57,300.00$        57,300.00$            

5 Golf Course Turf Removal - CIP 6.07               AC 10,000.00$        60,700.00$            6,422.47$          38,984.39$            6,250.00$          37,937.50$            4,984.58$          30,256.40$            6,500.00$          39,455.00$            

Schedule 1- Site Preparation 350,700.00$          408,026.93$          672,937.50$          426,217.94$          201,755.00$          

6 Topsoil Management - CIP 1                    LS 80,000.00$        80,000.00$            22,652.93$        22,652.93$            50,000.00$        50,000.00$            34,766.67$        34,766.67$            43,000.00$        43,000.00$            

7 Rough Shaping - CIP 1                    LS 120,000.00$      120,000.00$          48,807.28$        48,807.28$            300,000.00$      300,000.00$          121,025.64$      121,025.64$          97,000.00$        97,000.00$            

Schedule 2- Earthwork 200,000.00$          71,460.21$            350,000.00$          155,792.31$          140,000.00$          

8 Greens Construction (USGA Method; 90/10 Mix) - CIP 111,480         SF 10.50$               1,170,540.00$       9.16$                  1,021,156.80$       10.00$               1,114,800.00$       8.92$                  994,401.60$          9.25$                  1,031,190.00$       

Schedule 3- Feature Construction 1,170,540.00$       1,021,156.80$       1,114,800.00$       994,401.60$          1,031,190.00$       

9 ADS N-12 Drain Pipe (6" Diam.) - CIP 1,805             LF 16.00$               28,880.00$            36.47$               65,828.35$            15.00$               27,075.00$            23.86$               43,067.30$            20.00$               36,100.00$            

10 ADS Riser w/ Grate (12" Diam.) - CIP 1                    EA 1,500.00$          1,500.00$              1,586.52$          1,586.52$              1,500.00$          1,500.00$              1,458.97$          1,458.97$              750.00$             750.00$                  

11 Bubbler Grate - CIP 4                    EA 3,000.00$          12,000.00$            209.39$             837.56$                  1,000.00$          4,000.00$              1,042.31$          4,169.24$              750.00$             3,000.00$              

Schedule 4- Drainage 42,380.00$            68,252.43$            32,575.00$            48,695.51$            39,850.00$            

12 Irrigation Greens Loops - CIP 1                    LS 75,000.00$        75,000.00$            152,561.95$      152,561.95$          110,000.00$      110,000.00$          20,256.41$        20,256.41$            258,500.00$      258,500.00$          

13 Toro FLX35 Sprinkler - CIP 79                  EA 1,800.00$          142,200.00$          825.39$             65,205.81$            1,200.00$          94,800.00$            952.52$             75,249.08$            750.00$             59,250.00$            

14 Toro Quick Coupler - CIP 21                  LS 400.00$             8,400.00$              444.44$             9,333.24$              600.00$             12,600.00$            491.45$             10,320.45$            750.00$             15,750.00$            

Schedule 5- Irrigation 225,600.00$          227,101.00$          217,400.00$          105,825.94$          333,500.00$          

15 Fine Grading/Finish Shaping/Seedbed Prep - CIP 6.00               AC 7,500.00$          45,000.00$            15,274.69$        91,648.14$            6,350.00$          38,100.00$            13,675.21$        82,051.26$            11,000.00$        66,000.00$            

16 Golf Course Sodding (Astro Bermuda) - CIP 153,110         SF 0.50$                  76,555.00$            0.62$                  94,928.20$            0.70$                  107,177.00$          0.86$                  131,674.60$          0.45$                  68,899.50$            

17 Greens Seeding (007XL Bentgrass)- CIP 111,480         SF 0.40$                  44,592.00$            0.25$                  27,870.00$            0.35$                  39,018.00$            0.20$                  22,296.00$            0.15$                  16,722.00$            

18 Site Clean-Up- CIP 1                    LS 25,000.00$        25,000.00$            35,371.76$        35,371.76$            12,500.00$        12,500.00$            12,592.31$        12,592.31$            18,000.00$        18,000.00$            

Schedule 6- Grassing 191,147.00$          249,818.10$          196,795.00$          248,614.17$          169,621.50$          

19 Engineer's Allowance 1                    LS 50,000.00$        50,000.00$            50,000.00$        50,000.00$            50,000.00$        50,000.00$            50,000.00$        50,000.00$            50,000.00$        50,000.00$            

Schedule 7- Miscellaneous 50,000.00$            50,000.00$            50,000.00$            50,000.00$            50,000.00$            

Base Bid Subtotal 2,230,367.00$       2,095,815.47$       2,634,507.50$       2,029,547.47$       1,965,916.50$       

Item No. Add. Alterate Bid Item Quantity Unit Unit Cost Cost Unit Cost Cost Unit Cost Cost Unit Cost Cost Unit Cost Cost

A-1 Greens Restoration (Remove Organic Layer & Replace 4" Mix) - CIP 35,550           SF 4.50$                  159,975.00$          3.75$                  133,312.50$          3.00$                  106,650.00$          3.01$                  107,005.50$          4.00$                  142,200.00$          

A-2 Greens Collar Rebuild - CIP 7,140             SF 10.00$               71,400.00$            3.00$                  21,420.00$            1.75$                  12,495.00$            3.14$                  22,419.60$            5.25$                  37,485.00$            

A-3 Imported Topsoil - CIP 175                CY 45.00$               7,875.00$              103.93$             18,187.75$            55.00$               9,625.00$              143.35$             25,086.25$            50.00$               8,750.00$              

A-4 Cart Trail Construction - CIP 1,050             SF 12.00$               12,600.00$            22.00$               23,100.00$            10.00$               10,500.00$            11.15$               11,707.50$            16.00$               16,800.00$            

A-5 Cart Trail Curb - CIP 130                LF 18.00$               2,340.00$              40.00$               5,200.00$              20.00$               2,600.00$              13.63$               1,771.90$              60.00$               7,800.00$              

A-6 Tahoma 31 Bermuda Sod on Collars (36" W.) - CIP 18,184           SF 0.75$                  13,638.00$            0.18$                  3,273.12$              0.85$                  15,456.40$            1.73$                  31,458.32$            0.25$                  4,546.00$              

A-7 DEDUCT - Greens Demolition for Restored Greens - CIP 1                    LS (15,000.00)$       (15,000.00)$           (37,732.19)$       (37,732.19)$           (35,000.00)$       (35,000.00)$           -$                   (15,286.50)$           (10,000.00)$       (10,000.00)$           

A-8 DEDUCT - Rough Shaping for Restored Greens - CIP 1                    LS (20,000.00)$       (20,000.00)$           (13,716.15)$       (13,716.15)$           (90,000.00)$       (90,000.00)$           -$                   (29,862.00)$           (20,000.00)$       (20,000.00)$           

A-9 DEDUCT- Greens Construction (USGA Method; 90/10 Mix) - CIP 35,550           SF (10.50)$              (373,275.00)$         (7.24)$                (257,382.00)$         (10.00)$              (355,500.00)$         -$                   (247,072.50)$         (8.50)$                (302,175.00)$         

Schedule 8- Add. Alt. (140,447.00)$         (104,336.97)$         (323,173.60)$         (92,771.93)$           (114,594.00)$         

Add. Alternate Subtotal (140,447.00)$         (104,336.97)$         (323,173.60)$         (92,771.93)$           (114,594.00)$         

BASE BID PLUS ALL ADD. ALTERNATES SUBTOTAL 2,089,920.00$    1,991,478.50$    2,311,333.90$    1,936,775.54$    1,851,322.50$    

Viridity, LLC Mid-America Golf & Landscape Jonesplan, LLCArchitect's Estimate United Golf, LLC

8/21/2024

Page 1 of 2



Adams Golf Club Greens Renovation Project Bid Tabulation
City of Bartlesville

8/21/2024

*CIP = Complete In Place

Math Error

Differing Totals

No Number Provided

We, the undersigned, do hereby certify that all bids on this Bid Tabulation Sheet were reviewed and there were no irregularities in the bids not otherwise noted and that said sums are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Submitted By:

Conor Cummings, Golf Course Architect

This Bid Tabulation Sheet reflects corrected bid prices according to Bidder's Unit Cost Pricing times the estimated quantities listed in the Bid Form. Total numbers may vary from the total cost submitted by the Contractor in their Bid Form. 

Page 2 of 2



Heckenkemper Golf Course Design 
5314 South Yale Ave., Suite 510, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135 Phone 918/628-1255 Fax 918/628-1256 

 

 
 
August 23, 2024 
 
Micah Siemers, P.E., CFM 
Director of Engineering 
City of Bartlesville 
401 S. Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
VIA EMAIL 
 
RE: Adams Golf Club Greens Renovation Project  
  
Mr. Siemers, 
 
Bids were received from general contractors on the above referenced project on August 20, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. at 
the City of Bartlesville City Hall. 
 
A summation of the lowest acceptable bid is shown below: 
 
 Company    Jonesplan, LLC 
 Base Bid    $1,965,916.50   
 Add. Alternate A-2   $37,485.00 
 Add. Alternate A-3   $8,750.00 
 Add. Alternate A-4   $16,800.00 

Add. Alternate A-5   $7,800.00 
Add. Alternate A-6   $4,546.00  
TOTAL BID    $2,041,297.50 

  
Based upon the review of the above, the apparent low bidder for the Adams Golf Club Greens Renovation 
Project is Jonesplan, LLC, with a Total Base Bid of $1,965,916.50 and selected Alternates totaling $75,381.00. 
Other add. alternates were not selected from the bid. The corrected Bid Tabulation information for each bidder 
is attached. 
 
Heckenkemper Golf Course Design recommends the bid of Jonesplan, LLC of $2,041,297.50 be accepted and 
placed on the City Council agenda for award of the construction contract. 
 
Sincerely,   
Heckenkemper Golf Course Design   
 
 
 
 
Conor Cummings 
Golf Course Architect 



Approved by:

/s/ Loren Roszel, Councilmember
August 28, 2024

9.









Agenda Item #___ 
8/26/2024 

Prepared by Steve Roper 
      Engineering Department 

 
 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-006 for the Tuxedo Bridge over Caney 
River. 
 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Construction Plans 

 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

This project is a priority project included in the 2020 General Obligation Bonds (GO Bond).  The 
project consists of deck reconstruction of the westbound Tuxedo Bridge over the Caney River, 
deck repairs to the eastbound Tuxedo bridge over the Caney River and Tuxedo bridge over the 
Caney River overflow, guardrail improvements, and concrete panel replacements near the 
bridges.  All items of work were included in the Base Bid with no Bid Alternates.  

 
B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and Southwest 
Construction News, three (3) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and three (3) 
contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Three (3) contractors submitted a bid.  The 
base bids were as follows: 

 

    Becco Contractors, Inc. (Tulsa, OK)     $3,267,000.00 

    PBX Corporation (Sapulpa, OK)     $3,576,880.88 

  Wildcat Construction Co., Inc. (Topeka, KS)    $2,783,519.00 

   

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  All bids 
had all of the necessary components and were mathematically correct.    

  

10.



C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

This project, originally funded through the 2020 GO Bond, currently has a construction budget 
of $1,310,000.00.  Design fees were offset by allocation of surplus funds.  The lowest compliant 
bid by Wildcat Construction Co, Inc of $2,783,519.00 exceeds the available budget by 
$1,473,519.00.  Because the 2020 GO Bond has $1,495,000.00 assigned to discretionary street 
projects, the project could be funded at the expense of multiple other projects.  

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

After receiving bids for the project, Engineering staff discussed the project and options with 
Guy Engineering, the consultant project engineer.  Market factors, specific bid unit prices, and a 
reassessment of project needs indicate the most urgent project items could be addressed with a 
project of reduced scope at a cost savings that would be less impactful to other City of 
Bartlesville projects.   

Staff recommends rejecting all bids and readvertise the project with a reduced scope.   

 
 
  
              
                        Council Member      Date 
 

/s/ Quinn Schipper August 29, 2024



11.







 
1 

 

Agenda Item ___ 
September 3, 2024 

Prepared by Holly Mayhew 
 
 

 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
CASE NOS. PUD-0724-0043/44 – Public hearing and possible action on a request for a new Planned 
Unit Development (PUD) and Site Development Plan for 3.26 acres at the southeast corner of Southport 
Drive and Washington Boulevard/US HWY 75. 

Attachments: 
(1) Ordinance 
(2) Planning Commission Staff Report and Attachments 

 
The site currently consists of four unplatted parcels, zoned General Commercial/Planned Unit Development 
(C-5/PUD). The existing structures on the site include a former hotel, a medical marijuana dispensary and 
residential buildings, which will be demolished to accommodate the proposed new car dealership. 

Zoning history of the site includes three approved cases in 2004 (hotel), 2009 (drive-thru snack shop), and 
2014 (no proposed development at the time, but several uses excluded). 
 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The request involves a new Planned Unit Development (PUD) and Site Development Plan for 3.26 acres at 
the southeast corner of Southport Drive and Washington Boulevard/US Hwy 75. The applicant, Dan 
Keleher on behalf of Patriot Hyundai, seeks to develop an automobile dealership with a service area and 
outdoor display on the site. The proposed dealership building will occupy the southern portion of the site, 
with an outdoor car display and parking area to the north.  
 
The proposed use of the site for new automobile sales and service is permitted by right in the existing C-5 
zoning and is not excluded under the current PUDs. The PUD overlay allows for flexibility in design 
while maintaining compatibility with adjacent uses. 
 
PUD modifications are as follows: 

- Landscaping: Reduce the required residential buffer on the southern portion from 20 feet to 15 feet. 

- Non-Permitted Items: Prohibit intercom/loudspeaker systems and corrugated metal siding. 

- Excluded Uses: Uses previously excluded by approval of 2014 rezoning & PUD – listed in attached 
Design Statement from the applicant.  

 
Due to portions of the site being within the floodway and 100-year floodplain, development on the site 
will require the approval of a floodplain development permit prior to the issuance of building permits.  
 
The site’s current unplatted status necessitates the platting of the property before a Certificate of 
Occupancy can be issued. This process will consolidate the four parcels into a single lot and establish the 

 12.



 
2 

 

necessary easements for access and utilities. Platting will also allow for the formalization of the limits of 
access along Washington Boulevard, ensuring controlled entry and exit points for the site. 
 
In their regular meeting held August 27, 2024, the Planning Commission recommended approval of PUD-
0724-0043/44 per staff recommendation. Staff recommended approval subject to the following 
conditions: 

- Maintain or replace existing trees as part of the residential protection screening behind the 
elevated car display. If the existing trees cannot be maintained or replaced, an alternative 
residential protection screening method from the Zoning Regulations is required.  

- Obtain a floodplain development permit before issuance of any building permits.  

- Plat the property before issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  

- If the property is platted, no additional Site Development Plan will be required is all PUD Design 
Statement requirements are met.  

No one signed up to speak during the public hearing on this item. 
 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Planning Commission recommended approval of the requests by a vote of 7-0, subject to the following 
conditions: 

- Maintain or replace existing trees as part of the residential protection screening behind the 
elevated car display. If the existing trees cannot be maintained or replaced, an alternative 
residential protection screening method from the Zoning Regulations is required.  

- Obtain a floodplain development permit before issuance of any building permits.  

- Plat the property before issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  
 

- If the property is platted, no additional Site Development Plan will be required is all PUD Design 
Statement requirements are met.  

 
A public hearing to consider this request for approval of a Planned Unit Development and Site 
Development Plan has been scheduled for the Bartlesville City Council on Tuesday, September 3, 2024. 
The City Council is requested to hold this public hearing and make a final decision on this request. 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LAND USE AND ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, AND AMENDING THE ZONING MAP ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
CITY CLERK OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARY OF THE 
USE DISTRICT SO THAT CERTAIN AREAS HEREIN DESCRIBED AND LOCATED WITHIN 
THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA SHALL BE 
CHANGED FROM C-5/PUD TO C-5/PUD (NEW PUD) AND ACKNOWLEDGING THE 
APPROVAL OF A SUPPLEMENTAL DESIGNATION PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
(CASE NO. PUD-0724-0043/44). 
 

 
WHEREAS, a petition was heretofore filed with the Planning Commission of the City of Bartlesville 

requesting that the real estate described in Exhibit A attached hereto, located in the City of Bartlesville, be 
rezoned from C-5/PUD (General Commercial/Planned Unit Development) to C-5/PUD (New Planned Unit 
Development) and materials were submitted relative to a certain supplemental designation Planned Unit 
Development and Site Development Plan relative to all of the real property described in Exhibit A; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Bartlesville City Planning Commission considered said request at a public hearing 
on August 27, 2024, and following public input and discussion, submitted its report to the City Council with a 
recommendation for approval of a supplemental designation Planned Unit Development and;  

 
WHEREAS, after receipt of said report recommending approval of the request with conditions, the 

City Council thereafter gave due public notice of hearing to be held relative to said proposed changes, which 
notice stated the nature and purpose of said proposed changes, gave the time and place of said hearing and 
stated where copies of the proposed changes were available for inspection prior to the time of said hearing; and 
 

WHEREAS, on September 3, 2024, said hearing was duly held by the City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, on September 3, 2024 said City Council approved said rezoning and supplemental 
designation planned unit development. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 

Section 1.  That the land use and zoning map of the City of Bartlesville approved by the City Council 
on December 19, 1966, on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, be and the 
same is hereby amended by re-establishing the boundary of the use districts so that the following described real 
estate located in the City of Bartlesville, County of Washington, Oklahoma, containing 3.26 acres be rezoned 
from C-5/PUD to C-5/PUD (New PUD): 

 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SOUTHPORT DRIVE AND WASHINGTON BOULEVARD/US HWY 75 

SEE LEGAL DESCRIPTION IN ATTACHED EXHIBIT A  
 
 Section 2. That the PUD pertaining to Case No. PUD-0724-0043/44 relative to all of the real property 
described in Exhibit A is hereby approved with the following conditions: 
 

1. Maintain or replace existing trees as part of the residential protection screening behind the elevated 
car display. If the existing trees cannot be maintained or replaced, an alternative residential 
protection screening method from the Zoning Regulations is required. 

2. Obtain a floodplain development permit before issuance of any building permits. 
3. Plat the property before issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 
4. If the property is platted, no additional Site Development Plan will be required if all PUD Design 

Statement requirements are met. 
 



 

 Section 3.  That the materials submitted in connection with the case are hereby approved and adopted 
and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma this 

3rd day of September, 2024. 
 

  
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



COMPOSITE DESCRIPTION PREPARED FOR PUD 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (PREPARED BY JAMES C. FIELDER, OK PLS #1674, 
DATED 

7/18/2024): 

A TRACT OF LAND IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST 

QUARTER (SW/4 NW/4) OF SECTION TWENTY-EIGHT (28) IN TOWNSHIP 

TWENTY-SIX (26) NORTH OF RANGE THIRTEEN (13) EAST OF THE INDIAN 

MERIDIAN, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, BEING MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NW/4 OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE N 88°57'37" 

E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NW/4 A DISTANCE OF 113.50 FEET TO THE 

EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY #75 AND THE TRUE POINT OF 

BEGINNING; THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTH LINE, N 01 °09'5411 W ALONG SAID 

EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 532.80 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE PLATTED SOUTHPORT DRIVE TO THE CITY OF 

BARTLESVILLE; THENCE LEAVING SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, N 

88°56'19" E ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 

202.88 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED 

IN BOOK 1213, PAGES 875-878 AND RECORDED IN THE WASIDNGTON COUNTY 

CLERK'S OFFICE; THENCE ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID TRACT OF 

LAND DESCRIBED IN BOOK 1213, PAGES 875-878 THE FOLLOWING COURSES: 

THENCE S 09°08'51" EA DISTANCE OF 293.81 FEET; THENCE N 88°57'37" EA 

DISTANCE OF 74.30 FEET; THENCE S 01°10'0911 EA DISTANCE OF 242.00 FEET TO 

SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NW/4; THENCE S 88°57'37" W ALONG SAID SOUTH 

LINE A DISTANCE OF 318.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 

3.26 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

Exhibit A



 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
TO: Bartlesville City Planning Commission 

FROM: Holly Mayhew, Planner I 

DATE: August 27, 2024 

CASE NO. PUD-0724-0043/44 

Subject: Public hearing and possible action on a request for a new Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
and Site Development Plan for 3.26 acres at the southeast corner of Southport Drive and Washington 
Boulevard/US Hwy 75. The request is submitted by Dan Keleher on behalf of Patriot Hyundai. 

GENERAL INFORMATION: 

Applicant:   Dan Keleher on behalf of Patriot Hyundai 

Requested Action:  Approval of a new PUD and Site Development Plan 

Location:   SE corner of Southport Drive and Washington Boulevard/US Hwy 75 

Area:    3.26 Acres 

Floodplain:   Located within Floodway, 100-year, and 500-year Floodplains 

Present Land Use:  Vacant Commercial Buildings, Residential 

Proposed Land Use:  New Automobile Sales and Service 

Zoning:    C-5 (General Commercial)/PUD 

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USE: 

North:    C-3 – Right of Way/Drainage & RS-12 – Single-Family Residence 

South:   Outside City Limits; Vacant 

West:    C-3/PUD – Single-Family Residence 

East:    RS-7 – Vacant 

ZONING HISTORY: 

2004, Case No. PC-04-11-RZ/PUD/SDP: Approved rezoning from C-3 to C-5/PUD and a Site 
Development Plan for a hotel on the 1.5-acre property at 2696 SE Washington Blvd. 



2009, Case No. PC-09-02-RZ/PUD/SDP: Approved rezoning from RS-12 to C-5/PUD and a Site 
Development Plan for a drive-thru snack shop on the 0.5-acre property at 2700 SE Washington Blvd. 

2014, Case No. PC-14-10-RZ/PUD: Approved rezoning from RS-12 to C-5/PUD for properties at 2710 
and 2882 Washington Blvd. No specific uses were proposed at that time, however a list of specific 
uses normally permitted in C-5 were excluded. The subject PUD proposes to maintain the same use 
restrictions. 

ANALYSIS: 

The request involves a new Planned Unit Development (PUD) and Site Development Plan for 3.26 
acres at the southeast corner of Southport Drive and Washington Boulevard/US Hwy 75. The 
applicant, Dan Keleher on behalf of Patriot Hyundai, seeks to develop an automobile dealership with 
a service area and outdoor display on the site, which currently includes a mix of vacant commercial 
buildings and residential structures. 

Existing Conditions: 

The site consists of four unplatted parcels, with current zoning of C-5/PUD. The existing structures 
on the site, including a former hotel, a medical marijuana dispensary, and residential buildings, will 
be demolished to accommodate the new development. The site is characterized by a significant 
topographical slope upward to the east, which has influenced the design and layout of the proposed 
development. 

Zoning and Land Use Compatibility: 

The proposed use of the site for new automobile sales and service is consistent with the existing C-5 
zoning and is not excluded under the current PUD regulations. The surrounding land uses and zoning 
designations include commercial, residential, and undeveloped properties, which create a mixed-use 
environment. The PUD overlay allows for flexibility in design while maintaining compatibility with 
adjacent uses. 

Site Design: 

The proposed dealership building will occupy the southern portion of the site, with an outdoor car 
display and parking area to the north. The building, approximately 18,000 square feet in size, will 
feature materials such as glass and architectural aluminum panels, adhering to the Hyundai 
prototype design. Notably, corrugated metal siding is explicitly prohibited, maintaining a higher 
aesthetic standard for any development of the property. 

Landscaping and Residential Protection: 

Due to the site’s topography, an existing retaining wall approximately 8 feet in height runs along the 
northern end of the eastern property line. The applicant proposes to continue this wall along the 
southern portion to provide residential protection screening, in conjunction with existing trees. The 
proposed PUD requests a reduction in the residential buffer from 20 feet to 15 feet on the southern 
end, which staff finds reasonable given the site constraints and the additional screening provided by 
the wall and landscaping. The applicant also proposes to display vehicles in the space behind/above 
the existing retaining wall, utilizing existing trees to screen them from view to the east. 

 



Access and Circulation: 

The development will utilize existing access points from Washington Boulevard and Southport Drive, 
with minimal changes to the current access configuration. The Southport Drive access will be 
retained, providing adequate ingress and egress for the site. The site’s proximity to Washington 
Boulevard/US Hwy 75, a major arterial, ensures high visibility and accessibility for the dealership. 

Utilities and Infrastructure: 

Water and sewer services are available to the site, though easements will need to be established for 
existing utility lines running through the property. The boundary survey indicates an 8-inch sewer 
main along the west side of the site. Additionally, a new fire hydrant may be necessary to meet fire 
code requirements for the new building. Sidewalk infrastructure is partially in place along the site’s 
frontage, but new sidewalk construction will be required to complete the pedestrian network along 
Washington Boulevard. The existing sidewalk is located partially on the subject property and will 
need to be placed in easement as well. 

Floodplain Considerations: 

Portions of the site are located within the Floodway, 100-year, and 500-year floodplains. As such, any 
development on the site will require the approval of a floodplain development permit prior to the 
issuance of building permits. This ensures that the development complies with floodplain 
management regulations and minimizes potential risks. 

Platting Requirements: 

The site’s current unplatted status necessitates the platting of the property before a Certificate of 
Occupancy can be issued. This process will consolidate the four parcels into a single lot and establish 
the necessary easements for access and utilities. Platting will also allow for the formalization of the 
limits of access along Washington Boulevard, ensuring controlled entry and exit points for the site. 

PUD MODIFICATIONS REQUESTED: 

• Landscaping: Reduce the required residential buffer on the southern portion from 20 feet to 
15 feet. 

• Excluded Uses: Several uses, including airport services, mobile home sales, and warehouse 
storage, are excluded. 

• Non-Permitted Items: Prohibit intercom/loudspeaker systems and corrugated metal 
siding. 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Property owners within 300 feet were notified, and two signs were posted on-site. A public hearing 
notice was also published in the Bartlesville Examiner-Enterprise. The applicant also hosted a citizen 
participation meeting, though no attendees were present, and no opposition to the proposal has been 
received. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of Case No. PUD-0724-0043/44, subject to the following conditions: 



1. Maintain or replace existing trees as part of the residential protection screening behind the 
elevated car display. If the existing trees cannot be maintained or replaced, an alternative residential 
protection screening method from the Zoning Regulations is required. 

2. Obtain a floodplain development permit before issuance of any building permits. 

3. Plat the property before issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

4. If the property is platted, no additional Site Development Plan will be required if all PUD Design 
Statement requirements are met. 

ATTACHMENTS: Location Map, Aerial Image, Zoning Map, Floodplain Map, Contours, Design 
Statement, Site Development Plan, Landscape Plan, Architectural Elevation & Floorplan, Boundary 
Survey, Community Participation Results. 









SE
 W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
B

lv
d.

/U
S 

H
W

Y
 7

5

Site 
Location



Site 
Location













AC101
EIK

N1 SITE PLAN
SCALE : 1" = 30'

DJK

K
E
L
E
H

E
R

 A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

D
A
N

 K
E
L
E
H

E
R

, 
J
R

.,
 P

L
L
C

 A
IA

P
O

 B
o
x
 1

3
6
1

B
A
R

T
L
E
S

V
IL

L
E
, 
O

K
 7

4
0
0
3
  
  
  
  
9
1
8
-3

3
3
-8

8
5
5

W
W

W
.K

E
L
E
H

E
R

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

.C
O

M

EXISTING
RETAINING WALL

STORM WATER
DETENTION

40
'

40'

40' BUILDING LINE

40' BUILDING LINE

295' 242'

30
8'

50' SETBACK LINE

30'

30' TURNING
RADIUS

NEW RETAINING WALL
MIN 8' TALL

CAR
DISPLAY

CAR
DISPLAY

CAR
DISPLAY

MONUMENT SIGN

SHOWROOM

NEW
VEHICLE

DELIVERY

SERVICE BAYS

WASH BAY

WASH BAY

SERVICE
WRITE UP

ADMIN

30'

PARKING
HANDICAP PARKING SPACES: 4
STANDARD PARKING SPACES: 182

TOTAL PARKING SPACES: 186

COMP
FLUIDS

191'

30'

36'

5' SIDEWALK NEW5' SIDEWALK EXISTING

SIDEWALK EXISTING

NEW CURB CUTS REPLACING TWO EXISTING CURB CUTS

15
'

15'

25
' S

ET
BA

C
K

EXISTING TREES TO SERVE AS RESIDENTIAL PROTECTION
SCREENING. TREES TO BE REPLACED IF EXISTING DIE.

SETBACK 0'

50
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
113.50' (M&D)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90%%d00'00" E  (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MAG NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 00%%d00'00" E  295.00' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHPORT DRIVE 50' (R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S. HIGHWAY 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 90%%d00'00" E  201.00' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 07%%d54'33" E  297.83' (M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHPORT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURAL  SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DATA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By

AutoCAD SHX Text
2696 Se Washington Boulevard Bartlesville, Oklahoma

AutoCAD SHX Text
A NEW BUILDING/ADDITION/RENOVATION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/31/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRIOT HYUNDAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY NOT FOR  CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%% REVIEW SET



CM

W A S H I N G T O N   B L V D .   /   U . S .   H W Y   7 5

PROPOSED
BUILDING

             TOSOUTHPORT DR.

CA
R 

DI
SP

LA
Y CA

R 
DI

SP
LA

Y

CA
R 

DI
SP

LA
Y

EXISTING TREES IN THIS
AREA TO REMAIN TO SATISFY

RESIDENTIAL PROTECTION

CMCM CMCM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM

CM
CM

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//

P

P

P

K
E
L
E
H

E
R

 A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

D
A
N

 K
E
L
E
H

E
R

, 
J
R

.,
 P

L
L
C

 A
IA

P
O

 B
o
x
 1

3
6
1

B
A
R

T
L
E
S

V
IL

L
E
, 
O

K
 7

4
0
0
3
  
  
  
  
9
1
8
-3

3
3
-8

8
5
5

W
W

W
.K

E
L
E
H

E
R

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

.C
O

M

L101
BWC DJK

N1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE : 1" = 40'

1
L102

2
L102

TREE PLANTING & STAKING DETAIL
NTSA

REMOVE ALL WIRES, ROPES AND TAGS.
PRUNE BROKEN BRANCHES; DO NOT
TOP THE TREE OR REMOVE THE LEADER

TOP WITH A MINIMUM OF 3" SHREDDED
MULCH; PULL AWAY 3" FROM THE TRUNK
FOR AERATION

PLANT THE TOP OF THE ROOT BALL
LEVEL WITH GROUND

ROOT BALL SHOULD BE REMOVED FROM
CONTAINER OR BURLAP AND REST ON
LEVEL UNDISTURBED SOIL

BACKFILL THE HOLE WITH ORIGINAL SOIL

2 x DIA. OF
ROOT BALL

SAME DEPTH
AS ROOT BALL

2x2 WOOD STAKES; PAINT BLACK

18"
MIN.

3" SAUCER

3
4" WIDE ARBOR TAPE FOR TREE
STABILIZATION; STAKE AS
SHOWN AND TIE IN FIGURE 8 PATTERN

STEEL BED EDGING DETAIL
NTSC

STEEL BED EDGE

TURF

BEDDING MATERIAL
AS SPECIFIED

TAPERED STEEL STAKES TO
INTERIOR OF BED AREA

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL
NTSB

REMOVE ALL TAGS. PRUNE
BROKEN BRANCHES AND LEAVES

TOP WITH A MINIMUM OF 3" SHREDDED MULCH;
PULL AWAY 3" FROM THE STEMS FOR AERATION

PLANT THE TOP OF THE ROOT
BALL LEVEL WITH GROUND

ROOT BALL SHOULD BE REMOVED FROM
CONTAINER OR BURLAP AND REST ON
LEVEL UNDISTURBED SOIL; CUT OR PULL
APART ANY ROOTS THAT CIRCLE THE
PERIMETER OF THE CONTAINER

BACKFILL THE HOLE WITH ORIGINAL SOIL

2 x DIA. OF
ROOT BALL

SAME DEPTH
AS ROOT BALL

3" SAUCER

CM

CM

CM

////////

3
L102

C:
\U

se
rs

\O
w

ne
r\

D
ro

pb
ox

\M
IC

RO
TE

L\
20

24
\C

AD
\L

AN
D

SC
AP

E.
dw

g,
 L

10
1 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E,

 8
/1

4/
20

24
 1

1:
21

:2
3 

AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DATA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By

AutoCAD SHX Text
2696 Se Washington Boulevard Bartlesville, Oklahoma

AutoCAD SHX Text
A NEW BUILDING/ADDITION/RENOVATION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/14/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRIOT HYUNDAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY NOT FOR  CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%% REVIEW SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE PLAN



CM

SOUTHPORT DR.

1 RED ROCKET CRAPE MYRTLE
8 HORSTMANN BLUE ATLAS CEDAR

 ±717 SF BLACK MULCH

2 RED ROCKET CRAPE MYRTLE

 ±390 SF BLACK MULCH
6 LF STEEL BED EDGE

63 LF STEEL BED EDGE

CM

CM

CM

99 LF STEEL BED EDGE
13 HORSTMANN BLUE ATLAS CEDAR

6 LF STEEL BED EDGE
1,335 SF BLACK MULCH

3 RED ROCKET CRAPE MYRTLE

6 HORSTMANN BLUE ATLAS CEDAR

CM
CM

3 RED ROCKET CRAPE MYRTLE
12 HORSTMANN BLUE ATLAS CEDAR

 ±948 SF BLACK MULCH

791 SF BLACK MULCH
74 LF STEEL BED EDGE

3 RED ROCKET CRAPE MYRTLE

CMCM CM

CM

CM

CM

6 HORSTMANN BLUE ATLAS CEDAR

CA
R 

DI
SP

LA
Y

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

//
//

P

P

P

3 LOBLOLLY PINE

K
E
L
E
H

E
R

 A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

D
A
N

 K
E
L
E
H

E
R

, 
J
R

.,
 P

L
L
C

 A
IA

P
O

 B
o
x
 1

3
6
1

B
A
R

T
L
E
S

V
IL

L
E
, 
O

K
 7

4
0
0
3
  
  
  
  
9
1
8
-3

3
3
-8

8
5
5

W
W

W
.K

E
L
E
H

E
R

A
R

C
H

IT
E
C

T
S

.C
O

M

L102
BWC DJK

N2 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
SCALE : 1" = 10'

N1 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
SCALE : 1" = 10'

N3 LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENT
SCALE : 1" = 10'

C:
\U

se
rs

\O
w

ne
r\

D
ro

pb
ox

\M
IC

RO
TE

L\
20

24
\C

AD
\L

AN
D

SC
AP

E.
dw

g,
 L

10
2 

LA
N

D
SC

AP
E,

 8
/1

4/
20

24
 1

1:
21

:0
7 

AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET DATA:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn By

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked By

AutoCAD SHX Text
2696 Se Washington Boulevard Bartlesville, Oklahoma

AutoCAD SHX Text
A NEW BUILDING/ADDITION/RENOVATION FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/14/2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRIOT HYUNDAI

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY NOT FOR  CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%% REVIEW SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE ENLARGEMENTS







AutoCAD SHX Text
AT SW CORNER NW/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 28, T26N, R13E,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASH. CO., OKLA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 3/8" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT SE CORNER NW/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 28, T26N, R13E,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASH. CO., OKLA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH I.D. CAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1066 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGES 2116-2118

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1207

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGES 3224-3225

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHPORT 1ST ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST WASHINGTON BOULEVARD / U.S. HIGHWAY #75

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DI

AutoCAD SHX Text
WS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER SPIGOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"X6" STORM DROP INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM DRAIN MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
T26N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R13E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBJECT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: 1. BEARING REFERENCE FOR THIS SURVEY IS BASED ON OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE GRID, NAD 83, NORTH BEARING REFERENCE FOR THIS SURVEY IS BASED ON OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE GRID, NAD 83, NORTH ZONE 2. NO INDEPENDENT SEARCH OR INVESTIGATION HAS BEEN MADE BY SURVEYOR FOR EASEMENTS, NO INDEPENDENT SEARCH OR INVESTIGATION HAS BEEN MADE BY SURVEYOR FOR EASEMENTS, ENCUMBRANCES, RESTRICTIONS, OWNERSHIP TITLE EVIDENCE, OR ANY OTHER FACTS. THE TITLE INFORMATION IS BASED ON INFORMATION PROVIDED TO SURVEY BY TITLE COMPANY. 3. THIS SURVEY HAS BEEN MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT OKLAHOMA MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR THIS SURVEY HAS BEEN MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT OKLAHOMA MINIMUM STANDARDS FOR THE PRACTICE OF LAND SURVEYING. 4. SURVEY IS VALID ONLY IF PRINT HAS ORIGINAL SEAL AND SIGNATURE OF SURVEYOR PRESENT. SURVEY IS VALID ONLY IF PRINT HAS ORIGINAL SEAL AND SIGNATURE OF SURVEYOR PRESENT. 5. SUBSURFACE AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS WERE NOT EXAMINED OR CONSIDERED AS A PART OF THIS SUBSURFACE AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS WERE NOT EXAMINED OR CONSIDERED AS A PART OF THIS SURVEY. 6. THIS PROPERTY IS SHOWN ON F.I.R.M. NO. 40147C0185D, EFFECTIVE 9/26/2008. THIS PROPERTY IS THIS PROPERTY IS SHOWN ON F.I.R.M. NO. 40147C0185D, EFFECTIVE 9/26/2008. THIS PROPERTY IS SHOWN IN ZONES AE & X.  ZONE AE IS CONSIDERED A FLOOD HAZARD ARE AND MAY HAVE RESTRICTIONS THAT MAY REQUIRE PERMITTING BEFORE CONSTRUCTION WERE TO TAKE PLACE IN THIS AREA.  PLEASE CONSULT WITH THE FLOOD PLAIN ADMINISTRATOR FOR MORE INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THIS AREA. 7. THE LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND STRUCTURES THE LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND STRUCTURES AND RECORD DRAWINGS PROVIDED THE SURVEYOR.  LOCATIONS OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES/STRUCTURES MAY VARY FROM LOCATIONS SHOWN HEREON. ADDITIONAL BURIED UTILITIES OR STRUCTURES MAY BE ENCOUNTERED. NO EXCAVATIONS WERE MADE DURING THE PROGRESS OF THE SURVEY TO LOCATE BURIED UTILITIES/STRUCTURES.  8. VERTICAL DATUM IS REFERENCED TO NAVD 88. VERTICAL DATUM IS REFERENCED TO NAVD 88. 9. PLEASE REFER TO THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE'S PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT FOR ADDITIONAL PLEASE REFER TO THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE'S PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT FOR ADDITIONAL RESTRICTIONS AND SETBACKS THAT MAY AFFECT THIS PROPERTY PRIOR TO ANY NEW CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRICE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RICE CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S. HIGHWAY #75

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(M) DENOTES MEASUREMENT PER THIS SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF SECTION 28,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 26 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSMISSION LINE POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH I.D. WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
85.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
168.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
138.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT SW CORNER NW/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 28, T26N, R13E,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASH. CO., OKLA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH I.D. WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MAG NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:627532.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
E:2573801.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL:692.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH I.D. WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAG NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N:628285.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
E:2573845.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL:691.35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 88°57'37" E - 113.50'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
110.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°09'54" W - 532.80'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 88°56'19" E - 202.88'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 09°08'51" E - 293.81'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 88°57'37" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
74.30'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 01°10'09" E - 242.00'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°57'37" W - 318.00'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (PREPARED BY JAMES C. FIELDER, OK PLS #1674, DATED 7/18/2024): A TRACT OF LAND IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (SW/4 NW/4) OF SECTION TWENTY-EIGHT (28) IN TOWNSHIP TWENTY-SIX (26) NORTH OF RANGE THIRTEEN (13) EAST OF THE INDIAN MERIDIAN, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE NW/4 OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE N 88°57'37" E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAIDNW/4 A DISTANCE OF 113.50 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF U.S. HIGHWAY #75 AND THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTH LINE, N 01°09'54" W ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 532.80 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE PLATTED SOUTHPORT DRIVE TO THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE; THENCE LEAVING SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, N 88°56'19" E ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE A DISTANCE OF 202.88 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN BOOK 1213, PAGES 875-878 AND RECORDED IN THE WASHINGTON COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE; THENCE ALONG THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN BOOK 1213, PAGES 875-878 THE FOLLOWING COURSES:  THENCE S 09°08'51" E A DISTANCE OF 293.81 FEET; THENCE N 88°57'37" E A DISTANCE OF 74.30 FEET; THENCE S 01°10'09" E A DISTANCE OF 242.00 FEET TO SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE NW/4; THENCE S 88°57'37" W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE A DISTANCE OF 318.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 3.26 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET   OF   

AutoCAD SHX Text
OK C.A. NO. 8833 EXP. 6/30/26

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUGUST 13, 2024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1        1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(918) 335-5071

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA  74006

AutoCAD SHX Text
1652 S.E. WASHINGTON BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
email: fielderlandsurveying@gmail.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORTABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGE 333

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 HOOD/1 GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 HOOD/1 GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1101

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGES 3779-3780

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1112

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHORING

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHORING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STACKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2)WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PED

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNAL POLE ON CONC BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text
SI

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 HOOD/1 GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
42.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHPORT DRIVE (R/W VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
VAULT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE & PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 HOOD/1 GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE & PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE & PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE & PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON ROD WITH I.D. CAP UNLESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
 OTHERWISE NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
''BOUNDARY SURVEY''

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH I.D. CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 88°57'37" W - 2631.73'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2200.23'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 01°09'54" W - 2640.65'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2696 SE WASHINGTON BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2700 SE WASHINGTON BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2882 SE WASHINGTON BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2710 SE WASHINGTON BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1126, PAGE 2240

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHEROKEE NATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1160, PAGE 3560

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROWE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOK 1160, PAGE 3560

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROWE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  I, JAMES C. FIELDER, LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NO. 1674 IN THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA, HAVE MADE A SURVEY OF THE HEREON DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND AND THE INFORMATION SHOWN IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF.             DATED THIS    DAY OF                    ,20   .

AutoCAD SHX Text
13TH        AUGUST               24

AutoCAD SHX Text
KELEHER ARCHITECTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTN: MR. DANNY KELEHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
401 S. DEWEY AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE 216

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARTLESVILLE, OK  74003

AutoCAD SHX Text
(918) 333-8855

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''AE''

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''AE''

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''AE''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''X'' (500 YR.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''AE''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''AE''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''AE''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''AE''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''X'' (500 YR.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''AE''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''X'' (500 YR.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''X''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''X'' (500 YR.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''X''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''X''

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE ''X''





Agenda Item ___ 
September 3, 2024 

Prepared by Jess Kane 
      City Attorney 

 
 
 
 
I. SUBJECT: 

 
Discuss and take possible action to authorize the City Manager and/or the City Attorney 
to send formal notice to Price Tower Arts Center (PTAC) to terminate the Memorandum 
of Understanding regarding the management, maintenance and operation of Tower 
Green, now known as Unity Square, a city-owned facility located at 6th and Dewey; and 
to approve the Lease and Operating Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and the 
Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority to provide management, maintenance 
and operation of Tower Green, now known as Unity Square.  Presented by Jess Kane, 
City Attorney. 

 
 ATTACHMENTS: 
  
 Memorandum of Understanding dated 5/22/2018. 
 Lease and Operating Agreement 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
A Memorandum of Understanding between Price Tower Arts Center, Bartlesville 
Community Center Trust Authority and the City of Bartlesville was approved by the City 
Council on May 22, 2018 as a collaborative relationship setting out the management, 
maintenance and operation of the Tower Green, now known as Unity Square. Due to 
the current situation of the PTAC, it is necessary to send formal notice of termination of 
the MOU to PTAC. The City of Bartlesville and Bartlesville Community Center Trust 
Authority will continue to provide management, maintenance and operation of the park 
per the proposed Lease and Operating Agreement. 

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
City staff and I recommend approval to direct staff to formally notify PTAC of termination 
of the Memorandum of Understanding, and to approve the Lease and Operating 
Agreement as presented. 

13.



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by and between the Price Tower Arts 
Center (PTAC), the Bartlesville Community Center (BCC), and the City of Bartlesville (City). 

A. Pucpose. This MOU sets for the collaborative relationship between the three parties as stated
above concerning the management, maintenance, and operation of the Tower Green (Facility), a
city-owned facility located at 6 11

, and Dewey.

B. Roles ancl Responsibilities. The roles and responsibilities concerning the management,
maintenance, and operation of the Tower Green are assigned to each party as follows:

1. The PTAC agrees to
a. Provide programming of the space for visual arts;
b. Provide catering services of food and drink as requested for the Facility;
c. Together with the BCC, keep the Facility in a clean and safe condition and to provide day

to-day maintenance of the f<acility, to include but not limited to mowing, edging, weed
control, fertilization, and care and maintenance of all amenities (benches, wate.r features,
structures, art work, etc.) within the Facility.

2. The BCC agrees to
a. Provide programming of the space for the performing arts; 
b. Serve as the general point of contact for any party wishing to reserve the space;
c. Be responsible for the collection of all revenues arising from the use of the Facility and to

report these monthly to the Management Committee;
d. Together with the PTAC, keep the Facility in a clean and safe condition and to provide

day-to-day maintenance of the Facility, to include but not limited to mowing, edging, weed
control, fertilization, and care and maintenance of all amenities (benches, water features,
structures, art work, etc.) within the Facility.

3. The City agrees to
a. Provide solid waste, water, and sanitary sewer services;
b. Pay for general electrical use for the space (docs not include electrical use at the

performance stage).

C. Management Committee. There is hereby formed a management committee which will oversee the
management, maintenance, and operation of the Tower Green. Said management committee shall
consist of the following members:

1. A representative of the Bartlesville City Council
2. A representative of the Price Tower Arts Center Board of Trustees
3. A representative of the Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority
4. A representative of the Bartlesville Regional Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors
5. A representative of the Bartlesville Convention and Visitors Bureau Board of Directors

D. Amendment. This MOU will be revised after the design and/ or construction of the Facility is
completed as is necessary to ensure the proper long-term management, maintenance, and operation of
the Facility.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands to this Agreement this __ day of May,
20 I 8, in Bartlesville, Oklahoma. 

\\''""''',, ,,,, �P,.,RTL.�'1,-, � 'o� ······c•..... & .t.-''"' 

Q � � � 
� •••cfrl /JI� •••• / �

Q\ ��/ \<� 
--" ..__..J A...>,,L....>o"�t_.,_..,l --- ____ .. I- : � r" ::. 

--: SEAL :rn-Da1e Copeland, Mayor, City f Bartlesville : 0 : : : 
. . -� . . . -- .. .. -

-:. ·•. ..\..�•· � 
':. •.Ol(l.A'r\0�-.•• -.. 
� ············· ..,,'.,, ' 

an, Community Center Trust Authority 
,,,, ,�,' ,,u .. ,,,,, 

2 

22nd



Page 12  

LEASE AND OPERATING AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement is made and entered into as of day of , 2024, by and 
between the City of Bartlesville Oklahoma a Oklahoma municipal corporation, (the "City"), and 
the Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority, a public trust, (the "BCC"), for the 
management, maintenance, and operation of the Tower Center at Unity Square (now known as 
"Unity Square") located between the Bartlesville Community Center and the Price Tower in 
downtown Bartlesville. 

 
Background 

 
A.  On March 4, 2018 Bartlesville voters approved General Obligation Bond 

Proposition #2 which included funding for a downtown gathering space to be 
known as Tower Center at Unity Square (now known as "Unity Square"). 

 
B. Construction of  Unity Square was completed in May 2020. 

 
C.  The City is interested in increasing access to art and cultural activities for the 

community and wants to facilitate the operation of Unity Square for the benefit of 
the citizens of Bartlesville. 

D.  The BCC is experienced in programing performing and visual art activities and 
other cultural events which improve the quality of life in the community. 

E. The parties have agreed that the BCC will market, manage, program, and operate 
Unity Square for the benefit of the Bartlesville Community subject to the 
requirements hereinafter set forth. 

 
 

The parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Term. Upon completion of Unity Square, a Final Site Plan will be completed and 
incorporated in this document as Appendix A for the purpose of describing the "Leased Premises." 
The Initial Lease Term of the lease of Unity Square shall be one (1) year, which shall commence 
on the first of the month following the date on which a Certificate of Use and Occupancy has been 
issued for Unity Square, subject to the requirements of Section 13 below. 

2. Lease Renewal. This lease shall renew automatically upon the expiration of its term 
unless either party provides written notice to the other party of its intent not to renew the Lease at 
least thirty (30) days prior to expiration of the then current lease term. 

 
3. Permitted Use; Operational Standards. 

 
(a) General. After completion of construction and upon commencement of the lease 

term, the BCC shall be solely responsible for the full cost of any alterations, 



Page 12  

improvements or additions to Unity Square. The BCC must secure the permission of 
the City before performing any repairs, maintenance or improvements to the real 
estate or buildings of Unity Square which exceed $25,000. For any such projects, the 
City will assist the BCC in contracting the work to the BCC's specifications. The BCC 
shall at all times comply in all material respects with all existing and future laws, rules 
and regulations applicable to or affecting the BCC, and its operations in Unity Square. 

 
(b)  Fees, Charges, and Donations. The BCC will determine the eligibility of 

individuals, families and organizations for participation in programs at Unity 
Square; provided that, the BCC will ensure that its programs conducted at Unity 
Square are accessible to members of the community during all normal hours of 
operation. The BCC may impose activity fees and charges for participation in 
programs and activities conducted by the BCC at Unity Square. The activity fees 
must be priced in accordance with fees and charges typical of similar organizations 
in similar communities and must be consistent with the BCC's stated goals of 
permitting participation by individuals, families and organizations form the 
surrounding area. All revenues paid for use of Unity Square or donations received 
for Unity Square operations shall be paid to and belong to the BCC and shall be 
restricted for operating costs of the Unity Square. All donations received for capital 
improvements to Unity Square shall be paid to and belong to the City and shall be 
restricted for capital improvement of Unity Square. 

 
(c) Concessions. The BCC may grant licenses for limited portions of Unity Square to 

concessionaires of the BCC's choosing and otherwise subcontract limited 
operational functions to subcontractors of the BCC's choosing. The BCC is 
responsible for compliance by all concessionaires with all applicable local, state, 
and federals laws. Further the BCC is responsible for all actions and activities of 
any subcontractors with regard to Unity Square and shall bear sole responsibility 
for making all payments to any such subcontractors. 

 
(d) No Discrimination. 

 
(i) The BCC shall not exclude any individual, group or organization from 

participation in, deny the benefits of, or otherwise tolerate unlawful 
discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, age, 
physical handicap or sexual orientation, in the use of Unity Square in any 
contracts relating to Unity Square, in any programs carried out on the 
premises of Unity Square, in the employment of any individuals who may 
provide services or work at Unity Square, or in the selection of vendors, 
suppliers, service providers, students, teachers, sponsors or others in matters 
relating to the use or operation of Unity Square. 

 
(ii) The BCC will require compliance with the provisions of this section by any 

person (including any subcontractor that provides goods, services or other 
items) who uses or accesses Unity Square. The BCC shall not be responsible 
for noncompliance with this section by any person other than the BCC. 



Page 12  

(iii) As between BCC members and non-members, the BCC shall furnish its 
accommodations and/or services on a fair, equal, and not unjustly 
discriminatory basis to all users thereof, and it shall charge fair, reasonable, and 
not unjustly discriminatory prices for each service. The BCC may make 
available reasonable and nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates or other similar 
types of price reductions. Noncompliance with this section shall constitute a 
material breach of this Agreement. In the event of such noncompliance, the 
City shall have the right to judicially enforce such provision. 

 
(e)  Personnel. The BCC shall employ all Unity Square personnel and shall be 

responsible for hiring, training, promoting and discharging personnel, and for all 
other matters relating to personnel and staffing, including paying salaries, wages, 
payroll taxes, unemployment benefits and any other form of compensation or 
benefit to any personnel at Unity Square. The BCC's employees, agents and 
personnel are not employees of the City. The BCC may enter into arrangements 
with others relating to loaned or leased employees, but, notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the BCC is responsible for the conduct, behavior, appearance and 
attitude of all personnel at Unity Square at all times. The BCC will establish and 
adhere to written standards and criteria applicable to all employees, staff and 
service personnel of Unity Square. The employee standards and criteria will 
require, among other things, civil conduct, good behavior, well-kept appearance, 
positive attitude and helpfulness to patrons at all times. 

 
(f) Complaints. The BCC will consider and handle any complaints of employees, 

families, guests or others who use or receive any of the services or resources of 
Unity Square. The BCC will establish and adhere to procedures for receiving and 
processing complaints in an orderly and timely manner. Upon request by the City, 
and subject to any privacy and confidentiality obligations imposed by law, the BCC 
will advise the City of actions taken on a specific complaint involving Unity Square 
operations. 

 
(g)  Safety. The BCC will post rules governing the conduct and behavior of any person 

who uses or accesses Unity Square. The BCC will hire trained and competent 
personnel necessary to enforce the rules of conduct. The BCC will develop and 
adhere to a written plan governing comprehensive safety of Unity Square. The 
safety plan will establish emergency procedures with regard to natural disaster, acts 
of violence and perceived or actual threats of violence. The BCC also will establish 
general safety requirements relating to security, lighting, and other appropriate 
safety matters. 

4. Maintenance. 
 

(a) Costs and Expenses. The BCC will pay all costs and expenses of operating Unity 
Square, with exceptions provided herein, and will maintain the park facility and 
improvements to Unity Square. The BCC shall comply with all applicable federal, 
state and local laws, rules, regulations, and specifications relating to the Unity 
Square park facility. Also, the BCC shall keep and maintain all equipment, 



Page 12  

furnishings, appliances and other personal property in good operating condition and 
in accordance with applicable manufacturer's specifications. 

 
(b)  Repairs. The BCC will make all repairs necessary to keep Unity Square in good 

condition and from deteriorating in value or condition, ordinary wear and tear 
excepted. The BCC will commence repairs with regard to any and all aspects of 
Unity Square as quickly as reasonably possible, but in no event later than 60 days 
from the date that the need for such repairs is discovered and reported to the BCC. 
Such repairs will be made in expeditious and workmanlike manner. In the event 
that the BCC does not undertake such repairs within the time provided, or if the 
City determines that an emergency requires repairs to be performed immediately, 
the City may, after two days' written notice to the BCC, undertake to make such 
repairs as it may deem necessary for and on behalf of the BCC, and in such event, 
the BCC shall reimburse the City for the cost of such repairs upon request. 

 
(c) Exterior and Structural. BCC will maintain the pavilion, landscaping and parking 

areas and other areas of Unity Square in a good state of appearance and at BCC's 
expense. 

 
(d) Cleanliness and Sanitation. The BCC shall keep Unity Square, tidy, orderly and in 

good order and condition at all times and shall arrange for or oversee the prompt 
collection and proper disposal of trash, garbage, litter and debris. 

 
(e)  Landscaping. BCC will maintain all landscaping at Unity Square in neat and tidy 

condition, and will undertake, supervise or oversee appropriate watering, 
fertilizing, weed removal and lawn maintenance. 

 
(f)  Utilities. The City shall provide solid waste, water and sanitary sewer services to 

Unity Square free of charge to the BCC. The City shall pay for general electric use 
at Unity Square, provided, however, that the BCC shall make application for, 
obtain, pay for, and be solely responsible for all utilities required, used, or 
consumed at the performance stage, including, but not limited to, gas, water, 
telephone, electricity, and cable television. 

 
(g) No Waste. The BCC shall neither commit nor allow to be committed any waste at 

Unity Square, nor shall the BCC maintain, commit or permit the maintenance or 
commission of any nuisance at Unity Square or use Unity Square for any unlawful 
purpose. 

 
(h)  Reserve Funds. The BCC shall maintain reserve funds sufficient in the BCC's 

reasonable judgment to meet the BCC's maintenance obligations under this Agreement. 
 

5. Insurance. The parties shall maintain insurance with regard to Unity Square pursuant 
to the following terms: 

(a) General Liability Insurance. The BCC shall maintain premises liability insurance at 



Page 12  

the BCC's expense throughout the Initial Lease Term and any renewal insuring the City 
and the BCC against liability for injury to or death of any person occasioned by or 
arising out of the management, occupancy and operation of the Unity Square, providing 
not less than a $125,000 per occurrence coverage limit and a $1,000,000 aggregate 
coverage limit. The policy of insurance shall provide that the insurer must notify the 
City at least 30 days before cancellation or termination of the policy. Said amounts 
shall be increased annually as the City's exposure under the Oklahoma Governmental 
Tort Claims Act increases. The City shall not be required to maintain general liability 
insurance but agrees that it will be liable for its own negligence and willful misconduct 
and that of its officers, employees and authorized agents in accordance with the 
Oklahoma Governmental Tort Claims Act. The City and the BCC acknowledge that 
insurance policies do not always cover all events that create liability for an insured. 

 
(b)  Property and Casualty Insurance. The City shall maintain property and casualty 

insurance with annual reimbursement by the BCC throughout the Initial Lease 
Term and any renewal a policy of fire, extended coverage, vandalism, malicious 
mischief and burglary insurance covering damage to Unity Square in the full 
amount of the replacement cost of Unity Square (excluding land and the footings 
and foundations) with deductible amounts reasonably determined by City. The 
insurance policy required to be maintained pursuant to this section shall name the 
City as the loss payee. Except as set forth below, any proceeds from said insurance 
shall be paid by City to the BCC to pay the cost of repairs relating to the insurance 
payment, except in the case of Complete Loss (see subparagraph (e) below). Said 
insurance shall provide a deductible consistent with deductibles under policies 
usually and customarily carried for similar buildings. Deductibles shall be the 
responsibility of the BCC. 

 
(c) Evidence of Insurance. The City shall furnish evidence to the BCC of insurance 

required by this section. 
 

(d) Waiver of Subrogation. All policies covering real or personal property that either 
party obtains affecting the Leased Premises shall include a clause or endorsement 
denying the insurer any rights of subrogation or recovery against the other party. 
The BCC and the City waive any rights of subrogation or recovery against the other 
for damage or loss to their respective prope1ty due to hazards covered, or that 
should be covered, or that are typically covered by policies of insurance obtained 
by either party, or that should be or have been obtained pursuant to this Lease, to 
the extent of the injury or loss covered by such insurance . For purposes of the 
preceding sentence, any deductible shall be deemed to be insurance coverage. 

 
(e) Complete Loss. If Unity Square is substantially damaged or destroyed by fire or 

any other casualty, the City shall, at its option, within 180 days from the date of 
the damage or destruction, begin to repair, reconstruct, or replace the damaged or 
destroyed building or improvement and pursue the repair, reconstruction, or 
replacement with reasonable diligence so as to restore the building to substantially 
the condition it was in before the casualty, or 



Page 12  

6. Fiscal Management. The BCC may charge the public a fee for the use of Unity Square 
consistent with the policy of the BCC. Fees charged to users will be determined based upon the 
amount of revenues which the BCC needs to maintain its overall operations. In all cases, fees 
charged to users of Unity Square will be fair and reasonable. The financial activities of Unity 
Square shall be kept separate from the financial activities of the BCC. Additionally, the financial 
records of the Unity Square shall be presented in a separate column in the BCC annual audited 
financial statements, so that the assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, expenses, and other 
activities of the Unity Square can be easily viewed separate from those of the BCC. This 
information may be presented as supplementary information, a combining schedule, a note to the 
financial statements, or in any other manner that meets the minimum requirements of this section 
and generally accepted accounting principles. Upon request by the City, the BCC will provide 
reasonable access to the financial records of Unity Square, including books, records, software, 
work papers, financial statements and other supporting documentation 

 
7. Management Committee. The BCC shall create a committee for the purpose of overseeing 

its obligations under this Agreement. Such committee shall consist of the following members: 
 

(a) Two (2) representatives designated by the Bartlesville City Council; 
(b) A representative designated by the Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority; 
(c)  A representative designated by the Visit Bartlesville Board of Directors; and 
(d) Four (4) at-large representatives designated by the four (4) aforementioned 

representatives of the management committee. 

8. Taxes. The BCC shall timely pay any and all taxes, assessments, license fees, excises, 
and charges of every sort, nature, and kind ("Tax") that are levied, assessed, charged, or imposed 
upon or against Unity Square during the term of this Agreement. If the BCC considers the 
imposition of any Tax to be improper, illegal, or excessive, the BCC may dispute and contest the 
Tax. In such event and to the extent permitted by law, the BCC will not be required to pay the Tax 
until it is determined to be valid. The BCC must first notify the City of any Tax dispute. The City 
shall cooperate with the BCC at the BCC's expense in any Tax contest. 

9. BCC Representations. The BCC represents and warrants to the City that: 

(a) this Agreement and all other documents referenced herein have been duly 
authorized and, upon execution and delivery, will constitute legal, valid and binding 
obligations of the BCC, enforceable against the BCC in accordance with the terms 
thereof; 

(b) with regard to Unity Square, the BCC is in full compliance with all applicable 
environmental laws, rules, requirements, order, directives, ordinances and 
regulations , and the BCC is not aware of any potential claim or liability under any 
such environmental laws, rules, requirements, orders, directives, ordinances and 
regulations or of any events, conditions, circumstances, activities, practices, 
actions or plans which may give rise to any such claim or liability. 



Page 12  

 
 
 
 

 
10. Additional Facility Use. The BCC will advise, consult and cooperate with the City to 

make Unity Square available from time to time to the City for city functions, community events 
and City sponsored activities. The City will not pay any rental fees associated with these occasional 
uses. It is the intent of the parties that the BCC be responsibility for visual arts programming at 
Unity Square. 

11. Indemnification. Each party will indemnify and hold harmless the other party and its 
agents, officers and employees from and against any and all liabilities, losses, damages, costs and 
expenses (including attorney's fees, alternative dispute resolution expenses and other fees and 
expenses), causes of action, suits, claims, demands and judgments of any nature arising out of or 
in connection with any aspect of Unity Square operation or any activity that occurs in Unity Square 
Property, except to the extent directly caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the either 
party or its agents, officers or employees acting in their official capacity as such (and not as patrons 
of Unity Square) to the extent provided by the law. 

12. Events of Default. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, this Agreement 
may be terminated only upon the occurrence of an Event of Default. It shall be an Event of Default 
if: 

(a) the BCC fails, through no fault of the City, to satisfy in any material respect its 
obligations under this Agreement, and the failure continues for 30 days after written 
notice by the City; 

 
(b) the BCC experiences an event or materially violates an agreement with a third 

party, which event or violation, in the City's reasonable judgment, will materially 
change the BCC's ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement; 

 
(c) the BCC is subject to any action, voluntary or involuntary, under applicable 

bankruptcy laws. 

13. Termination. It is the intent of the parties that this Agreement continue in effect 
throughout its term until occurrence of the expiration date as provided for elsewhere in the Agreement. 
In the event that any circumstance arises, which in good faith reasonable opinion of the City or the BCC 
necessitates the termination of this Agreement, then said party shall give sixty (60) days written notice 
to the other party and unless a different length of notice is ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction. 
Either party has a sixty (60) day period or the period of time allowed by a court to remediate or to take 
any lawful action to remedy or cure the circumstances giving rise to potential termination. In the event 
of termination under this paragraph, it is not the intent of the parties that the City benefit from the 
termination of this Agreement by taking operational control of the facility. In the event that the City 
may be benefited, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to reach a fair and equitable settlement 
of the matter; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall be deemed to obligate the City 
prospectively for any financial expenditure. 

14. Annual Review. Each year at least sixty (60) days prior to the Lease Renewal, the City 
and BCC shall meet and review the following: 

(a) Maintenance issues concerning the Unity Square improvements. Discuss if each of 
the parties are meeting their maintenance obligation and are each of the parties 



Page 12  

financially prepared to address any upcoming maintenance responsibilities. 
 

(b)  Review and discuss and service delivery issues concerning exterior and ground 
appearance provided by the City and patron complaints about programming 
provided at Unity Square by the BCC. 

15. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the 
City, the BCC and their respective successors and assigns. 

16. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended in writing at any time upon the mutual 
agreement of the City and the BCC. Any such amendment shall not become effective unless 
executed by duly authorized representatives of the City and the BCC. 

17. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any provision of this 
Agreement is invalid or unenforceable the determination shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement. 

18. Notices. All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given under 
this Agreement shall be deemed to have been properly given if in writing and deposited in the 
U.S. first class mails, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

City of Bartlesville 
Attn: City Manager 
401 S. Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74006 

 
Bartlesville Community Center Trust Authority 
Attention: Managing Director 
300 SE Adams Blvd. 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003 

 
The City and the BCC may, by notice given in accordance with this provision, designate 

a different address for notices and communications. 
 

19. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Oklahoma. 

20. Independent Contractor. Nothing in this Agreement is intended or shall be 
construed as in any way creating or establishing the relationship of partners or joint ventures 
between the City and the BCC, or as designating the BCC as an agent or representative of the City 
for any purpose. In the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, the BCC is at all times 
acting and performing as an independent contractor, and the City does not have or exercise any 
control or direction over the manner and means by which the BCC performs its obligations under 
this Agreement, except as otherwise specifically stated within this Agreement. 

21. Temporary Suspension of City Obligations. Anything in this Agreement to the 
contrary notwithstanding, if the City does not have available to it sufficient legally available funds 
for use in performance of its obligations under this Agreement, the City will not be obligated to 
perform its obligations for the fiscal period in which the City has insufficient legally available 



Page 12  

funds. The City shall notify the BCC of such non-availability in writing at the earliest possible 
time. During any fiscal period in which the City's obligations are suspended pursuant to this 
paragraph, the BCC may (i) perform the obligations of the City at the BCC's expense, (ii) suspend 
its operation of Unity Square as required by this Agreement, or (iii) terminate this Agreement. The 
suspension of the City's obligations pursuant to this section shall only exist for the fiscal period in 
which the City has insufficient legally available funds. 

22. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes all previous understandings and 
agreements between the BCC and City regarding Unity Square and any other matters covered by 
this Agreement. This constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties. 

* * * Signatures appear on the following page * * * 



Page 13  

 
 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE BARTLESVILLE COMMUNITY 
CENTER TRUST AUTHORITY 
 

_________________________                                                                                    
Dale W. Copeland, Mayor     Graeme Biggs, Chairman 
 
Date: __________________     Date: __________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 



Agenda Item ___ 
August 29, 2024 

Prepared by Mike Bailey 
At the request of the City Council 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consider and approve a resolution pertaining to public safety, lewd acts in public, protests, and 
constitutional rights of the public in public spaces. 
 
Attachments: 

Resolution 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
At the request of the City Council, I have prepared the attached resolution for consideration by 
the Council. This resolution embodies the direction I have received from individual 
councilmembers and provides instructions to City Administration relating to the protection of the 
public and the preservation of the rights of all individuals within our jurisdiction during the 
planned Pride Celebration scheduled for September 14 at Unity Square. 
 
The City has received official notification that there will be a drag show held during this 
celebration, and given the public concern and protest that occurred during and after the last public 
drag show in September of 2022, the Council has requested a resolution to ensure that the City 
is best prepared to address the concerns of citizens, protestors, performers, and attendees alike.  
 
Following the public discussions that occurred after the drag show mentioned above, the Council 
entered into a one-year agreement with OKEQ – Bartlesville which required drag shows during 
the term of the agreement to be held indoors. Ultimately, OKEQ – Bartlesville decided not to 
hold a drag show at all during the period of this agreement. A great deal of legal precedent has 
been created across the country, since this agreement. However, it has played out exactly as our 
City Attorney advised prior to the passage of the agreement with OKEQ – Bartlesville. 
 
The attached resolution neatly summarizes the legal environment and current jurisprudence 
related to the regulation of both drag and public protests. As fully outlined in the resolution, the 
great weight of this jurisprudence grants constitutional protections to both drag and public 
protests. As such, the City Council desires to uphold these sacred rights for everyone involved 
while maintaining public safety and adherence with applicable laws. 
 
However, while both drag and public protests are regarded as Constitutionally protected 
freedoms of expression, both are still subject to certain laws and restrictions. These laws prohibit 
disturbances of the peace, indecent exposure, lewd acts, and reasonable time, place, and manner 
restrictions. The Council also desires to ensure that the Bartlesville police department continues 
to receive the highest level of training on these laws and the rights of all parties prior to the event 
and anticipated public protest of the event. 
 

  

14.



As such, the resolution contains specific direction to the City Manager to provide sufficient police 
presence to address all of these issues in three assignments. These assignments and duties are 
based on the location of the anticipated protest, the grounds of the event, and the performances. 
All assigned officers are to receive training specific to their assignment prior to the event. While 
our officers have received training specific to these areas in the past through a partnership with 
the District Attorney’s office, the Council wishes to ensure that all new officers are fully trained 
and existing officers are up to date. These officers are also to be provided with body worn 
cameras which shall be utilized at all times when the officer is on duty. The Council also 
encourages open communication with all parties involved to ensure the safe and efficient 
execution of these duties.  
 
I believe that the attached resolution captures the intent of the Council as it has been 
communicated to me by the entire body of the Council in individual discussions. This resolution 
has also been reviewed by the City Attorney who believes all statements and actions contained 
in the resolution to be factual and to be permissible within the authority granted to the City. I also 
believe that all requested actions are within the authority and capability of the City. 
 
Please schedule this item for consideration and possible action at our regularly scheduled 
September meeting. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Review the attached resolution, and if it embodies the direction of the Council as intended, 
approve the resolution. 



A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY BARTLESVILLE 
PERTAINING TO PUBLIC SAFETY, LEWD ACTS IN PUBLIC, PROTESTS, 
AND CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC IN PUBLIC SPACES. 

WHEREAS, many citizens of Bartlesville have expressed concern about the content 
of a drag show held at Unity Square on September 10, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the highest duty of the City Council is to ensure the safety of the public 
and to protect and preserve the rights guaranteed by the Constitution of the United 
States to all persons within the jurisdiction of the City of Bartlesville; and 

WHEREAS, the right to peaceably assemble, both for celebration and protest, has 
long been recognized as a cornerstone of our constitutionally guaranteed freedoms; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Oklahoma legislature considered, but failed to pass, SB 503 and 
HB 2186 which would have regulated or prohibited public drag shows state-wide; 
and 

WHEREAS, the great weight of jurisprudence relating to municipal and state 
regulation of public drag shows has found drag to be expression which is protected 
by the First Amendment as follows1: 

The Woodlands Pride, Inc. et al. v. Paxton et al.; S.D. Tex. Case No. 4:23-
cv-02847: After full trial on the merits, Texas SB 12 was ruled (1) an 
unconstitutional content-based restriction, (2) an unconstitutional restriction 
based on viewpoint, (3) unconstitutionally overbroad, (4) unconstitutionally 
vague, and (5) an unconstitutional prior restraint on speech;2 

HM Florida-Orl, LLC v. DeSantis et al.; M.D. Fla. Case No. CV-23-950: 
The District Court granted a preliminary injunction prohibiting enforcement 
of the Florida Protection of Children Act (“FPOCA”). The Court found the 
FPOCA to be a facially content-based regulation which is not narrowly 

 
1 In each of these cases, a Court could grant a prevailing Plaintiff an award 
of its reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred in proceedings in 
vindication of civil rights. See 42 U.S.C. § 1988. 
2 The State of Texas has appealed this decision. The appeal is pending as The 
Woodlands Pride, Inc. et al. v. Paxton et al.; 5th Cir. Case No. 23-20480.  



tailored to achieve a compelling state purpose. The FPOCA was also found to 
suffer from vagueness and overbreadth in violation of the 5th Amendment; 

Imperial Sovereign Court of the State of Montana, et al.  v. Knudsen et al., 
D. Mont. Case No. CV-23-50: The District Court granted a preliminary 
injunction prohibiting the enforcement of Montana HB 359. The Court found 
that HB 359 presumptively unconstitutional as a facially content-based 
restriction on free expression. Applying a strict scrutiny analysis, the Court 
found that HB 359 was not narrowly tailored to serve a compelling state 
interest and is unconstitutional vague and overbroad in violation of the Fifth 
Amendment;3  

Friends of George’s, Inc. v. Steven Mulroy, W.D. Tenn case no. 23-CV-
02163: After full trial on the merits the Tennessee Adult Entertainment Act 
(“TAEA”) was ruled a facially content-based restriction which was passed for 
the constitutionally impermissible purpose of chilling free speech. The TAEA 
was also determined to be unconstitutionally vague and substantially 
overbroad;4 

Southern Utah Drag Stars v. City of St. George, D. Utah case No. CV-23-44; 
The District Court granted a temporary injunction prohibiting the City of St. 
George, Utah from denying permits for a drag show; and5 

WHEREAS, even constitutionally protected expression is subject to reasonable 
regulation to protect public decency acts as follows: 

21 O.S. §22 prohibits acts which grossly disturb the public peace or is 
injurious to public morals;  

 
3The State of Montana has appealed the District Court’s preliminary injunc�on. The appeal is pending as Imperial 
Sovereign Court of the State of Montana, et al. v. Knudsen et al.; 9th Cir. Case No. 23-3581 
4 The State of Tennessee appealed the District Court’s ruling. In Friends of George’s, Inc. v. Mulroy; 6th Cir. Case. No. 
23-5611 the 6th Circuit ordered the case dismissed due to Plain�ffs’ lack of standing to pursue a pre-enforcement 
review of the TAEA. The merits of Plain�ff’s claims under the First Amendment were not reached.  Plain�ffs have 
sought en banc review of the dismissal before the 6th Circuit.  
5 Since the injunc�on, the City has changed its ordinance and requested that the Plain�ff’s claims be dismissed as 
moot. The District Court denied dismissal of most of Plain�ff’s claims because “[t]he subsequent change in the City’s 
ordinance does not eradicate the City’s past ac�ons or ensure the non-discriminatory applica�on of the new 
ordinance.”   



21 O.S. §1021(A) and Bartlesville Municipal Code §12-64 prohibit indecent 
exposure of genitals in a public place; 

Bartlesville Municipal Code §12-91 through 12-94 prohibits disturbance of 
the peace;  

21 O.S. §1123(A)(5) prohibits exposing children to lewd acts; and  

WHEREAS, protestors and counter-protestors have a constitutionally protected 
right to assemble peaceably at all public events; and 

WHEREAS, even protests protected by the constitution are subject to laws relating 
to disturbing the peace and reasonable time, place, and manner restrictions; and 

WHEREAS, a public, outdoor drag event is planned during the annual “Pride 
Celebration” being provided by the Oklahomans for Equality successor group 
known as Bartlesville Equality on September 14, 2024 at Unity Square; and 

WHEREAS, a protest of this event is anticipated; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is deeply concerned about the public safety 
implications to attendees, protestors, and the public at large related to this event; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council is providing specific guidance to the City Manager 
and the Bartlesville Police Department to ensure that the rights of all parties are 
preserved, that the safety of the public is maintained, that the above referenced laws 
relating to lewd and lascivious conduct are strictly enforced, and that the protest 
remains peaceful and obeys all applicable laws for the preservation of public order. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, THAT: 

1. A sufficient number of police officers shall be assigned to Unity Square and 
surrounding areas set aside for protest to ensure the safety of the protestors 
and participants alike. 

a. All officers assigned to such duty shall be provided with a high level of 
specific training related to the rights of protestors at public events, 
disturbing the peace, and all other topics related to this assignment. 



b. Officers assigned to such duty shall be responsible for enforcement of 
all public disturbance laws, preserving the rights of the protestors, and 
ensuring the safety of all involved. 

c. Open communication with any known protestors or groups should be 
held in advance of the event and as needed during the event to lessen 
tensions, improve public safety, and ensure compliance with all laws 
and regulations. 
 

2. A sufficient number of officers shall be assigned to patrol the Unity Square 
and all areas surrounding the public event to ensure the safety of the attendees. 

a. All officers assigned to such duty shall be provided with a high level of 
training related to rights of attendees and protestors at public events, 
public safety practices at public events, and all other topics related to 
this assignment. 

b. Officers assigned to such duty shall be responsible for enforcement of 
all public disturbance laws, preserving the rights of attendees, and 
ensuring the overall safety of the event. 

c. Open communication with event organizers shall be held in advance of 
the event and as needed during the event to lessen tensions, improve 
public safety, and ensure compliance with all laws and regulations. 
 

3. A sufficient number of officers shall be assigned to observe all performances 
to ensure that no lewd or lascivious acts are committed by performers or 
spectators. 

a. All officers assigned to such duty shall be provided with a high level of 
training related to lewd and lascivious acts, rights of attendees and 
performers at public events, and all other topics related to this 
assignment. 

b. Officers assigned to such duty shall be responsible for ensuring the 
proper enforcement of all public decency laws, preserving the rights of 
performers and event organizers, and ensuring the safety of performers 
and spectators. 

c. Open communication with event organizers and participants should be 
held in advance of the event and as needed during the event to lessen 



tensions, improve public safety, and ensure compliance with all laws 
and regulations. 

4. All officers shall be provided with body worn cameras and the cameras shall 
at all times be turned on to record all events while the officers are on duty. 

5. The City Manager shall make available to the Chief of Police all resources 
necessary to ensure the safety of the public, preserve the rights of all parties, 
and enforce all applicable rules and laws during this event. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, held the 3rd day of September 2024. 
 

       City of Bartlesville 

 

______________________________ 

Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

City Clerk 


	City Council Agenda September 3, 2024
	Agenda Item 5.b. Spirit Church 100th Anniversary-Mayor
	Agenda Item 5.c. National Payroll Week of Sept. 2
	Agenda Item 5.d. Constitution Week 2024
	Agenda Item 7.a.i. City Council Minutes August 5, 2024
	Agenda item 7.a.ii. City Council Minutes August 19. 2024
	Agenda Item 7.b.i. Appointment of Marianna Guerero to BCCTA
	Agenda Item 7.b.ii. Reappointment of Donna Copeland and John Fusselman to WRCB
	Agenda Item 7.b.iii. Council Memo Adam Hibdon Planning Commission Reappointment
	Agenda Item 7.b.iv. Council Memo Kinder Shamhart BOA Reappointment
	Agenda Item 7.c.i. Magazine and Subscription Service for Library
	Agenda Item 7.c.ii. Flock Contract
	Agenda Item 7.c.ii. Flock Contract
	Flock Overview For Cities
	Page1
	Page2

	FlockSafety_ImpactStudy_07Feb2024
	ImpactStudy_Pg1
	ImpactStudy_Pg2
	ImpactStudy_Pg3

	Media FAQs_2024
	Privacy Commitment_2024

	Agenda Item 7.c.iii. Polco Confluence, Inc. contract
	Agenda Item 7.c.iv. Envisio Solutions, Inc. contract
	Agenda Item 7.c.v. Staff report for PS with Brown Engineers for VFD replacement
	Staff report for PS with Brown Engineers for VFD replacement
	Agenda Item ___
	I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND
	II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS
	IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

	BTL-007 Contract
	2024-BE RateSchedule-Classifications

	Agenda Item 7.c.vi. CDBG-CV_Council Memo for YMCA Agreement Approval w_ATTACHMENT
	CDBG-CV_Council Memo for YMCA Agreement Approval
	Agreement CDBG-CV_YMCA_2024.08.21

	Agenda Item 7.c.vii. Staff report_2023 GO Bond Concrete Street Rehabilitation Design Contract_Kimley-Horn
	Agenda Item 7.c.viii.  Council Cover Letter_BCC Shade Structures
	TOWER CENTER AT UNIVERSITY SQUARE__2D LAYOUT B__2024__MC (4) (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	Agenda Item 7.c.ix. Dinks Parking Encroachment Agreement - Council Memo and Attachments
	Dink's Encroachment Agreement Council Memo.pdf
	Agenda Item
	I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND
	II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS
	III. BUDGET IMPACT
	IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

	Signed Agreement (Dinks).pdf
	Encroachment Exhibit DINKS20240813.PDF

	Agenda Item 7.c.x. Staff Report and Agreement with State of OK to receive - utilize Opioid Settlement Funding
	Staff Report Settlement Fund Agreement
	NLPS Agreement - Bartlesville
	Appendix B - Exhibit-E-Final-Distributor-Settlement-Agreement.pdf
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 119
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 120
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 121
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 122
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 123
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 124
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 125
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 126
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 127
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 128
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 129
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 130
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 131
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 132
	Final Distributor Settlement Agreement 133



	Agenda Item 7.d.i. Amendment to Resolution 3714 re Opioid Abatement Grant funds
	Agenda Item 7.d.ii. Staff Report Budget Adjustment and Resolution for Opioid Settlement Funds
	Budget Adjustment Resolution
	Budget Adjustment Staff Memo

	Agenda Item 7.e.i. Bartlesville NEXT Report - Aug 2024
	Aug 24

	Agenda Item 7.f.i. June 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	June 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P12 June 2024 Financials
	P12 June 2024 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 7.g.i. Bid Invitation 2024-2025-004-Adams-Golf-Club-Greens-Renovation-Project
	Agenda Item 7.g.ii. Invitation for bids 0 2-24-2025-005
	Agenda Item 7.g.iii. Bid Invitation 2024-2025-006-Tuxedo-Bridge-over-Caney-River
	Agenda Item 7.g.iv. 2024-2025-007-LED-Wall-Package
	Agenda Item 8. Bid Recommendation 2024-2025-004 Adams Golf Course Greens
	BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION_Adams GC Greens Rebuild
	240821_Adams GC Bid Tab
	240823_Adams GC Bid Recommendation_Heckenkemper

	Agenda Item 9. Bid Recommendation Fire Arms 2024-2025-005
	Agenda Item 10. BID REVIEW_Tuxedo Bridge over Caney River 2024-2025-006
	Agenda Item 11. Bid Recommendation Bid 2024-2025-007 LED Wall package
	Agenda Item 12. Public Hearing Hyundai PUD Council Memo and Attachments
	PATRIOT HYUNDAI COUNCIL MEMO.pdf
	PATRIOT HYUNDAI ORDINANCE.pdf
	ORDINANCE NO. __________
	WHEREAS, on September 3, 2024, said hearing was duly held by the City Council; and
	Dale Copeland, Mayor
	ATTEST:
	__________________________
	Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk

	Exhibit A-Legal Description.pdf
	Patriot Hyundai_Staff Report Final With Attachments.pdf
	Patriot Hyundai_Staff Report Narrative.pdf
	Community Development Department STAFF REPORT
	CASE NO. PUD-0724-0043/44
	General Information:
	Adjacent Zoning and Land Use:
	Zoning History:
	Analysis:
	PUD Modifications Requested:
	Public Notice:

	Staff Recommendation:


	Patriot Hyundai_Staff Report Final With Attachments.pdf
	Patriot Hyundai_Staff Report Final With Attachments.pdf
	Patriot Hyundai_Staff Report Final With Attachments.pdf
	PUD-0724-0043_44_DOT.pdf
	PUD-0724-0043_44(ac).pdf
	PUD-0724-0043_44.pdf
	Patriot Hyundai PUD Documents Combined- Revised.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Revised- PUD Design Statement.pdf
	Patriot Hyundai- Updated Site Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ARCH-AC101 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN


	Patriot Hyundai- Updated Landscape Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L101 LANDSCAPE

	LANDSCAPE-L102 LANDSCAPE.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	L102 LANDSCAPE




	Patriot Hyundai Survey.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model



	PUD Design Statement and Exhibits.pdf
	3386_001.pdf

	Contour Map.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Floodplain Map.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT MEETING SUMMARY.pdf





	Agenda Item 13. PTAC, BCCTA and City for Unity Square
	Staff Report Re PTAC-Tower Green and Lease and Operating Agreement
	Fully executed MOU May 22 2018
	Lease and Operating Agreement for Tower Center at Unity Square 8-29-24 (Proposed)
	Background
	3. Permitted Use; Operational Standards.
	4. Maintenance.


	Agenda Item 14. Council Direction re Pride Public Safety - Resolution
	PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, held the 3rd day of September 2024.




